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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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ACT OF 1934
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405eddturities Act of 1933.
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®acl5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.
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Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@g filed all reports required to be filed by Sexcti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sslobrter period that the registrant was requirefilésuch reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes® NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquigletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i¢ oontained herein, and will not be
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10-K or any amendment to this Form 108.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s Proxy Statement refatd the registrant’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Shatders, to be held on April 26, 2007,
which will be subsequently filed with the Secustignd Exchange Commission within 120 days afteetiteof the fiscal year to which this
Report relates, are incorporated by referenceRato |1l of this Annual Report on Form 10-K whenglicated.
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PART |

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain cerfaimvard-looking statements within the meaning et®n 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and SeQ@ItE of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asratad (the “Exchange Act”), that
involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Wheaduin this report, or in the documents incorpatdte reference herein, the words
“anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “imnd,” “may,” “plan,” “seek,” and similar express®identify such forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements include statemmgtarding Evans Bancorp, Inc.’s (“the Company’3ibass plans, prospects, growth and
operating strategies, statements regarding the @sakty of the Company’s loan and investment fodids, and estimates of the Company’s
risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based laeljre expectations of the Company’s managemenaansdubject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, including but not limited to genezabnomic conditions, either nationally or in then@pbany’s market areas, that are worse than
expected; increased competition among depositoogtar financial institutions; inflation and chasga the interest rate environment that
reduce the Company’s margins or reduce the faurevaf financial instruments; changes in laws orggoment regulations affecting financial
institutions, including changes in regulatory faesl capital requirements; the Company’s abilitgter new markets successfully and
capitalize on growth opportunities; the Companygity to successfully integrate acquired entitielsanges in accounting pronouncements and
practices, as adopted by financial institution tatpry agencies, the Financial Accounting Stand&ualsrd (“FASB”) and the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board; changes in consumendipg, borrowing and saving habits; changes inGbmpany’s organization,
compensation and benefit plans; and other factsrigsed elsewhere in this Report on Form 10-Kyedkas in the Compang’periodic repor
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisstbe (SEC”). Many of these factors are beyond then@any’s control and are difficult to
predict.

Because of these and other uncertainties, the Quyrgactual results, performance or achievementtdadiffer materially from those
contemplated, expressed or implied by the forwankihg statements contained herein. Forward-looktagements speak only as of the date
they are made. The Company undertakes no obligatiqoublicly update or revise forward-looking infeation, whether as a result of new,
updated information, future events or otherwise.

Item 1. BUSINESS
EVANS BANCORP, INC.

Evans Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) is a New Yousimess corporation which is registered as a filmhholding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHEAhe principal offices of the Company are locaaéd4-16 North Main Street,
Angola, New York 14006 and its telephone numbéri) 926-2000. The Company was incorporated ooli2ct28, 1988. Except as the
context otherwise requires, the Company and itsctlieind indirect subsidiaries are collectively nefé to in this Report as the “Company.” The
Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ @ldiarket system under the symbol “EVBN.”

At December 31, 2006, the Company had consolidatadlassets of $473.9 million, deposits of $35&illion and stockholders’ equity of
$39.5 million.

The Companys primary business is the operation of its subsg&halt does not engage in any other substantisiniess activities. The Comps
has two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries: Evansitiatl Bank (“Evans National Bank” or the “Bank”)hieh provides a full range of banking
services to consumer and commercial customers stéiteNew York, and Evans National Financial Sexsjdnc. (“ENFS”), which owns
100% of the common stock of ENB Insurance Agenay, (“ENBI”), which sells various premium-basedurance policies on a commission
basis. At December 31, 2006, the Bank representet¥®and ENFS represented 2.6% of the consolidedselts of the Company. Further
discussion of our segments is included in Noteolihé Company’s Consolidated Financial Statememieultem 8 of this Report on Form 10-
K.
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Evans National Bank

The Bank is a nationally chartered bank that reaketadquarters and full-service banking officedaNbrth Main Street, Angola, New York,
and a total of eleven full-service banking offige€rie County and Chautauqua County, New York e ioneach of Amherst, Angola, Derby,
Evans, Forestville, Hamburg, Lancaster, North Bositorth Buffalo, Tonawanda and West Seneca, Nevk.Yo

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had total asse®d61.5 million, security investments of $137.7 raill, net loans of $285.4 million, deposits
of $355.7 million and stockholders’ equity of $31dlion compared to total assets of $456.0 millisacurity investments of $160.0 million,
net loans of $256.8 million, deposits of $336.8liml and stockholders’ equity of $31.1 million ae@mber 31, 2005. The Bank’s principal
source of funding is deposits, which it reinvestshie community in the form of loans and investraemhe Bank offers deposit products, wtr
include checking and NOW accounts, passbook amensent savings, and certificates of deposit. ThekBadeposits are insured up to the
maximum permitted by the Bank Insurance Fund (theurance Fund”) of the Federal Deposit Insuranag@ration (“FDIC”). The Bank
offers a variety of loan products to its customarsluding commercial and consumer loans and coroialesind residential mortgage loans.

As is the case with banking institutions generathg, Bank’s operations are significantly influendsdgeneral economic conditions and by
related monetary and fiscal policies of bankingutatpry agencies, including the Federal Reserve®&RB”) and FDIC. The Bank is also
subject to the supervision, regulation and exaronadf the Office of the Comptroller of the Currgraf the United States of America (the
“OCC").

Other Subsidiaries
In addition to the Bank, the Company has the foilgndirect and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries:

Evans National Leasing, In(“Evans National Leasing” or “ENL"). ENL, a whollgwned subsidiary of the Bank, was organized in
December 2004 to acquire the business and sulata@ti of the assets, and assume certain ligslitof M&C Leasing of West Seneca, New
York. ENL provides direct financing leasing of comrcial small-ticket general business equipmenbtoganies located throughout the
contiguous 48 United States.

Evans National Holding Corp(“"ENHC”). ENHC was incorporated in February 2008das a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. ENHC
operates as a real estate investment trust (“RENET) holds commercial real estate loans and resalenortgages, which provides additional
flexibility and planning opportunities for the bosss of the Bank.

Evans National Financial Services, It((“Evans National Financial Services” or “ENFS”). EN is located at One Grimsby Drive, Hamburg,
New York. It was incorporated in September 2004, iara wholl--owned subsidiary of the Company. ENFS’s primargihess is to own the
business and assets of the Company’s non-bankiagdial services segment subsidiaries.

ENB Insurance Agency, In(“ENB Insurance Agency” or “ENBI”). ENBI, a whollpwned subsidiary of ENFS, is an insurance agendgtwh
sells various premium-based insurance policies conamission basis, including business and perdosatance, surety bonds, risk
management, life, disability and long-term careerage. ENBI has offices located in Angola, Cattgte,) Derby, Eden, Gowanda, Hamburg,
Jamestown, Lockport, North Boston, Randolph, Siwerek, South Dayton, and West Seneca, New York.

ENB Associates In(*ENB Associates” or “ENB”). ENB, a wholly-owned bsidiary of ENBI, offers non-deposit investmentghiots, such as
annuities and mutual funds.

Frontier Claims Services, In(“FCS”). FCS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBidaprovides claims adjusting services to variossiiance
companies.

The Company also has two special purpose entifiesns Capital Trust |, a statutory trust formedSaptember 29, 2004 under the Statutory
Trust Act, solely for the purpose of issuing anlilirsg certain securities representing undivideddfaal interests in the assets of the trust,
investing the proceeds thereof in certain debestaféghe Company and engaging in those activiteeessary, advisable or incidental thereto;
and ENB Employers Insurance Trust, a Delaware tostpany formed in February 2003 for the sole psepaf holding life insurance policies
under the Bank’s bank-owned life insurance program.
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The Company operates in two reportable segmen#kity activities and insurance agency activitiee Note 17 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included unéen B of this Report on Form 10-K for more inforrmaton the Company’s reportable
segments.

MARKET AREA

The Company’s primary market area is located ie BExounty, Niagara County, northern Chautauqua Goamd northwestern Cattaraugus
County, New York. This primary market area is thesawhere the Bank principally receives depositsrankes loans and ENBI sells
insurance. Even though ENL conducts business autfithis defined market area, this activity is deemed to expand the Compangtimary
market.

AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

The table presents the significant categories®fgsets and liabilities of the Bank, interestine@nd interest expense, and the corresponding
yields earned and rates paid in 2006, 2005 and.Zl0@#assets and liabilities are presented as dadyages. The average loan balances in
both performing and non-performing loans. Intemsbme on loans does not include interest on Iéanehich the Bank has ceased to accrue
interest. Securities are stated at fair valuerésteand yield are not presented on a tax-equit/alesis.

2006 2005 2004
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:

Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Loans and leases, r  $268,53¢ $20,40¢ 7.6(%  $236,75¢ $16,23¢ 6.86%  $196,71: $11,81¢ 6.01%

Taxable securitie 104,36¢ 4,20¢ 4.02% 124,77- 4,66: 3.74% 103,17: 3,654 3.5%%
Tax-exempt
securities 44,04« 1,881 4.27% 45,75 1,93: 4.25% 49,51¢ 2,13( 4.3(%
Time deposit-other
banks — — —% 21F 3 1.4(% 83z 14 1.6&%
Federal funds sol 1,09 49 4.47% 4,46: 112 2.53% 7,051 95 1.35%
Total interes-earning asse!  418,04° 26,544 6.35% 411,95¢ 22,94¢ 5.57% 357,28: 17,70¢ 4.9%

Non interes-earning asset:
Cash and due from

banks 12,06¢ 11,18 11,16:
Premises an
equipment, ne 8,19/ 8,21t 6,90t
Other asset 29,02: 26,16( 18,14(
Total Assets $467,32¢ $457,51- $393,48¢
Liabilities &

Stockholders’ Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities

NOW $ 11,767 22 0.1% $ 11,97¢ 22 0.1&8% $ 11,27 22 0.2(%
Regular savings
deposits 88,52 92€ 1.05% 94,84: 804 0.85% 86,01¢ 55C 0.64%
Muni-vest saving 36,301 1,55( 4.27% 51,30( 1,45¢ 2.82% 62,06( 94¢ 1.52%
Time deposit: 151,53( 6,481 4.28% 126,94! 3,961 3.172% 102,16 2,52¢ 2.47%
Other borrowe
funds 46,30¢ 1,80( 3.8% 49,93¢ 1,61¢ 3.2% 28,42¢ 87z 3.07%
Junior
subordinated
debenture: 11,33( 85C 7.5(% 11,33( 662 5.84% 2,76¢ 132 4.71%
Securities sold
under
agreement to
repurchast 8,49: 68 0.8(% 6,467 5C 0.771% 7,16( 60 0.84%
Total interes-bearing
liabilities 354,24 11,697 3.3(% 352,79¢ 8,56¢ 2.4% 299,86¢ 5,111 1.7(%
Non interes-bearing
liabilities:
Demand deposit 67,04¢ 62,18¢ 54,31¢

Other 8,15¢ 6,41¢ 4,958



Total liabilities

Stockholder equity

Total Liabilities &
Equity

Net interest earning

Net yield on interes
earning assel

Interest rate spree

429, 44¢

37,88

$467,32¢

3.55%

3.05%

421,40:

36,11:

$457,51«

$14,37:

3.4%%

3.14%

359,13¢

34,35(

$393,48¢

3.55%

3.2€%
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SECURITIES ACTIVITIES

The primary objective of the Barksecurities portfolio is to provide liquidity whipreserving safety of principal. Secondary objestinclude
the investment of funds during periods of decredsad demand, interest rate sensitivity considenati providing collateral to secure local
municipal deposits, supporting local communitie®tigh the purchase of tax-exempt securities anglanning considerations. The Bank’s
Board of Directors is responsible for establishawgrall policy and reviewing performance of the Barinvestments.

Under the Bank'’s policy, acceptable portfolio invesnts include: United States (“U.S.”) Governmeligations, obligations of federal
agencies or U.S. Governmespensored enterprises, mortgage backed securitigsicipal obligations (general obligations, reveonbégations
school districts and non-rated issues from the Bagdneral market area), banker’s acceptancesficaegs of deposit, Industrial Development
Authority Bonds, Public Housing Authority Bonds,rporate bonds (each corporation limited to the Batdgal lending limit), collateralized
mortgage obligations, Federal Reserve stock andraeHlome Loan Bank stock.

The Bank’s general investment policy is that intestecurities must be rated at least Moody’s BARe@uivalent) at the time of purchase. Out-
of-state issues must be rated at least Moody’s éAe{uivalent) at the time of purchase. Bonds oustes rated below A are reviewed
periodically to assure their continued credit wordss. While purchase of non-rated municipal séesgris permitted, such purchases are
limited to bonds issued by municipalities in thenBa general market area which, in the Bank’s judgimpossess no greater credit risk than
BAA (or equivalent) bonds. The financial statemasftthe issuers of non-rated securities are revielwethe Bank and a credit file of the
issuers is kept on each non-rated municipal sgowith relevant financial information. In additiothe Bank’s loan policy permits the purchase
of notes issued by various states and municipahieich have not been rated by Moody’s or StandaRdbor’s. The securities portfolio of the
Bank is priced on a monthly basis.

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Saash@'SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Inwa®ents in Debt and Equity
Securities,” which establishes accounting treatrf@ninvestments in securities, all securitieshia Bank'’s investment portfolio are either
designated as “held to maturity” or “available &ale.”

Income from securities held in the Bank’s investinmrtfolio represented approximately 22.9% of kaiterest income of the Company in
2006 as compared to 28.8% in 2005 and 32.7% in.280Becember 31, 2006, the Bank’s securities pticfof $137.7 million consisted
primarily of U.S. and federal agency obligationtste and municipal securities and mortgage-backedrgies, including collateralized
mortgage obligations (“CMQ’s"), issued by the Gaweent National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”), FedENational Mortgage
Association (“FNMA”") and Federal Home Loan Mortga@erp (“FHLMC”).

The following table summarizes the Bank’s secusitigth those designated as “available for saleliedlat fair value and securities designated
as “held to maturity” valued at amortized cost BBecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
Available for Sale:
Debt securitie:

U.S. government agenci $ 30,89 $ 36,60¢ $ 29,257
States and political subdivisio 38,43¢ 42,46 44,92¢
Total debt securitie $ 69,32¢ $ 79,06’ $ 74,18
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $ 30,16¢ $ 35,56¢ $ 43,29:
FHLMC 8,44¢ 10,747 12,18¢
GNMA 1,044 1,33¢ 1,741
CMO’'s 20,62¢ 24,50¢ 31,89
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 60,28¢ $ 72,15¢ $ 89,11(
FRB and Federal Home Loan Bank Sti 3,901 4,38¢ 3,52¢
Total securities designated as available for $133,51¢ $155,61( $166,81"
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ 85 $ 35
States and political subdivisio 4,17¢ 4,307 3,027
Total securities designated as held to mat $ 4,211 $ 4,34: $ 3,062
Total securitie: $137,73( $159,95. $169,87¢
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The following table sets forth the contractual misies and weighted average interest yields ofBhek’s securities portfolio (yields on tax-
exempt obligations are not presented on a tax-etpnv basis) as of December 31, 2006:

Maturing
Within After One But Within After Five But Within After
One Yeal Five Years Ten Years Ten Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

(dollars in thousand:
Available for Sale:
Debt Securities
U.S. governmer

agencies $ 7,92i 3.11%  $19,98¢ 365% $ 98C 5.00% $ 2,00¢ 7.4(%
States and politice
subdivisions 28( 4.28% 11,50¢ 4.51% 24,04« 4.64% 2,604 4.81%
Total debt securitie $ 8,20i 3.15%  $31,49: 3.96%  $25,02¢ 465% $ 4,604 5.92%
Mortgage-backed Securitie
FNMA $ 1,99¢ 358 $ 674 492% $ 5,39¢ 47%  $22,10! 5.1(%
FHLMC 33€ 5.07% 432 5.22% 654 4.67% 7,02¢ 5.0¢%
GNMA — — — — — — 1,044 5.00(%
CMO's — — 242 4.25% 3,52¢ 4.0(% 16,86¢ 4.3¢%
Total mortgagdsackec
securities $ 2,332 3.71%  $ 1,34¢ 49(% $ 9,577 444  $47,03¢ 4.84%
Total available for sal $10,53¢ 3.2%  $32,84! 4.00%  $34,59¢ 46(%  $51,64: 4.94%
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government agenci $ — — $ — — $ 9 — $ 26 —
States and political
subdivisions $ 1,85¢ 3.6% 961 3.51% 567 4.67% 793 3.7(%
Total held to maturit $ 1,85¢ 3.65% 961 3.57% 57€ 4.6(% 81¢ 3.58%
Total securitie: $12,39: 3.34% 33,80: 3.9% 35,17: 4.6(% 52,46! 4.92%

LENDING AND LEASING ACTIVITIES

General . The Bank has a loan and lease policy, which indwdBan and lease loss allowance policy, whi@poved by its Board of
Directors on an annual basis. The loan and lealseymmverns the conditions under which loans arakés may be made, addresses the lendin
authorities of Bank officers, charge off policiesddalesired portfolio mix.

The Bank offers a variety of loan and lease praglteits customers, including residential and conuméreal estate mortgage loans,
commercial loans, direct financing leases, andillment loans. The Bank primarily extends loansustomers located within the Western N
York area, except for direct financing leases, Wwtdce originated in all 48 contiguous states. bgeincome on loans and leases represented
approximately 76.9% of the total interest incoméhaf Company in 2006 and approximately 70.7% and%&f total interest income in 2005
and 2004, respectively. The Bank’s loan and leastqtio, after unearned discounts, loan originatémsts and allowances for loan losses,
totaled $285.4 million and $256.8 million at DecenB1, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectivelfpesember 31, 2006, the Bank had
$3.7 million as an allowance for loan losses whschpproximately 1.29% of total loans and leaséss Tompares with approximately

$3.2 million at December 31, 2005 which was apprately 1.23% of total loans and leases. The inere&the allowance for loan and lease
losses of $0.5 million in 2006 reflects managengeassessment of the portfolio composition, of whiither risk commercial real estate loans
comprise a significant component, the increasdgifdr risk leases and its assessment of the New State and local economy. The net loan
portfolio represented approximately 60.2% and 5408%he Company'’s total assets at December 31, ad8@@December 31, 2005,
respectively.

Real Estate Loans Approximately 76.1% of the Bank’s loan and leasefptio at December 31, 2006 consisted of realtedtzans or loans
collateralized by mortgages on real estate, inalgidésidential mortgages, commercial mortgageso#imel types of real estate loans. The
Bank’s real estate loan portfolio was $220.0 millex December 31, 2006, compared to $209.1 midiobecember 31, 2005. The real estate
loan portfolio increased approximately 5.2% in 2@@&r 2005 compared to an increase of 15.0% in 20@5 2004.

The Bank offers fixed rate residential mortgagenowith terms of 10 to 30 years with, typically, topan 80% loan-to-value ratio. Fixed rate
residential mortgage loans outstanding totaledGdtillion at December 31, 2006, which was

9
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approximately 16.9% of total loans outstandingl 995, the Bank entered into a contractual arrangemigh FNMA, pursuant to which the
Bank sells mortgage loans to FNMA and the Bankimstthe servicing rights as to those loans.

In 2006, the Bank sold approximately $2.6 milliomnortgages to FNMA under this arrangement, contbtré&2.5 million in mortgages sold
in 2005. The Bank currently retains the serviciigipts on $28.7 million in mortgages sold to FNMAerCompany has recorded a net servi
asset for such loans of approximately $0.2 milkoiDecember 31, 2006. The Bank determines with eagimation of residential real estate
loans which desired maturities, within the contaixbverall maturities in the loan portfolio, proeidhe appropriate mix to optimize the Bank’s
ability to absorb the corresponding interest rége within the Company’s tolerance ranges.

Since 1993, the Bank has offered adjustable raidestial mortgage loans with terms of up to 30rgeRates on these mortgage loans remain
fixed for a predetermined time and are adjustediaiinthereafter. On December 31, 2006, the Baakistanding adjustable rate residential
mortgage loans were $8.7 million or 3.0% as conp&reb6.7 million or 2.6% of total loans at DecemB#, 2005. This balance did not inclt
any construction mortgage loans, which are disclbstow.

The Bank also offers commercial mortgage loans wjitho an 80% loan-to-value ratio for up to 20 geam a variable and fixed rate basis.
Many of these mortgage loans either mature or@gst to a rate call after three to five yearse Bank’s outstanding commercial mortgage
loans were $123.7 million at December 31, 2006 civlvas approximately 42.8% of total loans outstagdr his balance included

$28.6 million in fixed rate and $95.1 million inn@ble rate mortgage loans, which include interas calls.

The Bank also offers other types of loans collditezd by real estate such as home equity loans BEmk offers home equity loans at variable
and fixed interest rates with terms of up to 15ryeand up to an 80% loan-to-value ratio. At Decen®ie 2006, the real estate loan portfolio
included $26.8 million of home equity loans outsliaig, which represented approximately 9.3% ofdtaltloans outstanding. This balance
included $19.2 million in variable rate and $7.8lion in fixed rate loans.

The Bank also offers both residential and commeéret estate construction loans at up to an 8CG#0-to-value ratio at fixed interest or
adjustable interest rates and multiple maturittéDecember 31, 2006, fixed rate real estate canstm loans outstanding were $1.8 millior
0.6% of the Bank’s loan portfolio, and adjustalaterconstruction loans outstanding were $10.0aniltr 3.5% of the portfolio.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately $1.7 millaor0.8% of the Bank’s real estate loans were 3tdays delinquent, and approximately
$0.1 million or 0.1% of real estate loans were agoruing.

Commercial Loans. The Bank offers commercial loans on a secureduasdcured basis, including lines of credit anthtkrans at fixed and
variable interest rates and multiple maturitiese Bank’s commercial loan portfolio totaled $29.8liom and $29.9 million at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Commercial loans sgpried approximately 10.2% and 11.5% of the Batdtal loans at December 31, 2006
2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately $23 thousar@1% of the Bank’s commercial loans were 30Qalays past due and $0.4 million or
0.2% of its commercial loans were non-accruing |éteer due primarily to one borrower.

Commercial lending entails significantly more riblan real estate loans. Collateral, where applé&abhy consist of inventory, receivables,
equipment and other business assets. Approximaé8¢6 of the Bank’s commercial loans are at vaeiahtes which are tied to the prime rate.

Installment Loans . The Bank’s installment loan portfolio (which indies personal loans and revolving credit card lcals)ntotaled

$3.1 million and $2.7 million at December 31, 2@G0® 2005, respectively, representing approximdtel$e of the Bank’s total loans at
December 31, 2006 and 1.1% of the Bank’s totaldadrDecember 31, 2005. Traditional installmenhsoare offered at fixed interest rates
with various maturities of up to 60 months, on eused and unsecured basis. At December 31, 2086ns$kaliment loan portfolio included
$0.2 million in fixed rate credit card balancesatinterest rate of 15.60% and $0.1 million intheable rate option. As of December 31, 2(
approximately $34 thousand or 1.1% of the Banksaliment loans were 30 to 90 days past due.

Direct Financing LeasesOn December 31, 2004, the Company, together vgthetvly formed, indirect wholly-owned subsidiar\IE
acquired M&C Leasing, a general business equipteasing company located in West Seneca, New Y oifecDfinancing leases totaled
$31.7 million and $16.9 million at December 31, @hd 2005, respectively, representing approximdi&l0% and 6.5% of the Bank'’s total
loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
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respectively. As of December 31, 2006, approxinya$8l3 million or 1.0% of the Bank’s direct finangileases were 30-90 days past due.

Other Loans . Other loans totaled $4.0 million at DecemberZM6 and $0.6 million at December 31, 2005. Otbans consisted primarily
of: loans to municipalities, hospitals, churched aon-profit organizations, at fixed or variabléeirest rates with multiple maturities; and

overdrafts, which totaled $0.2 million and $0.Datcember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Bank’s lending limit to any one borrower is gab to regulation by the OCC. The Bank continuatignitors its loan portfolio to review

compliance with new and existing regulations.

The following table summarizes the major classif@as of the Bank’s loans and leases (net of defeorigination costs) as of the dates

indicated.

Mortgage loans on real esta
Residential -4 family
Commercial and mu-family
Constructior
Second mortgage
Home equity lines of cred

Total mortgage loans on real est
Direct financing lease
Commercial loan

Consumer loan

Other

Net deferred loan and lease origination ¢

Total loans and leas:

Allowance for loan and lease los:

Loans and leases, r

December 31

2006

$ 57,70:
123,70:
11,84¢
8,62¢
18,14%
220,02
31,74
29,58¢
3,101
3,991
654
289,10¢

(3,739

2005

$ 48,58
123,72
9,27(
6,45/
21,08:
209,11
16,94¢
29,92(
2,741
642

654
260,02:

(3,211)
$256,81(

2004
(in thousands

$ 38,49
107,39:
8,18¢
5,71¢
22,10¢
181,89:
4,54¢
28,76
2,83
1,97:
59C
220,59¢

(2,999
$217,59¢

2003

$ 30,16(
99,68+
5,09(
6,27¢
18,26:
159,47(

24,28:
2,56¢
1,20¢

537
188,06
(2,539
$185 52

2002

$ 26,71
77,91¢
2,174
6,91¢
13,78(
127,50

20,46(
2,35¢
49z

33€
151,14«
(2,146
$148,99¢

Loan Maturities and Sensitivities of Loans in Interest Rates. The following table shows the maturities of comaied and real estate
construction loans outstanding as of December @26 2nd the classification of such loans due afiteryear according to sensitivity to

changes in interest rates.

Commercial
Real estate constructic

Loans maturing after one year wi
Fixed Rate:
Variable Rate:

11

After One Bu

Within Five After Five
Years Years
(in thousands
$ 14,82} $11,99(
$ 19,78¢ $15,83¢
$ 9,231 $ 1,27(C
10,54¢ 14 ,56¢
$ 19,78¢ $15,83¢

Total

$29,58¢
11,84¢
$41,43:
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Non-accrual, Past Due and Restructured Loans and Leasedhe following table summarizes the Bank’s nonraatand accruing loans and
leases 90 days or more past due as of the datss tislow. The Bank had no restructured loansasds as of those dates. Any loans classified
for regulatory purposes as loss, doubtful, substathdr special mention that have not been discldsenbt (i) represent or result from trends
uncertainties which management reasonably expatitsaterially impact the Compang’future operating results, liquidity or capitadoerces

or (ii) represent material credit about which masragnt has serious doubts as to the ability of dacrowers to comply with the loan
repayment terms. See Part Il, Item 7 of this Reporftorm 10-K, “Management’s Discussion and AnalydiFinancial Condition and Results
of Operations — Allowance for Loan and Lease Lagdesfurther information about the Company’s nacerual, past due and restructured
loans and leases.

At December 31
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands

Non-accruing loans and least
Mortgage loans on real esta

Residential -4 family $ — $ — $ — $ 3¢ $ 30
Commercial and mu-family 14& 60C 27¢ 17¢€ 1,07¢
Constructior — — — — —
Second mortgage — — — 50 21
Home Equity lines of cred — — — — —
Total mortgage loans on real est 14E 60C 27¢ 25€ 1,12¢
Direct financing lease — — 2 — —
Commercial loan 44% 1,17¢ 1,37¢ 40 72
Consumer installment loau
Other _ = _ = _ = _ = _ =
Total nor-accruing loans and leas $ 58¢ $ 1,77 $ 1,65¢ $ 29¢ $ 1,197
Accruing loans and leases 90+ days past 74 95 151 627 —
Total nor-performing loans and leas $ 662 $ 1,87(C $ 1,80¢ $ 92¢ $ 1,197
Total nor-performing loans and leases to total as 0.15% 0.41% 0.42% 0.27% 0.41%
Total nor-performing loans and leases to total lo 0.22% 0.72% 0.82% 0.49% 0.7%%
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The following table summarizes the Bank’s allowafardoan and lease losses and changes in the atlosvfor loan and lease losses by
categories:

ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands
BALANCE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢ $ 1,78¢
CHARGE-OFFS:
Commercial (212) (417) (200) (54) (14)
Real estate mortgag — (25) (6) (30 (42
Direct financing lease (500 (108) — — —
Installment loan: (44) (86) 9 (11) (20
Overdrafted deposit accour (42 (39 — — —
TOTAL CHARGE-OFFS (79¢) (675) (21t (95 (76)
RECOVERIES:
Commercial 53 — 48 7 2
Real estate mortgag — 40 8 —
Direct financing lease 62 56 — — —
Installment loan: 63 11 4 1 14
Overdrafted deposit accour 20 11 — — —
TOTAL RECOVERIES 19¢ 11¢€ 60 8 16
NET CHARGE-OFFS (600C) (557) (15& (87 (60)
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSE 1,12¢ 76¢ 48t 48C 42C
ADDITION OF ALLOWANCE FROM ACQUISITION — — 13C — —
BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢
RATIO OF NET CHARGI-OFFS TO AVERAGE NET
LOANS AND LEASES OUTSTANDING 0.22% 0.22% 0.08% 0.05% 0.04%

Managemens provision for loan and lease losses reflectxtimtinued growth trend in higher risk commerciare and direct financing leas
and management’s assessment of the local and NekvState economic environment. Both the local ae&/N ork State economies have
lagged behind national prosperity, which remainsetited. Marginal job growth, combined with a deitlg population base, has left the Bank’
primary market more susceptible to potential crpdiblems. This is particularly true of commerdiatrowers. Commercial loans represent a
segment of significant past growth, as well asreceatration in the Company’s commercial real egtatéfolio. Commercial real estate values
may be susceptible to decline in an adverse econbtagagement believes that the provision for loaah lease losses complies with the
regulations of the OCC, and is reflective of itsessment of the local environment, as well as droged trend in commercial loan activity and
balance outstanding.

SOURCES OF FUNDS - DEPOSITS

General. Customer deposits represent the primary sourcdeeoBank’s funds for lending and other investmemppses. In addition to deposits,
other sources of funds include loan and lease rapais, loan sales on the secondary market, intenelstlividend income from investments,
matured investments, and borrowings from the Fédtwme Loan Bank (“FHLB”) and from the First Tenses Bank, which is a
correspondent bank.

Deposits. The Bank offers a variety of deposit productsjuding checking, passbook, statement savings, N@¥dunts, certificates of depc
and jumbo certificates of deposit. Bank deposi¢siasured up to the maximum permitted by the FINCDecember 31, 2006, the Bank’s
deposits totaled $355.7 million consisting of tbkdwing:
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(In thousand:

Demand deposit $ 72,12t
NOW account: 11,25:
Regular saving 85,08¢
Muni-vest saving: 31,24(
Time deposits, $100,000 and o 80,24
Other time deposit 75,80¢
Total $ 355,74¢

The following table shows daily average deposits average rates paid on significant deposit categdry the Bank (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Weightec Weightec Weightec
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

Demand deposit $ 67,04¢ 0.00% $ 62,18¢ 0.0(% $ 54,31¢ 0.0(%
NOW account: 11,767 0.1<% 11,97¢ 0.1&% 11,27: 0.2(%
Regular Saving 88,52: 1.05% 94,84: 0.85% 86,01¢ 0.64%
Muni-vest saving: 36,30: 4.27% 51,30( 2.8% 62,06( 1.5%%
Time deposit: 151,53( 4.28% 126,94! 3.172% 102,16 2.471%
Total $355,16¢ 2.52% $347,24¢ 1.8(% $315,83: 1.2&8%

Federal Funds Purchased and Other Borrowed FundsAnother source of the Bank’s funds for lending ancesting activities at
December 31, 2006 consisted of short and long lenmowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank.

Other borrowed funds consisted of various advafroes the Federal Home Loan Bank with both fixed &adable interest rate terms ranging
from 2.84% to 5.33%. The maturities and weightegrage rates of other borrowed funds at Decembe2@®15 are as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Weighted
Average
Maturities Rate

2007 $27,50¢ 5.0&%
2008 66¢ 3.22%
2009 8,052 3.11%
2010 — —
2011 — —
Thereaftel 13,00( 3.4€%
Total $49,22¢ 4.31%

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchas&he Bank enters into agreements with depositosglido the depositors securities owned
by the Bank and repurchase the identical secugé@werally within one day. No physical movementhaf securities is involved. The depositc
informed that the securities are held in safekagpinthe Bank on behalf of the depositor. Secwisield under agreements to repurchase
totaled $9.0 million at December 31, 2006 compa&oeh6.4 million at December 31, 2005.

MARKET RISK

For information about, and a discussion of, the Gany’'s “Market Risks,” see Part Il, Item 7 “Managamtis Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — k¢aRisks” of this Report on Form 10-K.
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The following schedule sets forth the maturitieshaf Bank’s time deposits as of December 31, 2006:

Time Deposit Maturity Schedu
(in thousands

0-3 36 6-12 Over 12
Mos. Mos. Mos. Mos. Total
Time deposit— $100,000 and ove $30,40¢ $ 5,362 $22,37¢ $22,09: $ 80,24:
Other time deposit 11,96¢ 9,96: 42,09! 11,78¢ 75,80¢
Total time deposit $42,37¢ $15,32¢ $64,47( $33,87¢ $156,04°

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

In the course of its business, the Bank has aatjainel may acquire in the future, property seculdags that are in default. There is a risk that
the Bank could be required to investigate and elgahazardous or toxic substances or chemicalgeteat such properties after acquisition by
the Bank, and that the Bank may be held liabledoveernmental entity or third parties for propestgmage, personal injury and investigation
and clean-up costs incurred by such parties in ection with such contamination. In addition, thenewor former owners of contaminated
sites may be subject to common law claims by thadies based on damages and costs resulting fneiroamental contamination emanating
from such property.

To date, the Bank has not been required to perforyinvestigation or clean-up activities, nor haseien subject to any environmental claims.
There can be no assurance, however, that thigemilhin the case in the future.

COMPETITION

All phases of the Company’s business are highlypstitive. The Company competes actively with locadjional and national financial
institutions, as well as with bank branches oriiaage agency offices in the Company’s market aféaie County, Niagara County, northern
Chautauqua County, and northwestern CattaraugustZddew York. These Western New York counties havegh density of financial
institutions, many of which are significantly largend have greater financial resources than thepaagn The Company faces competition for
loans, direct financing leases and deposits frdrerotommercial banks, savings banks, savings amddesociations, mortgage banking
companies, credit unions, insurance companies et inancial services companies. The Companysfadelitional competition for deposits
and insurance business from non-depository congpetiiich as the mutual fund industry, securitiestankerage firms, and insurance
companies and brokerages. The Company attemptsgerterally competitive with all financial institis in its service area with respect to
interest rates paid on time and savings depositgice charges on deposit accounts, and intereest charged on loans and leases.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

Bank holding companies and banks are extensivelylaged under both federal and state laws and agguok that are intended to protect
depositors. To the extent that the following infation describes statutory and regulatory provisidris qualified in its entirety by reference
the particular statutory and regulatory provisiolisy change in the applicable law or regulationaahange in the way such laws or
regulations are interpreted by regulatory agenmieurts, may have a material adverse effect erfCtbmpany’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Bank Holding Company Regulation (BHCA)

As a financial holding company registered underBRECA, the Company and its non-banking subsidiaaiessubject to regulation and
supervision under the BHCA by the FRB. The FRB nexpuperiodic reports from the Company, and is atited by the BHCA to make regu
examinations of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company is required to obtain the prior appro¥¢he FRB before acquiring direct or indirectrmevship or control of more than 5% of the
voting shares of a bank or bank holding companyg FRB will not approve any acquisition, merger ensolidation that would have a
substantial anti-competitive result, unless thé-emmnpetitive effects of the proposed transactimmautweighed by a greater public interest in
meeting the needs and convenience of the public.
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The FRB also considers managerial, capital and ditm@ncial factors in acting on acquisition or mer applications. A bank holding company
may not engage in, or acquire direct or indirecttaal of more than 5% of the voting shares of aopnpany engaged in any non-banking
activity, unless such activity has been determimgthe FRB to be closely related to banking or ngam@abanks. The FRB has identified by
regulation various non-banking activities in whiclhank holding company may engage with noticertgrior approval by, the FRB.

The FRB has enforcement powers over financial hgldompanies and their subsidiaries, among otlmgsghto interdict activities that
represent unsafe or unsound practices or constitofietions of law, rule, regulation, administraierders, or written agreements with a federal
bank regulator. These powers may be exercisedghrthe issuance of cease and desist orders, advietary penalties or other actions.

Bank holding companies and their subsidiary bam&sabso subject to the provisions of the CommuRignvestment Act (“CRA”). Under the
terms of the CRA, the FRB (or other appropriatekra@gulatory agency, in the case of the Bank, tR&€Dis required, in connection with its
examination of a bank, to assess such bank’s rénargteting the credit needs of the communitiesestby that bank, including low- and
moderate-income neighborhoods. Furthermore, susgsament is taken into account in evaluating apliagiion made by a bank holding
company or a bank for, among other things, approf/albranch or other deposit facility, office reddion, a merger or an acquisition of bank
shares.

Supervision and Regulation of Bank Subsidiaries

The Bank is a nationally chartered banking corponasubject to supervision, examination and regutedf the FRB, the FDIC and the OCC.
These regulators have the power to enjoin “unsafemeound practices,” require affirmative actiorceorect any conditions resulting from any
violation or practice, issue an administrative orttiat can be judicially enforced, direct an inae@n capital, restrict the growth of a bank,
assess civil monetary penalties, and remove a baiffiters and directors.

The operations of the Bank are subject to numestatstes and regulations. Such statutes and r@nsatlate to required reserves against
deposits, investments, loans, mergers and consiolidaissuance of securities, payment of divideedtablishment of branches, and other
aspects of the Bank’s operations. Various consuawes and regulations also affect the operatiortt@Bank, including state usury laws, laws
relating to fiduciaries, consumer credit and equadlit, fair credit reporting, and privacy of nouhtic financial information.

The Bank is subject to Sections 23A and 23B ofRtbderal Reserve Act and Regulation W thereundeichwdgovern certain transactions, such
as loans, extensions of credit, investments anchaises of assets between member banks and thiatedf including their parent holding
companies. These restrictions limit the transfenfits subsidiaries, including the Bank, of funddtte Company in the form of loans,
extensions of credit, investments or purchasess#ta (collectively, “Transfers”), and they requirat the Bank’s transactions with the
Company be on terms no less favorable to the Biaask tomparable transactions between the Bank amtated third parties. Transfers by the
Bank to the Company are limited in amount to 10%hefBanks capital and surplus, and transfers to all aféiaare limited in the aggregate
20% of the Banls capital and surplus. Furthermore, such loansatehsions of credit are also subject to variolisisral requirements. The
regulations and restrictions may limit the Comparability to obtain funds from the Bank for its baweds, including funds for acquisitions,
and the payment of dividends, interest and opegyaipenses.

The Bank is prohibited from engaging in certaimgyarrangements in connection with any extensiacredit, lease or sale of property or
furnishing of services. For example, the Bank metygenerally require a customer to obtain othevises from the Bank or the Company, and
may not require the customer to promise not toinkither services from a competitor as a conditan extension of credit. The Bank is also
subject to certain restrictions imposed by the Faldeeserve Act on extensions of credit to exeeutifficers, directors, principal stockholders
or any related interest of such persons. Extensibngedit: (i) must be made on substantially tame terms (including interest rates and
collateral) as, and following credit underwritingppedures that are not less stringent than thaseajing at the time for comparable
transactions with persons not covered above andamhoot employees, and (ii) must not involve nmtbex the normal risk of repayment or
present other unfavorable features. The Bank tsslbject to certain lending limits and restrici@m overdrafts to such persons. A violatio
these restrictions may result in the assessmegniladtantial civil monetary penalties on the Bankroy officer, director, employee, agent or
other person participating in the conduct of tHaies of the Bank or the imposition of a cease desist order.

The deposits of the Bank are insured by the FDIGuph the Insurance Fund to the extent providethiy Under the FDIC's risk-based
insurance system, institutions insured throughnkearance Fund are currently assessed premiumd basaligible deposits and the
institutions’ capital position and other supervistactors. Legislation also provides
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for assessments against institutions insured thrdlg Insurance Fund which will be used to payateifinancing corporation (“FICO”)
obligations. In addition to any Insurance Fund ssseents, banks insured through the Insurance Fenekpected to make payments for the
FICO obligations based on eligible deposits eacr.yEhe assessment is determined quarterly.

Regulations promulgated by the FDIC pursuant tdRéderal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvemeniof 1991 place limitations on the
ability of certain insured depository institutioiwsaccept, renew or rollover deposits by offeriates of interest which are significantly higher
than the prevailing rates of interest on depodfered by other depository institutions having Haene type of charter in such depository
institutions’ normal market area. Under these ratjoihs, well-capitalized institutions may acceptew or rollover such deposits without
restriction, while adequately capitalized instibm$ may accept, renew or rollover such deposits avivaiver from the FDIC (subject to certain
restrictions on payment of rates). Undercapitalimstitutions may not accept, renew or rollovertsdeposits.

Under the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovemyg &nforcement Act of 1989, a depository institntiosured by the FDIC can be held liable
for any loss incurred by, or reasonably expectdaketincurred by, the FDIC in connection with: figtdefault of a commonly controlled FDIC-
insured depository institution, or (ii) any assmta provided by the FDIC to a commonly controll&@ €-insured institution in danger of
default. “Default” is defined generally as the ajppment of a conservator or receiver, and “in dargféefault” is defined generally as the
existence of certain conditions indicating thatlafault” is likely to occur in the absence of regyaly assistance.

The federal regulators have adopted regulationsaathination procedures promoting the safety anddess of individual institutions by
specifically addressing, among other things: (i@inal controls, information systems and internalibsystems; (ii) loan documentation;
(iii) credit underwriting; (iv) interest rate expo®; (v) asset growth; (vi) ratio of classified etssto capital; (vii) minimum earnings; and
(viii) compensation and benefits standards for rgangent officials.

The FRB, the OCC and other federal banking agerzge broad enforcement powers, including the paavégrminate deposit insurance, and

impose substantial fines and other civil and crahjpenalties and appoint a conservator or recédrahe assets of a regulated entity. Failure to
comply with applicable laws, regulations and sujsemy agreements could subject the Company oultsidiaries, as well as officers, directors
and other institution-affiliated parties of theggamnizations, to administrative sanctions and gakcivil monetary penalties.

Capital Adequacy

The FRB, the FDIC and the OCC have adopted riskdaapital adequacy guidelines for bank holding manies and banks under their
supervision. Under these guidelines, the so-cdlléet 1 capital” and “Total capital” as a percentanf risk-weighted assets and certain off-
balance sheet instruments must be at least 4%%nde8pectively.

The FRB, the FDIC and the OCC have also imposederage standard to supplement their risk-baseskrathis leverage standard focuses on
a banking institution’s ratio of Tier 1 capitaldawerage total assets, adjusted for goodwill anthiceother items. Under these guidelines,
banking institutions that meet certain criterigliming excellent asset quality, high liquiditywlanterest rate exposure and good earnings, and
that have received the highest regulatory ratingtrmaintain a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total astpd average assets of at least 3%.

Institutions not meeting these criteria, as welinagitutions with supervisory, financial or opeoaial weaknesses, along with those experier
or anticipating significant growth, are expectedraintain a Tier 1 capital to total adjusted averagsets ratio equal to at least 4%. As refle
in the following table, the risk-based capital @atand leverage ratios of the Company and the Bard December 31, 2006 and 2005
exceeded the required capital ratios for clasgificaas “well capitalized,” the highest classificat under the regulatory capital guidelines.
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Capital Components and Ratios at December 31,
(dollars in thousands)

2006 2005
Company Bank Company Bank

Capital component

Tier 1 capita $ 40,48¢ $ 37,84 $ 37,22¢ $ 35,85t

Total risk-based capite 44,22¢ 41,57¢ 40,431 39,05¢
Risk-weighted assets and -balance sheet instrumet 316,76 315,45t 295,75¢ 294,40¢
Risk-based capital rati

Tier 1 capita 12.9% 12.(% 12.€% 12.2%

Total risk-based capite 14.(% 13.2% 13.7% 13.2%
Leverage ratic 8.9% 8.4% 8.2% 8.C%

The federal banking agencies, including the FRBtArdOCC, maintain risk-based capital standarasder to ensure that those standards take
adequate account of interest rate risk, conceatrati credit risk, the risk of non-traditional adties and equity investments in non-financial
companies, as well as reflect the actual performamal expected risk of loss on certain multifarhibysing loans. Bank regulators periodically
propose amendments to the risk-based capital guedeand related regulatory framework, and consitianges to the risk-based capital
standards that could significantly increase thewmhof capital needed to meet the requirementthiocapital tiers described below. While the
Company’s management studies such proposals niiiregtiof adoption, ultimate form and effect of amgls proposed amendments on the
Company’s capital requirements and operations damnpredicted.

The federal banking agencies are required to tpkanipt corrective action” in respect of depositmrstitutions and their bank holding
companies that do not meet minimum capital requamres) FDICIA established five capital tiers: “wedlpitalized,” “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZeand “critically undercapitalized.” A depositorgstitution’s capital tier, or that of its bank
holding company, depends upon where its capit@l¢eare in relation to various relevant capital suees, including a risk-based capital
measure and a leverage ratio capital measure,atalrcother factors.

Under the implementing regulations adopted by #ukefal banking agencies, a bank holding compaiaiok is considered “well capitalized”
if it has: (i) a total risk-based capital ratioXi% or greater; (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capitdioraf 6% or greater; and (iii) a leverage ratidb8b

or greater; and is not subject to any order ortemitlirective to meet and maintain a specific eével for a capital measure. An “adequately
capitalized” bank holding company or bank is defias one that has: (i) a total risk-based capdtist Iof 8% or greater; (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of 4% or greater; and (iii) a levezagtio of 4% or greater (or 3% or greater in thgecof a bank with a composite CAMELS rating
of (1)). A bank holding company or bank is cons@tk(A) “undercapitalized” if it has: (i) a totakki-based capital ratio of less than 8%; (ii) a
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 4%(iigra leverage ratio of less than 4% (or 3%he tase of a bank with a composite CAMELS
rating of (1)); (B) “significantly undercapitalized the bank has: (i) a total risk-based capittio of less than 6%; or (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based
capital ratio of less than 3%; or (iii) a leveragéo of less than 3%; and (C) “critically underitafized” if the bank has a ratio of tangible
equity to total assets equal to or less than 2%.HRB may reclassify a “well capitalized” bank Holgicompany or bank as “adequately
capitalized” or subject an “adequately capitalized*undercapitalizedinstitution to the supervisory actions applicaldeite next lower capit
category if it determines that the bank holding panmy or bank is in an unsafe or unsound conditrase@ms the bank holding company or
bank to be engaged in an unsafe or unsound praxit@ot to have corrected the deficiency. The Gomi@and the Bank currently meet the
definition of “well capitalized” institutions.

“Undercapitalized” depository institutions, amorer things, are subject to growth limitations; prehibited, with certain exceptions, from
making capital distributions; are limited in thability to obtain funding from a Federal ReservenBaand are required to submit a capital
restoration plan. The federal banking agencies nohyaccept a capital plan without determining, aghother things, that the plan is based on
realistic assumptions and is likely to succeecdestaring the depository institution’s capital. bid&ion, for a capital restoration plan to be
acceptable, the depository institution’s parentihm company must guarantee that the institutidhosimply with such capital restoration plan
and provide appropriate assurances of performahaelepository institution fails to submit an aptable plan, including if the holding
company refuses or is unable to make the guaraetseibed in the previous sentence, it is treasdtliais “significantly undercapitalized.”
Failure to submit or implement an acceptable chplta also is grounds for the appointment of aseswator or a receiver. “Significantly
undercapitalized” depository institutions may bbjeat to a number of additional requirements astricions, including orders to sell
sufficient voting stock to
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become “adequately capitalized,” requirements tluce total assets and cessation of receipt of dsgosm correspondent banks. Moreover,
the parent holding company of a “significantly urdeitalized” depository institution may be ordetedlivest itself of the institution or of
non-bank subsidiaries of the holding company. ‘iCaity undercapitalized” institutions, among otlileings, are prohibited from making any
payments of principal and interest on subordinaisat, and are subject to the appointment of aveceir conservator.

Each federal banking agency prescribes standaratefmsitory institutions and depository institatisolding companies relating to internal
controls, information systems, internal audit systeloan documentation, credit underwriting, ins¢érate exposure, asset growth,
compensation, a maximum ratio of classified agsetapital, minimum earnings sufficient to absarbsles, a minimum ratio of market value to
book value for publicly traded shares and otherddads as they deem appropriate. The FRB and th& lI@@e adopted such standards.

Financial Services Modernization and Other Recent kgislation

The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchinficieihcy Act of 1994 (the “Riegle-Neal Act”) fadilites the interstate expansion and
consolidation of banking organizations by permgtbrank holding companies that are adequately degithand managed to acquire banks
located in states outside their home states, réggrdf whether such acquisitions are authorizettuthe law of the host state. The Rielyieal
Act also permits interstate mergers of banks, wsitime limitations, and the establishment of new ¢iraa on an interstate basis, provided that
such actions are authorized by the law of the biage.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “GLB Actflermits banks, securities firms and insurance comegao affiliate under a common
holding company structure. In addition to allowimgw forms of financial services combinations, tHeBG\ct clarifies how financial services
conglomerates will be regulated by the differemnlefi@l and state regulators. The GLB Act amendetth&BHCA and expanded the permiss
activities of certain qualifying bank holding comrmpes, known as financial holding companies. In &ddito engaging in banking and activities
closely related to banking, as determined by thB BRregulation or order, financial holding compesimay engage in activities that are
financial in nature or incidental to financial atfiies that are complementary to a financial atfiand do not pose a substantial risk to the
safety and soundness of depository institutiorth@ifinancial system generally. Under the GLB Aditfinancial institutions, including the
Company and the Bank, are required to develop gyipalicies, restrict the sharing of non-publictomser data with non-affiliated parties at
the customer’s request, and establish proceduckpraictices to protect customer data from unauthdraccess.

USA Patriot Act

The USA Patriot Act of 2002 (the “Patriot Act”) impes additional obligations on U.S. financial instdbns, including banks and broker-dealer
subsidiaries, to implement policies, proceduresamdrols which are reasonably designed to prewsiéct and report instances of money
laundering and the financing of terrorism. In aiti provisions of the Patriot Act require the feaddinancial institution regulatory agencies to
consider the effectiveness of a financial institnts anti-money laundering activities when reviegvirank mergers and bank holding company
acquisitions.

SarbanesOxley Act of 2002

Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 822d the SEC’s implementing regulations of thmesécollectively, the “Sarbanes-Oxley
Act”), companies that have securities registeredeuthe Exchange Act, including the Company, abgesi to enhanced and more transparent
corporate governance standards, disclosure regeimsnand accounting and financial reporting reeuénets. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, among
other things, (i) requires: a public company t@bksh and maintain audit committees, comprisedlgalf independent directors, which
committee must be empowered to, among other themggage, supervise and discharge the company’tasidhat a public company’s
financial statements be certified by the princigedcutive and principal financial officers of summpany; increased and quicker public
disclosure — real time - obligations by the company its directors and officers, including disclesuof off-balance sheet transactions and
accelerated reporting of transactions in compaogkstand (ii) prohibits personal loans to compamgators and officers, except certain loans
made by insured financial institutions on non-prefiial terms and in compliance with other bankutatpry requirements; and (iii) creates or
provides for various new and increased civil arichizral penalties for violations of the securitiasvk.

Monetary Policy and Economic Control

The commercial banking business is affected not bylgeneral economic conditions, but also by tlemetary policies of the FRB. Change:
the discount rate on member bank borrowing, aviithalof borrowing at the “discount window,” openarket operations, the imposition of
changes in reserve requirements against membesbdeosits
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and assets of foreign branches and the imposifiam@ changes in reserve requirements againstic&darowings by banks and their affiliates
are some of the instruments of monetary policylaiké to the FRB. These monetary policies are us@drying combinations to influence
overall growth and distributions of bank loans,datments and deposits, and this use may affecesiteates charged on loans or paid on
deposits. The monetary policies of the FRB haveasaignificant effect on the operating resultsamhmercial banks and are expected to
continue to do so in the future. The monetary pediof these agencies are influenced by variousfgcincluding inflation, unemployment,
and short-term and long-term changes in the intenmal trade balance and in the fiscal policieshef United States Government. Future
monetary policies and the effect of such policieghe future business and earnings of the Compangat be predicted.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Evans National Financial Services, INcCENFS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company olding company for the financial services
business of the Company, including ENBI.

ENB Insurance Agency, IncENBI, a retail property and casualty insurance aggis a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENFS, formed in
connection with the acquisition of M&W Group, Iran September 1, 2000. ENBI is headquartered in Bndéew York, with offices located
throughout Western New York in Derby, Eden, Gowamtkamburg, Lockport, North Boston, Silver Creeku®oDayton, Cattaraugus,
Randolph and West Seneca. ENBI is a full-servisariance agency offering personal, commercial arahfiial services products. It also has a
small consulting department. For the year endeceBer 31, 2006, ENBI had a premium volume of appnaiely $42.6 million and
commission revenue of $6.5 million.

ENBI’s primary market area is Erie, Chautauquataatigus and Niagara counties. All lines of perkirsairance are provided, including
automobile, homeowner’s, boat, recreational vehlaledlord and umbrella coverages. Commercial gasce products are also provided,
consisting of property, liability, automobile, imid marine, workers compensation, bonds, crop arureita insurance. ENBI also provides the
following financial services products: life and aliglity insurance, Medicare supplements, long teame, annuities, mutual funds, retirement
programs and New York State Disability.

ENBI has a small consulting division which does kvalmost exclusively with school districts. The ordty of the work is done in preparing
specifications for bidding and reviewing existimgurance programs. The majority of the consultcgpants are located in central and eastern
New York.

In the personal insurance area, the majority of EN&mpetition comes from direct writers, as wadlsome small local agencies located in the
same towns and villages in which ENBI has offidagshe commercial business segment, the majorith@ftompetition comes from larger
agencies located in and around Buffalo, New Yornkofering the large number of carriers which istevailable to its customers, ENBI has
attempted to remain competitive in all aspectdobusiness.

ENBI is regulated by the New York State Insuranep&tment. It meets and maintains all licensing@mtinuing education requirements
required by the State of New York.

Frontier Claims Services, Inc. FCS, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBI, providesurance adjusting services for insurance compafi€S
is located in Angola, New York.

ENB Associates IncENB, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ENBI, providesnadeposit investment products, such as mutual fandsannuities,
to Bank customers at Bank branch locations. ENBamasivestment services agreement with O’Keefe Shave., Inc., through which ENB
can purchase and sell securities to its customers.

Evans National Bank.The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Comparhe Bank’s business is described above.

Evans National Leasing, IncENL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, pro\sd#rect financing leasing of commercial small-&tk
general business equipment to companies locatedghout the contiguous 48 United States.

Evans National Holding Corp.ENHC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, hotéstain real estate loans and provides management
services. ENHC is operated as a Real Estate Ineestirust (“REIT”), which provides additional fléoility and planning opportunities for the
business of the Bank.
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ENB Employers Insurance Trust. ENB Employers Insurance Trust is a Delaware trastgany formed for the sole purpose of holding life
insurance policies under the Bank’s bank-owneditifairance program.

Evans Capital Trust I. Evans Capital Trust |, a wholly-owned subsidiaryl® Company, was organized solely to issue ahdeehin
securities representing undivided beneficial irdes®f the Trust and investing the proceeds théreoértain debentures of the Company.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had no daeqtioyees. As of December 31, 2006, the followatgd summarizes the employment
rosters of the Company’s subsidiaries:

Full Time Part Time
Bank 11& 16
ENL 9 —
ENBI 46 4
FCS 4 —
174 20

The Company'’s subsidiaries have good relationshiffstheir employees.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&gports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forkha@id amendments to those rep
filed or furnished by the Company pursuant to ®ecfi3(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, are ava@datithout charge on the Company’s
website, www.evansbancorp.cem SEC filings section, as soon as reasonably walaié after they are electronically filed with arriished to
the SEC. The Company is providing the addresstmternet site solely for the information of int@s. The Company does not intend the
address to be an active link or to otherwise inomafe the contents of the website into this Reporftorm 10-K or into any other report filed
with or furnished to the SEC.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following factors identified by the Company’sinagement represent significant potential riskstttmCompany faces in its operations.

Commercial Real Estate and Commercial Business Le&fxpose the Company to Increased Lending Risks.

At December 31, 2006, the Company’s portfolio ahooercial real estate loans totaled $123.7 millan42.8% of total gross loans and the
Company'’s portfolio of commercial business loartalesl $29.6 million, or 10.2% of total gross loafike Company plans to continue to
emphasize the origination of commercial loans. Cenuial loans generally expose a lender to greatkiof non-payment and loss than one-to
four-family residential mortgage loans becauseyapnt of commercial real estate and business lofies depends on the successful
operations and the income stream of the borrov@rsh loans typically involve larger loan balanaesihgle borrowers or groups of related
borrowers compared to one-to four-family residdntiartgage loans. Also, many of the Company’s bwens have more than one commercial
real estate or commercial business loan outstandithgthe Company. Consequently, an adverse dexredapwith respect to one loan or one
credit relationship can expose the Company to @ifgigntly greater risk of loss compared to an adgalevelopment with respect to a one-to
four-family residential mortgage loan.

Continuing Concentration of Loans in the CompanyRrimary Market Area May Increase the Company’s Risk

The Company’s success depends primarily on thergeaeonomic conditions in western New York Statelike larger banks that are more
geographically diversified, the Company provideskiag and financial services to customers primarilwestern New York State. The
Company’s business lending and marketing stratég@ss on loans to small- to medium-sized busiress¢his geographic region. Moreover,
the Company’s assets are heavily concentrated in
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mortgages on properties located in western New Bate. Accordingly, the Comparmgybusiness and operations are vulnerable to domsitc
the economies of western New York State. The canagon of the Company'’s loans in this geograpkion subjects the Company to risk
that a downturn in the economy or recession inrégon could result in a decrease in loan origamet and increases in delinquencies and
foreclosures, which would more greatly affect tt@@any than if the Company’s lending were more gaglgjcally diversified. In addition,
the Company may suffer losses if there is a dedfiike value of properties underlying the Companybrtgage loans which would have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s operations

In the Event the Compar’s Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses is Not Sci#int to Cover Actual Loan Losses, the Company’siings
Could Decrease.

The Company maintains an allowance for loan anskléasses in order to mitigate the effect of pdedisses inherent in its loan portfolio.
There is a risk that the Company may experiencgfgignt loan and lease losses which could excekediiowance for loan and lease losse:
Company has currently set aside. In determiningtheunt of the Company’s allowance, the Companyasakrious assumptions and
judgments about the collectibility of its loan dedse portfolio, including the creditworthinesstsfborrowers, the effect of changes in the |
economy on the value of the real estate and ofsatsiserving as collateral for the repaymentaridothe effects on the Company’s loan and
lease portfolio of current economic indicators #meir probable impact on borrowers, and the Comjsdogn quality reviews. In addition,

bank regulators periodically review the Compangan and lease portfolio and credit underwritingcpaures, as well as its allowance for loan
and lease losses, and may require the Compangneeise its provision for loan and lease lossesamgnize further loan and lease charge-offs.
At December 31, 2006, the Company had a net loafiofio of approximately $289.1 million and the@Nance for loan and lease losses was
approximately $3.7 million, which represented 1.28Bthe total amount of gross loans and leasdhkelfCompany’s assumptions and
judgments prove to be incorrect or bank regulategsire the Company to increase its provision danland lease losses or recognize fui

loan and lease charge-offs, the Company may hawvetease its allowance for loan and lease lossksa and lease charge-offs which could
have an adverse effect on the Company’s operagimglts and financial condition. There can be narasses that the Compasyallowance fc
loan and lease losses will be adequate to prdted€bmpany against loan and lease losses thayitrroar.

Changes in Interest Rates Could Adversely Affea tBompany’s Business, Results of Operations anddficial Condition.

The Company’s results of operations and finanaaldition may be significantly affected by changemierest rates. The Compaayesults o
operations depend substantially on its net inténestme, which is the difference between the irgeicome earned on its interest-earning
assets and the interest expense paid on its itHeeasing liabilities. Because the Company'’s irgéifgearing liabilities generally re-price or
mature more quickly than its interest-earning ass@t increase in interest rates generally wourld te result in a decrease in its net interest
income.

Changes in interest rates also affect the valueeoCompany’s interest-earning assets, and inqodaiti, the Company’s securities portfolio.
Generally, the value of securities fluctuates ise&r with changes in interest rates. At Decembef806, the Company’s securities available
for sale totaled $133.5 million. Net unrealizedsles on securities available for sale, net of tmqunted to $1.2 million and are reported as a
separate component of stockholderguity. Decreases in the fair value of securitieslable for sale, therefore, could have an adveffeet on
stockholders’ equity or earnings.

The Company also is subject to reinvestment riskeiated with changes in interest rates. Changeddrest rates may affect the average life
of loans and mortgage-related securities. Decréasaterest rates can result in increased prepaysref loans and mortgage-related securities,
as borrowers refinance to reduce borrowing costsledthese circumstances, the Company is subjeetrteestment risk to the extent that it is
unable to reinvest the cash received from suchayrapnts at rates that are comparable to the rategisting loans and securities.

Additionally, increases in interest rates may dasecloan demand and make it more difficult for baers to repay adjustable rate loans.

Strong Competition Within the Compar’'s Market Area May Limit its Growth and Profitabityy.

Competition in the banking and financial serviaseduistry is intense. The Company competes with camialdanks, savings institutions,
mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finanamganies, mutual funds, insurance companies, andélage and investment banking firms
operating locally within the Company’s market aaea elsewhere. Many of these competitors (whetgional or national institutions) have
substantially greater resources and lending lithi#s the Company does, and may offer certain ss\itat the Company does not or cannot
provide. The Company’s profitability depends uptsnciontinued ability to successfully compete irs timarket area.
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The Company Operates in a Highly Regulated Enviroamt and May Be Adversely Affected By Changes in lsseand Regulations.

The Company is subject to regulation, supervisioh @xamination by the OCC, FRB, and by the FDIGnasrer of its deposits. Such
regulation and supervision govern the activitiewirich a bank and its holding company may engageaa@ intended primarily for the
protection of the deposit insurance funds and dépss Regulatory requirements affect the Compalerisling practices, capital structure,
investment practices, dividend policy and growthe3e regulatory authorities have extensive dismréti connection with their supervisory i
enforcement activities, including the impositionrestrictions on the operation of a bank, the diassion of assets by a bank and the adequacy
of a bank’s allowance for loan and lease lossey.dhange in such regulation and oversight, whethére form of regulatory policy,
regulations, or legislation, could have a mateadterse impact on the Bank, the Company and itsiéss, financial condition and results of
operations.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business from its adminiseaiffice and eleven branch offices as of Decen®ier2006. The administrative office is
located at One Grimsby Drive in Hamburg, New Yakd was purchased in June 2004. The administratfice facility is 26,000 square feet
and is owned by the Bank. This facility is occuplgdthe Office of the President and Chief Execu®féicer of the Company, as well as the
Administrative and Loan Divisions of the Bank.

The Bank’s locations are as follows:

Use Location Ownership

Bank branct 14 North Main Street, Angola, N Own building and lani
Bank branct 8599 Erie Road, Evans, N Own building and lan
Bank branct 25 Main Street, Forestville, N Own building and lan
Bank branct 6840 Erie Road, Derby, N Own building and lani
Bank branct 7205 Boston State Road, North Boston, Own building and lani
Bank branct 5999 South Park Avenue, Hamburg, | Building lease

Bank branct 938 Union Road, West Seneca, | Building lease

Bank branct 3388 Sheridan Drive, Amherst, N Own building, lease lan
Bank branct 4979 Transit Road, Lancaster, ! Own building, lease lan
Bank branct 2670 Delaware Avenue, Buffalo, N Own building, lease lan
Bank branch 2800 Niagara Falls Boulevard, Own building, lease land

Tonawanda, N

The Bank also operates in-school branch bankingtfas in the West Seneca East High School, 4760e8a Street, West Seneca, New York
and the West Seneca West High School, 3330 Seneset,SVest Seneca, New York. The in-school braseaeh have a cash dispensing style
ATM located at the sites. There are no lease patgrequired.
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ENBI operates from its headquarters, a 9,300 sdoateoffice located at 16 North Main Street, ArgadNew York, which is owned by the
Bank, and retail locations as follows:

Use Location Ownership

Retail locatior 5 Commercial Street, Angola, N Building lease

Retail locatior 265 Central Avenue, Silver Creek, M Building lease

Retail locatior 11 Main Street, Cattaraugus, I Building lease

Retail locatior 213 Pine Street, South Dayton, ! Building lease

Retail locatior 7 Bank Street, Randolph, N Building lease

Retail locatior 8226 North Main Street, Eden, N Building lease

Retail locatior 25 Buffalo Street, Gowanda, N Own building and lani
Retail locatior 2628 Main Street, Lockport, N Building lease

Retail locatior 6840 Erie Road, Derby, N Bank-owned building and lan
Retail locatior 5999 South Park Avenue, Hamburg, | Bank building leas
Retail locatior 938 Union Road, West Seneca, | Bank building leas:
Retail locatior 7205 Boston State Road, North Boston, Bank-owned building
Retail locatior 796 Fairmount Avenue, Jamestown, | Building lease

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of the Company’s business generategarcamount of litigation involving matters arigiim the ordinary course of business.
However, in the opinion of management of the Comgp#rere are no proceedings pending to which tha@2my is a party or to which its
property is subject, which, if determined adverselguld have a material effect on the Company’sltef operations or financial condition.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote of shareholdiersig the fourth quarter of fiscal 20(

PART Il
Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information. The Company’s common stock is quoted on The NASOGbal Market system (“NASDAQ”) under the symbol
EVBN.

The following table shows, for the periods indichtéhe high and low closing sales prices per sbftke Companys common stock as repor
on NASDAQ for fiscal 2006 and 2005.

2006 2005
QUARTER High Low High Low
FIRST $21.5: $18.6¢ $24.4¢ $20.51
SECOND $23.3¢ $19.6% $24.2¢ $19.7¢
THIRD $23.0( $19.91 $21.91 $20.2¢
FOURTH $22.81 $19.2¢ $23.0( $19.07%

Holders. The approximate number of holders of record ofGeenpany’s common stock at March 12, 2007 was 1,321.
Cash Dividends.The Company paid the following cash dividends caref of the Company’s common stock during fisc@528nd 2006:
. A cash dividend of $0.32 per share on April 4, 2@®50lders of record on March 14, 20
. A cash dividend of $0.33 per share on October 8520 holders of record on September 9, 2!
. A cash dividend of $0.34 per share on April 3, 2@®6olders of record on March 13, 20
. A cash dividend on $0.34 per share on October @6 20 holders of record on September 8, 2
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In addition, the Company declared a cash dividdrRDd4 per share payable on April 2, 2007 to halad record as of March 12, 2007.

The amount and type (cash or stock), if any, aireidividends will be determined by the Companyd&il of Directors and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions arigepfactors considered by the Board of Directorsaaelevant. The Bank pays a dividend to
the Company to provide funds for: debt servicehmnjtinior subordinated debentures, a portion optioeeeds of which were contributed to
Bank as capital; dividends the Company pays; trgastock repurchases; and other Company expenkese Bre also various legal limitations
with respect to the Bank supplying funds to the @any. In particular, under Federal Banking Law, gthier approval of the FRB and OCC
may be required in certain circumstance, priohtgayment of dividends by the Company or Bank.Ns&tes 8 and 19 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Patem 8 to this Report on Form 10-K for additadnnformation concerning contractual and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following Performance Graph compares the Coryipatumulative total stockholder return on its coomstock for a five-year period
(December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2006) with timeutative total return of the NASDAQ Bank Index aMASDAQ Market Index. The
comparison for each of the periods assumes thdl %48 invested on December 31, 2001 in each dftmpany’s common stock, the stocks
included in the NASDAQ Bank Index and the stockduded in the NASDAQ Market Index, and that allidends were reinvested without
commissions. This table does not forecast futureopaance of the Company’s stock.

Compare 5-Year Cumulative Total Return Among
Evans Bancorp, Inc.,
NASDAQ Market Index and NASDAQ Bank Index

: E———
e —
100 —//J//‘/’/’—I——/_‘./

80 \\'//,

[3allars

B0 - } - }
120311 12/31/02 12031103 12/21/04 12031105 12131106
|—i—l-.x'an:i Bancorp, Inc, —l— NASDAQ Composile —@— NASDALQ Hank
Period Ending
Index 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06
Evans Bancorp, In¢ 100.0( 133.1¢ 144.2: 164.57 148.6¢ 146.2(
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 68.7¢ 103.6: 113.1¢ 115.5] 127.5¢
NASDAQ Bank 100.0( 106.9¢ 142.2¢ 161.7: 158.6! 180.5:
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In accordance with and to the extent permitteddplieable law or regulation, the information setliioabove under the heading “Performance
Graph” shall not be incorporated by reference antg future filing under the Securities Act, as adegh or the Exchange Act and shall not be
deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filedith the SEC under the Securities Act or the ExgieaAct.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and fiiated Purchasers.The following table includes all Company repurctsasecluding
those made pursuant to publicly announced plapsagrams during the quarter ended December 31,.2006

Total number of shar Maximum number o
Total numbe Average purchased as part shares that may yet
of shares price paic  publicly announce: purchased unde
Period purchase per shar plans or program the plans or progran
October 2006
(October 1, 2006 through October 31, 20 1,00( $ 21.3i 1,00( 47,71t
November 200t
(November 1, 2006 through November 30, 2C 1,80(C $ 21.07 1,80(C 45,91¢
December 200
(December 1, 2006 through December 31, 2I 80C $ 20.8¢ 80C 45,11°¢
Total 3,60( $ 21.1( 3,60(

All 3,600 shares were purchased in open markesaetions pursuant to the Companyepurchase program. On August 18, 2005, the Con
announced that its Board of Directors had authdrzeew common stock repurchase program, pursoavtiich the Company may repurchi

up to 75,000 shares of the Company’s common steek the next two years, unless the program is teated earlier. This program supersedes
and replaces the Company’s stock repurchase progpanoved by the ComparsyBoard of Directors on October 21, 2003, purstamthich &
maximum of 50,000 shares of common stock were aiztnb for repurchase. The Company did not makerapyrchases during the quarter
ended December 31, 2006, other than pursuantdthilicly announced program, and there were nergihblicly announced plans or
programs outstanding as of December 31, 2006. Tmep@ny has placed such repurchased shares irettsuty and accounts for such shares
on a first-in-first-out basis.
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Item 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

As of and for the year ended December 3

(Dollars in thousands except per share data) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Balance Sheet Dat:
Assets $473,89: $468,54¢ $429,04. $334,67" $288,71:
Interes-earning asset 426,83t 419,97: 391,46 308,72. 267,14.
Investment securitie 137,73( 159,95: 169,87¢ 120,55t 106,67:
Loans and leases, r 285,36° 256,81( 217,59¢ 185,52¢ 148,99¢
Deposits 355,74¢ 336,80¢ 301,92¢ 266,32t 239,50°
Borrowings 60,55¢ 81,79¢ 79,36¢ 25,38¢ 8,111
Stockholder’ equity 39,54 36,87¢ 35,47« 33,32« 30,86:
Income Statement Date
Net interest incom $ 14,84" $ 14,37: $ 12,59] $ 10,84¢ $ 10,39t
Nor-interest incom 10,77: 10,37¢ 8,57: 7,66¢ 5,47¢
Nor-interest expens 17,72¢ 17,40« 14,77¢ 12,73¢ 10,65(
Net income 4,921 4,81¢ 4,50¢ 4,06¢ 3,60¢
Per Share Data
Earnings per shar basic $ 181 $ 177 $ 1.6F $ 151 $ 1.34
Earnings per shar diluted 1.8C 1.77 1.6% 1.51 1.34
Cash dividend 0.6¢ 0.6% 0.61 0.57 0.4¢
Book value 14.4¢ 13.51 13.0¢ 12.3i 11.4%
Performance Ratios
Return on average ass 1.05% 1.05% 1.1%% 1.25% 1.36%
Return on average equi 12.9¢ 13.3¢ 13.13 12.7: 12.5]
Net interest margi 3.5E 3.4¢ 3.5 3.64 4.27
Efficiency ratio * 67.0( 68.2: 68.0( 67.91 66.61
Dividend payout ratic 37.7C 36.5¢ 36.71 37.71 36.1¢
Capital Ratios
Tier | capital to average ass: 8.9(% 8.2% 8.05% 8.3(% 9.3(%
Equity to asset 8.34 7.87 8.27 9.9¢ 10.6¢
Asset Quality Ratios
Total nor-performing assets to total ass 0.15% 0.41% 0.42% 0.27% 0.51%
Total non-performing loans and leases to totaldoan

and lease 0.22 0.7z 0.8z 0.4¢ 0.7¢
Net charg-offs to average loans and lea 0.22 0.23 0.0¢ 0.0t 0.04
Allowance for loan and lease losses to total |cars

leases 1.2¢ 1.2: 1.3¢ 1.3t 1.4z
Allowance for loan and lease losses to non- perifogr

loans and lease 564.8( 171.7! 166.0¢ 276.4. 179.2%

See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiSr@ancial Condition and Results of Operationsyidaltem 8, “Consolidated Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data,” of this Repofform 10-K for further information and analysisahanges in the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations.

* The calculation of the efficiency ratio excludasortization of intangibles and goodwill, for comgidve purposes. The amounts excluded
are $563 thousand, $515 thousand, $385 thousaf#, tiidusand, and $79 thousand for 2006, 2005, ZWBB and 2002, respective

Item 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

This discussion is intended to compare the perfomeaf the Company for the years ended Decembe2(8B, 2005 and 2004. The review of
the information presented should be read in conjonavith Part |, “Item 1: Business” and Part Iltém 6: Selected Financial Data” and
“Item 8: Financial Statements and Supplementargtiéral Data” of this Report on Form 10-K.
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The Company is a financial holding company regétainder the BHCA. During 2004, the Company redegghits corporate structure by
creating a mid-tier wholly-owned subsidiary, ENk&#ich was formed by a dividend in-kind of all okthssets and liabilities of ENBI from the
Bank. The Company currently conducts its businesaugh its two direct wholly-owned subsidiariese 8ank and the Bank’s subsidiaries,
ENL and ENHC; and ENFS and its subsidiaries, EN&l ENB. The Company does not engage in any othmstantial business. Unless the
context otherwise requires, the term “Company”nefe Evans Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The Company’s financial objectives are focused ammiags growth and return on average equity. Oweldst five years, the Company’s
compounded annual net income growth has been 8 h&compounded annual growth rate for net loandapasits for the last five years
were 14.9% and 11.7%, respectively. To sustairréuguowth and to meet the Company’s financial dbjes, the Company has defined a
number of strategies. Five of the more importartsgies include:

. Expanding the Bar's market reach and penetration throug-novo branching and potential acquisitio

. Continuing growth of nc-interest income through insurance agency interr@akth and potential acquisition
. Focusing on profitable customer segme

. Leveraging technology to improve efficiency andtouser service; an

. Maintaining a community based approa

The Company'’s strategies are designed to diretitéhénvestment decisions supporting its finanaiajectives. The Company’s most
significant revenue source continues to be netésténcome, defined as total interest incomeil@ssest expense. Interest income accounted
for approximately 71% of total income in 2006. Trogluce net interest income and consistent eargrmsth over the longerm, the Compan
must generate loan and deposit growth at acceptadtgins within its market of operation. To generahd grow loans and deposits, the
Company must focus on a number of areas includingnot limited to, the economy, branch expanssaies practices, customer and emplc
satisfaction and retention, competition, evolvingtomer behavior, technology, product innovatiatgriest rates, credit performance of its
customers and vendor relationships.

The Company also considers non-interest income iitapbto its continued financial success. Fee iregeneration is partly related to the
Company’s loan and deposit operations, such assiteggvice charges, as well as selling finanaiatlpcts, such as commercial and personal
insurance through ENBI, non-deposit investment potglthrough ENB and private wealth managemenicesthrough a strategic alliance
with Mellon Financial Services Corp.

While the Company reviews and manages all custoami¢s, it has focused increased efforts on fivgeted segments: (1) high value
consumers, (2) smaller businesses with credit needsr $250,000, (3) medium-sized commercial bssieg with credit needs over $250,000
up to $6.2 million, (4) commercial real estate andstruction-related businesses, and (5) divedsi&asing portfolio. These efforts have
resulted in growth in the commercial and leasingfplios, as well as core deposits during fiscad2@nd 2006.

To support growth in targeted customer units, thakBopened two de-novo branches during fiscal 20@#fiscal 2005, and opened a third in
January 2007. With all new and existing branches Gompany has strived to maintain a local commgurased philosophy. The Bank has
emphasized hiring local branch and lending perslonite strong ties to the specific local commurstieenters and serves.

The Company has expanded through acquisition, &glyeia its insurance agency segment, where ENBjuired two agencies in 2006 which
included Fire Service Agency, Inc. and a small bobkusiness from another insurance agency in 28@@itionally, the Company acquired
four companies in 2005 and 2004, including the XrAigency in July 2005, and Ulrich & Company in Cm¢o 2004 and Ellwood and Easy PA
agencies in January 2004. Historically, the Compzas/entered a new market for the insurance agagyent through acquisition of an
existing book of business.

The Bank serves its market through 11 banking effion Western New York, located in Amherst, Ang@larby, Evans, Forestville, Hamburg,
Lancaster, North Boston, West Seneca, North Bufiald Tonawanda. The Company’s principal sourceindihg is through deposits, which it
reinvests in the community in the form of loans anestments. Deposits are insured up to the maxipermitted by the Insurance Fund of
the FDIC. The Bank is regulated by the OCC. The @amy operates in two reportable segments — barddtigities and insurance agency
activities.
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APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The Company’s Consolidated Financial Statementprmeared in accordance with accounting princigkserally accepted in the United
States of America and follow general practices iwithe industries in which it operates. Applicatithese principles requires management to
make estimates, assumptions and judgments that &fie amounts reported in the Company’s Consditi&inancial Statements and Notes.
These estimates, assumptions and judgments are baseformation available as of the date of thesididated Financial Statements.
Accordingly, as this information changes, the Cdidated Financial Statements could reflect diffeérestimates, assumptions and judgments.
Certain policies inherently have a greater reliamtéhe use of estimates, assumptions and judgireemdsas such, have a greater possibility of
producing results that could be materially diffdréran originally reported. Estimates, assumptems judgments are necessary when assets
and liabilities are required to be recorded atvalue, when a decline in the value of an assetawied on the financial statements at fair value
warrants an impairment write-down or valuation resdo be established, or when an asset or ligliéeds to be recorded contingent upon a
future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at\alue inherently results in more financial stagnt volatility. The fair values and the
information used to record valuation adjustmentsctatain assets and liabilities are based eithequmted market prices or are provided by
other third-party sources, when available. Wherdtpiarty information is not available, valuatiorjusiments are estimated in good faith by
management primarily through the use of internahdbow modeling techniques.

The most significant accounting policies followgdthe Company are presented in Note 1 to the Catadetl Financial Statements included in
Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K. These policedsng with the disclosures presented in the ditates to the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements contained in this Report amF0-K and in this financial review, provide infoation on how significant assets and
liabilities are valued in the Company’s Consolidbfénancial Statements and how those values aezndigied.

Based on the valuation techniques used and th&isgyp®f financial statement amounts to the methpassumptions and estimates underlying
those amounts, management has identified the dietation of the allowance for loan and lease lossebvaluation of goodwill to be the
accounting areas that require the most subjectie®mplex judgments, and as such, could be mogtatto revision as new information
becomes available.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses represgmagement’s estimate of probable losses in th&'Bdman and lease portfolio. Determin
the amount of the allowance for loan and leasee&sconsidered a critical accounting estimatab®e it requires significant judgment on the
part of management and the use of estimates reilathé amount and timing of expected future c&shid on impaired loans and leases,
estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loankeases based on historical loss experience anddesaton of current economic trends and
conditions, all of which may be susceptible to igant change. The loan portfolio also represémslargest asset type on the consolidated
balance sheets. Note 1 to the Consolidated FinaBtéements included in Item 8 of this Report onnfr 10-K describes the methodology used
to determine the allowance for loan and lease fsse

Goodwill

The amount of goodwill reflected in the Companyt@nSolidated Financial Statements is required ttebeed by management for impairment
on at least an annual basis. The test for impaitregoodwill on an identified reporting unit ismsidered a critical accounting estimate
because it requires judgment on the part of manageand the use of estimates related to the gragsgbmptions and market multiples used in
the valuation model.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Note 1 to the Compa’s Consolidated Financial Statements includedemiB of this Report on Form 10-K discusses new &g policies
adopted by the Company during fiscal 2006 and fpeeted impact of accounting policies recently éssar proposed but not yet required t
adopted. To the extent management believes theiadayd new accounting standards materially afféisesCompany'’s financial condition,
results of operations, or liquidity, the impacts discussed in the applicable sections of this idameents Discussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operations and the Natékd Company’s Consolidated Financial Statememdsided in Item 8 of this Report on
Form 10-K.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2006 AND DECEMBER 31, 2005
Net Income

Net income of $4.9 million in 2006 consists of $illion related to the Compa’s banking activities and $0.8 million related ket
Company’s insurance agency activities. The totaimeme of $4.9 million or $1.81 per share, basid $1.80 per share, diluted in 2006
compares to $4.8 million or $1.77 per share, basidiluted for 2005.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, the difference between inténemme and fee income on earning assets, suldaas and securities, and interest expt
on deposits and borrowings, provides the primasidfar the Company’s results of operations.

Net interest income is dependent on the amountyiaids earned on interest earning assets as ceahpathe amounts of and rates paic
interest bearing liabilities.

The following table segregates changes in intexasted and paid for the past two years into amattributable to changes in volume and
changes in rates by major categories of assetfiabilities. The change in interest income and exgeedue to both volume and rate has been
allocated in the table to volume and rate chang@sadportion to the relationship of the absolutbad@mounts of the change in each.

2006 Compared to 20( 2005 Compared to 20(
Increase (Decrease) Due Increase (Decrease) Due
(in thousands
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest earned ol
Loans and leas¢ $ 2,30« $ 1,86¢ $ 4,17 $ 2,60 $ 1,75¢ $ 4,35¢
Taxable securitie (803) 34¢ (454) 79¢ 211 1,00¢
Tax-exempt securitie (73 21 (52 (160 (37 (197)
Federal funds sol (11¢) 54 (64) (44) 62 18
Time deposits in other ban 2 2 4 9 2 (11
Total interes-earning assel $ 1,30¢ $ 2,29 $ 3,59 $ 3,18 $ 1,98 $ 517
Interest paid on
NOW account: $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1 $ Q) $ 0
Savings deposil (56) 17¢ 122 61 19z 254
Muni-vest (504) 60C 96 (18¢) 69< 50t
Time deposit: 86& 1,65¢ 2,521 69C 74t 1,43t
Federal funds purchased & ott

borrowings 10 37¢ 38¢ 1,13¢ 12& 1,26¢
Total interes-bearing liabilities $ 31f $ 2,818 $ 3,12¢ $ 1,70: $ 1,75t $ 3,45¢

Net interest income, before the provision for laaud lease losses, increased $0.5 million or 3.3%$d408 million in 2006, as compared

$14.4 million in 2005. The increase in 2006 waslaitable to the increase in average interest-agrassets of $6.1 million, and an increase of
$1.4 million in average interest-bearing liabilkitiever 2005. This increase accounts, as indicat#ikitable above, for an increase in net
interest income due to volume of approximately $tillion. The increase in net interest income dugdlume increase on average earning
assets was $1.3 million. The main factor for theréase in average earning assets was loans awed lmatstanding, which totaled

$268.5 million in 2006, up 13.4% from 2005’s avers$236.8 million.

Total loan and lease growth continues to be driwenommercial loan and lease growth, which incrdds®0%, from $167.8 million average
balance for 2005 to $189.7 million average baldan@906. The success of the Company’s small titdasing subsidiary accounted for 66.0%
or $14.4 million of the total $21.9 million increas) average commercial loans. Consumer loansaserk14.3% from $71.5 million average
balance in 2005 to $81.8 million in 2006.
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The increase of $1.3 million in net interest incotlie to volume increases in average earning assatsffset by a $0.3 million decrease in net
interest income from an increase in average intdrearing liabilities in 2006. The increase in 20@@nterest-bearing liabilities was largely
attributable to an increase of $24.6 million or4P®.in average time deposits from $126.9 millio2@05 to $151.5 million in 2006. The largest
increase in time deposits was in time deposits g0@and over, due to successful bidding on mual@pposits, along with some runoff of
savings and Muni-vest into time deposits.

Additionally, average other borrowed funds, inchglFHLB advances and trust preferred securitiesiedsed 5.9% or by $3.6 million in 2006
compared to 2005.

In addition to changes in the composition of thenpany’s earning assets and interest-bearing fiegs]ichanges in interest rates and spreads
can impact net interest income. Net interest spreathe difference between yield on earning asmedsrate on interest-bearing liabilities, was
3.05% in 2006, down slightly from 3.14% in 2005 €Tyield on interest-earning assets increased 78 pasits from 5.57% in 2005 to 6.35%
in 2006, while the cost of interest-bearing liai®k increased 87 basis points, from 2.43% in 200630% in 2006.

Net interes-free funds consist largely of non-interest-beadegosit accounts and stockholders’ equity, otfgebankewned life insurance at
non-interest-earning assets, including goodwill emtdngible assets. Average net interest-free fiuotdded $63.8 million in 2006 compared to
$59.2 million in 2005. The contribution of net irgst-free funds to net interest margin was 0.5020@6, compared with 0.35% in 2005. This
increase is primarily due to strong growth in notefest bearing demand deposits in 2006.

Reflecting the changes to the net interest spreddree contribution of interest-free funds as déscr above, the Company’s net interest
margin increased from 3.49% during 2005 to 3.55%ndL2006.

During 2006, the FRB continued to take steps toeiase the level of interest rates by increasingatechmark overnight federal funds target
rate by 100 basis points during the first six maragh2006. The Company believes the continued tsffoy the FRB to mitigate potential
inflation through raising short-term interest ratehich has flattened the treasury yield curvel @ohtinue to challenge the Company’s net
interest margin in 2007.

The Bank regularly monitors its exposure to interate risk. Management believes that the properagement of interest-sensitive funds will
help protect the Bank’s earnings against extrena@gés in interest rates. The Bank’s Asset/LiabMignagement Committee (“ALCQO”) meets
monthly for the purpose of evaluating the Bank’srstiange and long-range liquidity position and plogéential impact on capital and earnings
as a result of changes in interest rates. The Barladopted an asset/liability policy that spesifrénimum limits for liquidity and capital
ratios. This policy includes setting ranges for tiegative impact acceptable on net interest incantkeon the fair value of equity as a result
shift in interest rates. The asset/liability poladgo includes guidelines for investment activiaes funds management. At its monthly meeti
ALCO reviews the Banls status and formulates its strategies based serduwconomic conditions, interest rate forecdsts) demand, depo:
volatility and the Bank’s earnings objectives.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses

The allowance for loan and lease losses repretfem@mmount charged against the Bank’s earningstédksh a reserve or allowance sufficient
to absorb probable loan and lease losses base@agement’s evaluation of the Bank’s loan portfdiactors considered by the Bank’s
management in establishing the allowance includetilectibility of individual loans, current lomoncentrations, charge-off history,
delinquent loan percentages, input from regulagggncies and general economic conditions.

On a quarterly basis, management of the Bank nteetview and determine the adequacy of the alleedar loan and lease losses. In mal
this determination, the Bank’s management analgzesiltimate collectibility of the loans in the Bés portfolio by considering feedback
provided by internal loan staff, the Bank’s loawiesv function and information provided by examioat performed by regulatory agencies.

The analysis of the allowance for loan and leassds is composed of three components: specifidt @léatation, general portfolio allocation
and a subjectively determined allocation. The djgeciedit allocation includes a detailed revieweafch loan in accordance with SFAS

No. 114,“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loaarid No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairnhefia Loan — Income
Recognition and Disclosure,” and an allocation elmbased on this analysis. The general portféboation consists of an assigned reserve
percentage based on the internal credit ratingolfiédoan, using the Bank’s historical loss expeeand industry loss experience where the
Bank does not have adequate or relevant experience.

31




Table of Contents

The subjective portion of the allowance reflectsyagement’s current assessment of the New York StatéVestern New York economies.
Both have lagged behind national prosperity, witichtinues to remain unsettled. Marginal job grovrhzonjunction with a declining
population base, has left the Bank’s primary mankete susceptible to potential credit problemssThiparticularly true of commercial
borrowers. Commercial loans represent a segmesigoificant past growth, as well as an area of eatration in the Bank’s real estate
portfolio. Commercial real estate values may beapible to decline in an adverse economy. The Bamianagement believes that the Bank’s
loan and lease loss allowance complies with UrBiedes Generally Accepted Accounting Principlesragalations promulgated by the OCC,
and is reflective of its assessment of the localrenment, as well as a continued growth trendammercial loans. For further information,
Note 1 to the Compar's Consolidated Financial Statements includedemiB of this Report on Form 10-K.

The Company’s provision for loan and lease lossas $1..1 million and $0.8 million in 2006 and 206&spectively. Total non-performing
loans amounted to $0.7 million and $1.9 milliorDacember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The following table provides an analysis of th@atnce for loan and lease losses, the total ofgehaffs, non-performing loans and total
allowance for loan and lease losses as a perceatagtal loans outstanding for the five years ehBDecember 31:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands
Balance, beginning of ye $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢ $ 1,78¢
Provisions for loan and lease los 1,12¢ 76¢ 48t 48( 42(
Addition to allowance from acquisitic — — 13C — —
Recoveries 19¢ 11¢€ 60 8 16
Loans and leases charged (79¢) (67E (215 (95) (76)
Balance, end of ye: $ 3,73¢ $ 3,217 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢ $ 2,14¢
Net charg-offs to total loans and leas 0.21% 0.21% 0.07% 0.05% 0.04%
Non-performing loans and leases to total loans ana& 0.22% 0.72% 0.82% 0.4%% 0.7%
Allowance for loan and lease losses to total |cants
leases 1.2% 1.22% 1.36% 1.35% 1.42%

An allocation of the allowance for loan and leasgses by portfolio type over the past five yealigfies (dollars in thousands):

Percen Percen Percent c Percent ¢ Percent ¢
Balance  of loans Balance of loans Balance loans in Balance loans in Balance loans in
at in each at in each at each at each at each
12/31/200¢ categorn 12/31/200f categon 12/31/200¢ category 12/31/200: category 12/31/2002 category
Attributable  to total Attributable  to total Attributable  to total Attributable  to total Attributable  to total
to: loans: to: loans: to: loans to: loans to: loans
Real estate Loar $ 1,55¢ 76.1% $ 1,46 80.2% $ 1,76¢ 82.5% $ 1,61¢ 85.1% $ 844 84.6%
Commercial Loan 88¢ 10.2% 851 11.59% 61¢& 13.(% 384 12.%% 25¢ 13.5%
Consumer Loan 19z 1.1% 182 1.1% 187 1.2% 147 1.4% 72 1.€%
All other Loans 40 1.6% 34 0.5% — 1.1% — 0.€% — 0.2%
Direct financing lease 90t 11.(% 47C 6.5% 13C 2.1% — —% — —%
Unallocatec 157 —% 21C —% 29€ —% 38¢ —% 971 —%
Total $ 3,73¢ 100.% $ 3,211 100.(% $ 2,99¢ 100.(% $ 2,53¢ 100.(% $ 2,14¢ 100.(%

Both the total increase in allowance for loan aabk losses and allocation of the allowance to agial loans and direct financing leases are
in response to the higher risk associated withirtbeease in commercial loans and direct financeagés. The increased allowance to
commercial categories addresses the Bank’s stcatiegision to continue growing this product, aslaslthe local economy, which has lagged
the national economy. Commercial loans are more
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susceptible to decreases in credit quality in cgtldownturns and the larger individual balancesamhmercial loans expose the Bank to larger
losses. The increased allowance for direct finant@ases is in response to the growth of that plastlluring 2006, following the December .
2004 acquisition of M&C Leasing by ENL. Similar¢commercial loans, direct financing leases are qi#ae to decreases in credit quality in
cyclical downturns in the economy. The direct ficiawg lease portfolio increased to $31.7 millionldr0% of total loans at December 31, 2006
from $16.9 million or 6.5% of total loans at DeceanBB1, 2005.

The allowance for loan and lease losses is basedamagement’s estimate, and ultimate losses wijl fram current estimates. Factors
underlying the determination of the allowance fmarl and lease losses are continually evaluateddmagement based on changing market
conditions and other known factors. Some factoedging the allocation of loan losses have changetD06 as a result of the evaluation of
underlying risk factors within each loan categdrigze underlying methodology to determine the adegoéthe allowance for loan losses is
consistent with prior years.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income increased approximatély $nillion or 3.8% in 2006 over 2005. This compi@ an increase of approximately
$1.9 million or 21.8% in 2005 over 2004. As ENBImages to a soft premium insurance market, its tevevas up slightly to $6.5 million, o
$0.1 million increase from 2005. The largest comgarof the increase in non-interest income wastdudiee increased activity in leasing. Fees
from leasing increased $0.2 million or 104% comgare2005. These fees include mainly late charge &nd early rental fees collected.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased approxim&@[§ million or 1.9% in 2006 over 2005. The ratfmon-interest expense to average assets
was 3.79% in 2006 compared to 3.80% in 2005. Tigek increase in non-interest expense was indlagiss and employee benefits line,
which increased $0.3 million, or 3.6%, in companiso 2005. The Tonawanda branch of the Bank, ise@éoan staffing, ENBI acquisitions
and merit increases contributed to the increaskdyseosts. Notably, the leasing operations adagdgnnel to accommodate the growth
experienced in 2006, as well as incentives pakNa personnel based on performance.

Occupancy and repair and maintenance expense sectegproximately $0.1 million or 2.7% from 200206, primarily due to ENBI's
acquisition growth in both fiscal 2006 and a fudlay of expense for those acquisitions made in 2005.

Professional services expense decreased $0.1mitlidl5.0%, in 2006 over 2005, mainly due to serfor a revenue enhancement and
incentive compensation project in 2005 which ditl oecur in 2006.

Other expenses increased $0.1 million or approxma&.3% in 2006. Expenses associated with Intdsaeking, ATM expense, telephone and
data line costs, postage costs, maintenance ocldgexl properties and correspondent bank servieggeh fall under miscellaneous expenses.
The increase reflects other transaction-based egsarlated to the increased size and volume ddhé&’s business.

Amortization of intangibles has increased approxatya$0.1 million, reflecting the two insurance agg acquisitions completed 2006.

Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2006 of $1.8 imillreflects an effective tax rate of approximat2#2%. This compares to $1.8 million or
26.8% in 2005. The increase in effective tax rataainly a result of decreased investment in taraathged municipal bonds as the Company
has shifted those funds to higher yielding loardpads. The proposed 2007 New York State budgetbiitains a provision that would contit

to allow banks with assets under $2 billion thelesion of dividends paid by a Real Estate Investnienst subsidiary (“REIT”). Until the bill

is enacted as proposed, the Company could losaxheenefit associated with the REIT if the ledisiais changed to exclude the deduction. If
the deduction is lost in the budget, the Company h@ave to increase the 2007 tax provision by apprately $0.2 million as compared to
2006 beginning in the first quarter of 2007.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2005 AND DECEMBER 31, 2004
Net Income

Net income of $4.8 million in 2005 consists of $mdlion related to the Compa’s banking activities and $0.8 million related ket
Company’s insurance agency activities. The totaimeme of $4.8 million or $1.77 per share, basid diluted in 2005 compares to
$4.5 million or $1.65 per share, basic and dildted2004.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income, before the provision for laaud lease losses, increased $1.8 million or 14dl$d 4.4 million in 2005, as compared
$12.6 million in 2004. The increase in 2005 waslaitable to the increase in average inteezsting assets of $54.7 million, and an increa
$52.9 million in average interest-bearing liabditiover 2004. This increase accounts for an ineneaset interest income due to volume of
approximately $1.5 million. The increase in neenatt income due to volume increase on averagégaaasets was $3.2 million. The two
most significant factors for the increase in averagrning assets included higher average secuaitg$oans outstanding, which totaled
$170.5 million and $236.8 million in 2005, up 11.2¥%d 20.4%, respectively, from 2004’s averagesléP$7 million and $196.7 million.

Non-Interest Income

Total non-interest income increased approximatélg $nillion or 21.1% in 2005 over 2004. This comgsato an increase of approximately
$0.9 million or 11.8% in 2004 over 2003. Bank seevtharge income in 2005 increased $0.2 milliorr 8084, mainly as a result of higher
overdraft fee income.

Insurance fee revenue in 2005 increased $1.3 midicer 2004. The increased insurance fee revenarimarily the result of a full year of
income from an acquisition on October 1, 2004.

Additionally, there was $0.2 million in fee incorfrem ENL, which was acquired on December 31, 2@1 million in life insurance
proceeds from a former director; and a $0.2 millierease in bank owned life insurance in 2005.

Non-Interest Expense

Total non-interest expense increased approxim&ky million or 17.8% in 2005 over 2004. The ratfcmoninterest expense to average as
was 3.80% in 2005 compared to 3.76% in 2004. Neerést expense categories include those most iegbagt branch expansion, the ENL
acquisition and the increased operations of ENR tuacquisitions: salaries and benefits, occupaadyertising, and supplies, among others.
Salary and benefit expense increased 17.8% dufifi§ @ver 2004. Of the $1.4 million increase in saknd benefit expense in 2005 over
2004, the Bank’s operations represented approxlyndfie0 million, of which $0.4 million was relateéd the ENL acquisition, and ENBI
represented approximately $0.4 million. The NortiffBlo branch of the Bank, ENL, increased loanfsigf ENBI expansion and merit
increases contributed to the increased salary.chsesfirst full operating year of an acquisitiomish was acquired on October 1, 2004,
contributed to ENBI's increased salary and berefftense in 2005.

Occupancy and repair and maintenance expense sectegproximately $0.3 million or 12.8% from 200642005, primarily due to ENBI's
acquisition growth and the Bank’s new branch intN@uffalo, and the first full operating year okthew administrative offices in Hamburg,
New York.

Professional services expense increased $0.3 miio34.3%, in 2005 over 2004, mainly due to smwifor revenue enhancement and
incentive compensation, among other projects.

Other expenses increased $0.4 million or approxndi4.0% in 2005. Expenses associated with Intdraeking, ATM expense, telephone
and data line costs, postage costs, maintenanfigexiosed properties, director fees and correspanidank service charges fall under
miscellaneous expenses. The increase reflects érmesaction-based expenses related to the inctes@s®and volume of the Bank’s business.

Amortization of intangibles has increased approxétya$0.1 million, reflecting the three insuran@eacy acquisitions completed in 2004 and
one in 2005.
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Taxes

The provision for income taxes in 2005 of $1.8 iwillreflects an effective tax rate of approximat28/8%. This compares to $1.4 million or
23.6% in 2004. The increase in effective tax ratmainly a result of decreased investment in taxaathged municipal bonds as the Company
has shifted those funds to higher yielding loardpats.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company had total assets of $473.9 millionetdnber 31, 2006, an increase of $5.3 million d¥lover $468.5 million at December 31,
2005. Net loans of $285.4 million increased 11.19%28.6 million over 2005. Securities decreased $2dllion or 13.9% from 2005. Depos
grew by $18.9 million or 5.6%. Stockholders’ equitgreased $2.7 million or 7.2%. Net unrealizedésson investment securities held by the
Bank of $2.1 million at December 31, 2005 decreasigthtly $0.1 million in 2006 to a net unrealizeds of $2.0 million at December 31,
2006.

Loans

Loans comprised 64.2% and 57.5% of the Companyes éwverage earning assets in 2006 and 2005, riasglgcActual year-end balances
increased 11.1% in 2006, as compared to an incds®0% in 2005. The Company continues to fotaigending on commercial and
residential mortgages, commercial loans, home gdpgins and direct financing leases. Commerciatgages make up the largest segment of
the portfolio at 42.8% of total loans. Residentredrtgages comprise 20.0% of the loan portfolio &r3%6 are home equity loans. Other
commercial loans account for 10.2% of outstandaams. Commercial loans total $29.6 million at Deloen81, 20086, reflecting a 1.1% or
$0.3 million decrease in 2006 over 2005. Resident@tgages totaled $57.7 million at December 30, reflecting an 18.8% or $9.1 million
increase in 2006 over 2005. Prior to fiscal 200digaificant portion of fixed rate residential ngages originated were sold to the secondary
market in order to minimize interest rate riskhie Bank’s portfolio. In 2005 and 2006, the Banlgiorated and retained fixed rate residential
real estate loans with shorter maturities, refltecthe improving interest rate environment.

At December 31, 2006, the Bank had a loan/depatd of 81.3%. This compares to a loan/deposiorati77.2% at December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2006, the Bank retained the sergioghts to $28.7 million in long-term mortgageédsto the FNMA. This compares to a
loan servicing portfolio principal balance of $28adlion at December 31, 2005. The arrangementttimBank has with FNMA allows it to
offer long-term mortgages without exposure to tesoaiated interest rate risks, while retaining@ostr account relationships. In 2006 and
2005, the Bank sold loans to FNMA totaling approaiaty $2.6 million and $2.5 million, respectively.

Securities and Federal Funds Sold

Securities and federal funds sold made up 35.8#eBank’s total average interest earning asse2806 compared to 42.5% in 2005. These
categories provide the Bank with additional soudguidity and income. The Bank’s securities fiaifo outstanding balances declined
13.9% in 2006 from 2005. The Bank continues to helarge concentration in tax-advantaged munidpads, which make up 30.9% of the
portfolio at December 31, 2006 versus 29.3% at Bsezr 31, 2005; U.S. government-sponsored mortgagkeldl securities, which make up
43.8% of the portfolio at December 31, 2006 versud % at December 31, 2005; and U.S. governmemssped agency bonds of various
types, which comprise 22.5% of the total at Decan3fie 2006 versus 22.9% at December 31, 2005. Asraber of both the Federal Reserve
System and the Federal Home Loan Bank, the Bardqisired to hold stock in those entities. Thesestments made up 2.8% of the portfolio
at December 31, 2006 versus 2.7% of the portfdliDdecember 31, 2005. The credit quality of the sées portfolio is believed to be strong,
with 96.9% of the securities portfolio carrying thguivalent of a Moody’s rating of AAA.

Since 2004, the largest security portfolio concaiin has been Government-sponsored mortgage-baekeqities. The Bank determined the
benefit of cash flows from mortgage-backed sea@sitiffers benefits in the current interest ratdrenment.

All fixed and adjustable rate mortgage pools cantacertain amount of risk related to the uncetyaifi prepayments of the underlying
mortgages. Interest rate changes have a directingpgorepayment rates. The Company uses a thitg-paveloped computer simulation
model to monitor the average life and yield voitibf mortgage pools under various interest rasuanptions.
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Federal funds sold balances are largely maintdimelifjuidity purposes. The average balance maietgiin federal funds sold declined in 2006
to 0.3% of total average earning assets from 1r20D5. At December 31, 2006, the Company wadsé@aeral funds purchased position of
$24.8 million, which is reported as part of “otterrowed funds” on the Company’s Consolidated BegaBheets included under ltem 8 of this
Report on Form 10-K.

The Company manages its available for sale seesiibrtfolio on a total return basis. Managemeglaly reviews the performance of the
Company'’s securities and sells specific securtbesnhance net interest income and net intereggimarhe Company realized $0.1 million in
net gains on these sales in 2006 and $0.1 miltiaret gains in 2005.

SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investmemt®iebt and Equity Securities,” outlines accountingl reporting requirements for
investment securities. The Company designategallrties at the time of purchase as either “helchaturity” or “available for sale.”

Securities designated as held to maturity aredstantehe Compang’ Consolidated Balance Sheets included under Itefrit8s Report on For
10-K at amortized cost. Those designated as avaifabsale are reported at fair market value. &t@mber 31, 2006, $4.2 million in securities
were designated as held to maturity. These borelpranarily municipal investments that the Bank hesle in its local trade area.

The available for sale portfolio totaled $133.5limil or approximately 96.9% of the Bank’s secustportfolio at December 31, 2006. Net
unrealized gains and losses on available for salerities resulted in a net unrealized loss of $illon at December 31, 2006, as compared to
a loss of $2.1 million at December 31, 2005. Uriredl gains and losses on available for sale sésidtre reported, net of taxes, as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. At December2BD6, the impact to equity was a net unrealizes tdsapproximately $1.2 million.

Management has assessed the securities availaldaléoin an unrealized loss position at Decemtef806 and determined the decline in fair
value below amortized cost to be temporary. In mgkhis determination, management considered thedef time the securities were in a
loss position, the percentage decline in compariedhe securities amortized cost, the financialdition of the issuer (primarily government
government-sponsored enterprises) and the Compabiliy and intent to hold these securities uthidir fair value recovers to their amortized
cost. Management believes the decline in fair vadyimarily related to market interest rate fluations and not to the credit deterioration of
the individual issuer.

Deposits

Total deposits increased $18.9 million or 5.6% @& over 2005. The most significant source of fagdor the Company is core deposits. (
deposit funding consists of non-interest bearingodés, NOW accounts, savings deposits, Muni-\asd, time deposits under $100,000. Core
deposits increased $3.6 million in 2006 over 2008&eases of $3.7 million, $1.6 million, and $0.8lion in Muni-vest, time deposits under
$100,000, and demand deposits, respectively, wiésetdy decreases in NOW and savings of $1.1 onilind $1.5 million, respectively. The
result of higher balances in time deposits ovelO$1@0 was partially due to customer response todniqterest rates offered on time deposits,
resulting in a shift of funds from savings to tiheposits.

Certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 iaseel 23.5% to $80.2 million at December 31, 20061{$64.9 million at December 31, 2005.
These funds are generally not considered core depbkany of these deposits are obtained from mipalities through the competitive biddi
process. The large increase in these depositisodiine Banlks successful bidding on large municipal funds. €fesds are normally at a cc
of funds less than borrowings.

Pension

The Company maintains a qualified defined benefitgion plan, which covers substantially all empésyeddditionally, the Company has
entered into individual retirement agreements wéhain of its executive officers providing for unfled supplemental pension benefits under
the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirememi Rl “SERP”). The Company’s pension expensetferdiefined benefit pension plan,
and the SERP, approximated $0.7 million, $0.6 onilland $0.5 million for each of the years endeddbdzer 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and is calculated based upon a nuoflestuarial assumptions, including an expected{term rate of return on the Company’s
plan assets of 7.50% for 2006, 2005 and 2004; cosgi®n rate increases of 4.75% for 2006, 20052894 for the defined benefit pension
plan and 5.00% in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for the SERP.

The expected long-term rate of return on pensian pksets assumption was determined based oridasteturns earned by equity and fixed
income securities, adjusted to reflect future meexpectations based on pension plan targeted aksetion. In evaluating compensation rate
increases, the Company evaluated historical sakty as well as expected future increases. The @uynpill continue to evaluate its actuarial
assumptions, including its expected rate of returth compensation rate increases at least annaatiywill adjust as necessary.
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The Company bases its determination of pensionresger income on a market-related valuation oftassénich reduces year-to-year

volatility. This market-related valuation recogrézavestment gains or losses over a three-yeangp&om the year in which they occur.
Investment gains or losses for this purpose arélifference between the expected return calculasiny the market-related value of assets and
the actual return based on the market-related \aflagsets. Since the market-related value of sissebgnizes gains or losses over a three-yea
period, the future value of assets will be impactegreviously deferred gains or losses are redorde

The discount rate utilized by the Company for dateing future pension obligations is based on demg\of longierm bonds that receive one
the two highest ratings given by a recognized gatigency. The discount rate determined on thishes increased from 5.50% at
September 30, 2005, for purposes of the Comparefiaetl benefit pension plan and at December 315 2fo® purposes of the SERP, both of
which are the measurement dates, to 5.75% for fdatis at September 30, 2006 and December 31, Bégliectively.

Liquidity

The Company utilizes cash flows from its investmaortfolio and federal funds sold balances to marthg liquidity requirements it
experiences due to loan demand and deposit flichgatThe Bank also has many borrowing optionsaAsember of the FHLB, the Bank is
able to borrow funds at competitive rates. Advarafagp to $45.0 million can be drawn on the FHLR the Bank’s Overnight Line of Credit
Agreement. An amount equal to 25% of the Bank’altassets could be borrowed through the advanagares under certain qualifying
circumstances. The Bank also has the ability talmase up to $10.0 million in federal funds from ohés correspondent banks. By placing
sufficient collateral in safekeeping at the Fed&waserve Bank, the Bank could also borrow at thB’&Riscount window. Additionally, the
Bank has access to capital markets as a fundingeou

The cash flows from the investment portfolio amddiered, so that securities mature at regular iateyto provide funds from principal and
interest payments at various times as liquiditydsemay arise. Contractual maturities are also lstavith consideration as to the volatility of
market prices, so that securities are availablesdte from time-to-time without the need to incign#ficant losses. At December 31, 2006,
approximately 9.0% of the Bank’s securities hadurit dates of one year or less, and approxima8l%% had maturity dates of five years or
less. At December 31, 2006, the Bank had net gbort-liquidity of $21.6 million as compared to $18nillion at December 31, 2005.
Available assets of $138.6 million, less public gudchased funds of $173.6 million, resulted inregterm liquidity ratio of 80% at

December 31, 2006, versus 90% at December 31, 2005.

Management, on an ongoing basis, closely monitm<mpany’s liquidity position for compliance wititernal policies, and believes that
available sources of liquidity are adequate to maading needs in the normal course of businessidgament does not anticipate engaging in
any activities, either currently or the long-teffor, which adequate funding would not be availalvld ould therefore result in significant
pressure on liquidity.

Liquidity needs can also be met by more aggressietsuing municipal deposits, which are normailkaeded on the basis of competitive
bidding. The Bank maintains a sufficient level d overnment and government agency securities amdYork State municipal bonds that
can be pledged as collateral for these deposits.

Contractual Obligations

The Company is party to contractual financial cdligns, including repayment of borrowings, opemtiase payments and commitments to
extend credit. The table below presents certauréufinancial obligations.

Payments due within time period at December 31,200
(in thousands

Due After
0-12 Month: 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years Total
Securities sold under agreement to repurc $ 8,95/ $ — $ — $ — $ 8,95/
Operating lease obligatiol 47¢ 907 70¢ 4,211 6,30¢
Other borrowed fund 27,50¢ 8,721 — 13,00( 49,22¢
Junior subordinated debentu — — — 11,33( 11,33(
Total $ 36,94( $ 9,62¢ $ 70¢ $28,54! $75,81¢
Interest expense on fixed rate d $ 73¢ $ 1,347 $ 901 $ 882 $ 3,86:
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The Company'’s variable rate debt included in otl@rowed funds is related to sheetm funding which is used only to cover seasounatling
needs, which are undeterminable for a particular.ye

At December 31, 2006, the Company had commitmengstend credit of $68.1 million compared to $6&i8ion at December 31, 2005. For
additional information regarding future financiainsmitments, this disclosure should be read in amtjan with Note 15 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements included in I8ofi this Report on Form 10-K.

Capital

The Company and Bank have consistently maintaiegdlatory capital ratios at, or above, well capitad standards. For further detail on
capital and capital ratios, see Note 19 to the Gomijs Consolidated Financial Statements includetkuttem 8 of this Report on Form 10-K.

Total Company stockholders’ equity was $39.5 millat December 31, 2006, up from $36.9 million at&weber 31, 2005. Equity as a
percentage of assets was 8.3% at December 31, e0®ared to 7.9% at December 31, 2005. Book yauehare of common stock rose to
$14.46 at December 31, 2006, up from $13.51 at Dbee 31, 2005.

Included in stockholders’ equity was accumulatdteotomprehensive income which reflects the net-aétx impact of unrealized gains or
losses on investment securities classified asahailfor sale. Net unrealized losses were $1.2anjlbr $0.43 per share of common stock, at
December 31, 2006, as compared to net unrealized ga available-for-sale investment securitie$h8 million, and $0.47 per share of
common stock, at December 31, 2006. Such unredlimsgs are generally due to changes in interestt aand represent the difference, net of
applicable income tax effect, between the estimtigd/alue and amortized cost of investment s¢iesriclassified as available-for-sale.

The Company paid cash dividends per share of constomk of $0.68 in 2006 and $0.65 in 2005. Theddimd payout is continually reviewed
by management and the CompanBoard of Directors. The dividend payout ratiojehirepresents cash dividends paid, divided byneme,
was 37.70% and 36.58% for the years 2006 and 288pectively.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changemarket prices and/or interest rates of thekBafimancial instruments. The primary
market risk the Company is exposed to is interast risk. The core banking activities of lendingl @eposit-taking expose the Bank to interest
rate risk, which occurs when assets and liabilitgeprice at different times and by different amisuas interest rates change. As a result, net
interest income earned by the Bank is subjectéeetfects of changing interest rates. The Bank oreasnterest rate risk by calculating the
variability of net interest income in the futureripels under various interest rate scenarios usiopegted balances for interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities. Management's géiphy toward interest rate risk management isrtiv the variability of net interest income.
The balances of financial instruments used in tlogeptions are based on expected growth from fatedsbusiness opportunities, anticipated
prepayments of loans and investment securitieseapdcted maturities of investment securities, laardsdeposits. Management supplements
the modeling technique described above with théyaisaof market values of the Bank’s financial nishents and changes to such market
values given changes in interest rates.

The Bank’s Asset-Liability Committee, which incladmembers of the Bank’s senior management, mortherBank’s interest rate sensitivity
with the aid of a computer-based model that comsittee impact of ongoing lending and deposit gatigeaictivities, as well as the
interrelationships between the magnitude and timintdpe re-pricing of financial instruments, incing the effect of changing interest rates on
expected prepayments and maturities. When deenuelémt; the Bank’s management has taken actionggemts to do so in the future, to
mitigate the Bank’s exposure to interest rate tiiskugh the use of on—or off-balance sheet findmegruments. Possible actions include, but
are not limited to, changes in the pricing of l@ed deposit products, modifying the compositiomtdrest-earning assets and interest-bearing
liabilities, and other financial instruments usedihterest rate risk management purposes.
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SENSITIVITY OF NET INTEREST INCOME
TO CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

Calculated (decrease) incre:
in projected annual net interest inco
(in thousands

Changes in interest rat December 31, 200 December 31, 200
+200 basis point $(859) $(777)
+100 basis point (424) (386)
-100 basis point 37¢ 337
-200 basis point 551 54z

Many assumptions are utilized by the Bank to calimuthe impact that changes in interest rates raag on net interest income. The more
significant assumptions related to the rate of gyepents of mortgage-related assets, loan and deqobsines and pricing, and deposit
maturities. The Bank also assumes immediate changases, including 100 and 200 basis point ratenges. In the event that a 100 or 200
basis point rate change cannot be achieved, tHeable rate changes are limited to lesser amowgnts) that interest rates cannot be less than
zero. These assumptions are inherently uncertaipana result, the Bank cannot precisely pred&impact of changes in interest rates on net
interest income. Actual results may differ sigrafitly due to the timing, magnitude, and frequenfcpterest rate changes in market conditions
and interest rate differentials (spreads) betweaturity/re-pricing categories, as well as any atjsuch as those previously described, which
management may take to counter such changeshindfghe uncertainties and assumptions associitbdhe process, the amounts presented
in the table, and changes in such amounts, areomsidered significant to the Bank’s projectedinrest income.

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risbacember 31, 2006 included $21.2 million in ubdised lines of credit at an average
interest rate of 8.1%; $18.0 million in fixed rdd@n origination commitments at 6.6%; $21.1 millioradjustable rate loan origination
commitments at 7.5%; and $2.5 million in adjustahle letters of credit at an approximate average af 9.0%.

The following table represents expected maturitieisterest-bearing assets and liabilities andrtbeiresponding average interest rates.

Expected maturity

year ended Fair

December 31, 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Value
(dollars in thousand:

Interest-Assets

Net loans receivabl $ 29,78¢ $14,531 $23,07¢ $22,12: $17,91¢ $177,92¢ $285,36° $281,52(
Average interes 8.7¢% 10.5%% 10.22% 10.2%% 9.4(% 6.7€% 7.88% 7.88%
Investment securitie 12,39¢ 11,33¢ 8,43: 8,23: 5,80z 91,53 137,73( 137,73(
Average interes 3.65% 3.66% 3.96% 4.32% 4.1&% 4.61% 4.3%% 4.3%%
Interest — Liabilities

Interest bearing depos 249,74! 21,11¢ 5,792 53¢ 6,427 6 283,62 284,45:
Average interes 3.27% 4.42% 5.4€% 4.0(% 4.22% 7.5(% 3.42% 3.42%

Borrowed funds &
Securities sold under
agreements to

repurchast 36,46 66¢ 8,052 — — 13,00( 58,18 57,09:
Average interes 4.02% 3.22% 3.11% — — 3.4% 3.71% 3.71%
Junior subordinate

debenture: — — — — — 11,33( 11,33( 11,33(
Average interes — — — — — 8.02% 8.02% 8.02%

When rates rise or fall, the market value of thenany’s rate-sensitive assets and liabilities iases or decreases. As a part of the Company’
asset/liability policy, the Company has set linidas on the negative impact to the market valuigsdalance sheet that would be acceptable.
The Bank’s securities portfolio is priced monthhydaadjustments are made on the balance sheeteotrife market value of the available for
sale portfolio per SFAS No. 115, “Accounting forr@én Investments in Debt and Equity Securitiest’ D&cember 31, 2006, the impact to
equity, net of tax, as a result of marking ava#afor sale securities to market was an unrealiassl f $1.2 million. On a monthly basis, the
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available for sale portfolio is shocked for immedieate increases of 200 basis points. At Dece®bg2006, the Company determined it wc
take an immediate increase in rates in excess@basis points to eliminate the current capitah@usin excess of regulatory requirements.
The Company’s and the Bank’s capital ratios are edgiewed on a quarterly basis.

Capital Expenditures

Planned expenditures include replacing a numb&rabinology upgrades to the system, replacing adihg&utomated teller machines (ATN
and miscellaneous other facility improvements tisting locations. The Company believes it has &icant capital base to support these
known and potential capital expenditures of appr@tely $0.7 million with current assets.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

There will continually be economic events, suclelzanges in the economic policies of the FRB th#itheve an impact on the profitability of
the Company. Inflation may result in impaired aggetvth, reduced earnings and substandard capttakr The net interest margin can be
adversely impacted by the volatility of interesesathroughout the year. Since these factors doeawn, management attempts to structure the
balance sheet and re-pricing frequency of assetdiailities to avoid a significant concentratitirat could result in a negative impact on
earnings.

Segment Information

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. I'Bisclosures About Segments of an Enterprise arldtBe Information,” the Company’s
reportable segments have been determined basedtapoternal profitability reporting system, whiele comprised of banking activities and
insurance agency activities.

The banking activities segment includes all ofdbgvities of the Bank in its function as a fullréiee commercial bank. This includes the
operations of ENL, which provides direct financiegsing. Net income from banking activities wasl$4illion in 2006, which represents a
$0.1 million or 1.6% increase over 2005. The insecia net income from banking activities was dribgrincreases in net interest income. T
assets of the banking activities segment incre@Sesimillion or 1.2% during 2006 to $461.5 milliahDecember 31, 2006, due primarily to
growth in loans during 2006.

The insurance activities segment includes actwibEENBI, which is a retail property and casualiyurance agency with twelve locations in
the Western New York area. This includes the opmratat ENB, which provides non-deposit investnpotucts. Net income from insurance
activities was $0.9 million in 2006, which repretsea $36 thousand or 4.4% increase from 2005. Bs#ts of the insurance activities segr
were $12.4 million at December 31, 2006, which carep to $12.5 million at December 31, 2005. Taaénues increased $89 thousand, or
1.4% over 2005.

Fourth Quarter Results

Net income was $1.2 million, or $0.43 per basic ditated share, for the quarter ended Decembe2®16, as compared to $1.1 million,
$0.41 per basic and diluted share, for the quarided December 31, 2005.

The Company’s net interest margin for the quartas ®.66%, up 18 basis points from last year’s foqttarter net interest margin of 3.48%.
The largest contributing factor to the improvemeaas the growth of interest free funds, as the lwamkinues to have success in penetrating its
market area with core transactional accounts. iNetest income after the provision for loan andédlasses was $3.5 million in the fourth
quarter 2006, up $0.1 million from $3.4 milliontime same period of 2005. A higher provision foml@ed lease losses reflects the growth in
the allowance for loan and lease losses primatily th a larger loan and lease base over last year.

Total non-interest income for the fourth quarte2006 was $2.5 million, or approximately 26.3%atht revenue, an increase of 4.2%, or
$0.1 million, over the fourth quarter of 2005. Hégtother income was primarily from loan and leaskiwne driven revenue, which includes
significant increases in lease fee income. Inswaecvice and fees, although impacted by the ssftrance market, increased slightly in the
quarter.

Non-interest expense for the fourth quarter of 20@8eased slightly to $4.4 million from $4.3 milliam the fourth quarter of 2005. Slight
increases in occupancy, supplies, repair and nrante, and advertising are related to the operfitigeoTonawanda, New York bank branch
in December 2006. A $0.1 million decrease in sefaduring the quarter was mainly attributable tiealine in profit sharing expenses from the
same period in 2005.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The information called for by this Item is incorpted by reference to the discussion of “Liquidigyid “Market Risk,” including the discussion
under the caption “Sensitivity of Net Interest Inedto Changes in Interest Rates” included in “lierManagement’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Item 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPL EMENTARY DATA

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data caoofsise financial statements as indexed and preddrglow and the Unaudited Quarterly
Financial Data presented in Part I, Item 8. o§ tReport.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page
Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firn 43
Consolidated Balance She~ December 31, 2006 and 20 44
Consolidated Statements of Inco— Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and . 45
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity — Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and ; 46
Consolidated Statements of Cash F- Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and : 47
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem: 49
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Evans Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiasie$ Becember 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of incomekktdders’ equity, and cash flows for each of thargdn the three-year period ended
December 31, 2006. These consolidated financitdrsients are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated finastié&ments based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all matengapects, the financial position of Evans
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 326 2nd 2005, and the results of their operatiodistiaeir cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 200&rifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountinggiples.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrste&dements, Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiadepted Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108pnsidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeviien Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statemerds of January 1, 2006 and Statement of Financiebéating Standards No. 15Bmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremean&as of December 31, 2006.

/sl KPMG LLP
March 22, 2007
Buffalo, New York
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaler
Cash and due from ban
Securities
Available for sale, at fair valu
Held to maturity, at amortized cc
Loans and leases, net of allowance for loan arskl&ssses of $3,739 in 2006 and $3,211in 2
Properties and equipment, 1
Goodwill
Intangible assel
Bank-owned life insuranc
Other asset

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:

Demanc

NOW

Regular saving

Muni-vest

Time

Total deposit:

Federal funds purchased and agreements to repersbaaritie:
Other short term borrowing
Other liabilities
Junior subordinated debentu
Long term borrowing:
Total liabilities

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

STOCKHOLDERY? EQUITY:

Common stock, $.50 par value, 10,000,000 sharémened; 2,745,338 and 2,745,338 shares issued,

respectively, and 2,733,056 and 2,729,779 shartssamaling, respectivel
Capital surplut
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incomeophttx
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (12,282 and 15,588:=shrespectively
Total stockholder equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2006

$ 12,59:

133,51¢
4,211
285,36°
8,74:
10,00:
2,29¢
10,14(
7,021
$473,89

$ 72,12¢
11,25:
85,08
31,24(
156,04
355,74¢

8,95¢
24,75
9,08¢
11,33(
24, 47¢
434,35

1,37¢
26,16(
14,19¢

(1,917

(269)
39,54
$473,89:

2005

$ 15,63t

155,61
4,34;
256,81
8,151
9,63¢
2,72¢
9,58¢
6,04¢
$468,54¢

$ 71,18¢
12,40:
86,55¢
27,52:
139,14t
336,80¢

8,98t
34,58¢
6,62¢
11,33(
33,33¢
431,67(

1,37¢
26,15t
11,08’

(1,387)

(352)
36,87¢
$468,54(
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

INTEREST INCOME:
Loans
Federal funds sold/Interest bearing deposits ardibnks
Securities
Taxable
Non-taxable
Total interest incom
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits
Other borrowing
Junior subordinated debentul
Total interest expens
NET INTEREST INCOME
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSE
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LASE LOSSES
NON-INTEREST INCOME:
Bank charge
Insurance service and fe
Net gain on sales of securiti
Premium on loans so
Bank-owned life insuranc
Life insurance proceec
Other
Total nor-interest incom
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy
Supplies
Repairs and maintenan
Advertising and public relatior
Professional service
Amortization of intangible:
Other insuranc
Other
Total nor-interest expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAXES
NET INCOME

Net income per common she basic

Net income per common she- diluted
Weighted average number of basic common st
Weighted average number of diluted shs

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2006

2005

2004

$ 2040¢ $ 1623  $ 11,81
48 11€ 10¢
4,20¢ 4,66: 3,65/
1,881 1,93 2,13(
26,54 22,94¢ 17,70¢
8,97¢ 6,241 4,047
1,86¢ 1,66¢€ 93z
85¢ 662 132
11,69: 8,56¢ 5,111
14,84 14,37 12,59
1,12 76¢ 48E
13,71¢ 13,60¢ 12,11
1,99¢ 2,071 1,89(
6,46¢ 6,37 5,05¢
14C 107 24E
10 18 17
554 51¢ 35€
1,61 1,18¢ 1,011
10,77 10,37¢ 8,577
9,671 9,33¢ 7,92
2,05¢ 1,97¢ 1,80¢
30z 337 29¢
54E 555 43¢
447 464 337
83¢ 98¢ 734
565 51t 38t
347 36¢ 34¢
2,95¢ 2,86¢ 2,51
17,72¢ 17,40 14,77¢
6,76 6,58¢ 5,90¢
1,84 1,76 1,39
$ 4921 $  481¢ $ 450
$ 181 $ 177 $  16E
$ 18 $ 177 $  16E
2,725,60. 2,722,64: 2,725,46!
2,727,33 2,723,961 2,727,36.
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(in thousands, except share and per share)

Common Capital
Stock Surplus

BALANCE - December 31, 200: 1,23( 19,35¢

Comprehensive incom:
2004 net incom
Unrealized loss on available for si
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effe
Additional minimum pensio
liability, net of tax effec— $22
Total comprehensive incon
Cash dividends ($.61 per common
share)
Stock option expens 165
Re-issuance of 14,947 shares under
dividend reinvestment ple
Issued 31,942 shares for Ellwood ¢
Easy PA acquisitiol 15 70¢€
Re-issuance of 8,602 shares un
Employee Stock Purchase P
Fractional shares paid in cash on stock
dividend
Stock dividend 5 percel 62 3,12¢
Purchase of 30,000 shares for treas

BALANCE - December 31, 200 $ 1,307 $23,36!

Comprehensive incom
Unrealized loss on available for si
securities, net of reclassification
adjustment and tax effe
Additional minimum pension
liability, net of tax effec— $51
Total comprehensive incon
Cash dividends ($.65 per common

share)
Stock option expens 182
Re-issuance of 15,856 shares un

dividend reinvestment ple (37
Re-issuance of 11,312 shares under

Employee Stock Purchase P (45)

Re-issuance of 800 shares un
Directors Stock Option Plz
Fractional shares paid in cash on st
dividend
Stock dividend 5 percel 66 2,69:
Purchase of 19,900 shares for treas

BALANCE - December 31, 200! $ 1,37¢ $26,15¢

Adjustments to initially apply SFA
158, net of Taxe— $512

Impact of adopting SAB 108, net of t
$12

Comprehensive incom:

Unrealized gain on available for sale
securities, net of reclassificatis

Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive
Retained Income
Earnings (Loss)
11,14¢ 1,91¢
4,50¢
(1,320
(39)
(1,659
18
(31)
(16)
(3,159
$10,80¢ $ 562
4,81¢
(1,879
(76)
(1,764
2
(23)
(©)
(13)
(2,739
$11,08: $  (1,38)
(702)
43
4,921

Treasury
Stock

(328)

34C

20C

(33
(744)

$ (565

40C
274
19
(20)
(460)

$ (352

Total
33,32«

4,50¢
(1,320)

(35)
3,15¢

(1,65¢)
16E

35¢
722
16¢
(16)

(744

$35,47¢

4,81¢

(1,879

(76)
2,86¢

(1,769
182

36
20€

16
13

(460)

$36,87¢

(702)

43
4,921



adjustment tax effect of $(5
Additional minimum pension
liability, net of tax effec— $(56)
Total comprehensive incon
Cash dividends ($.68 per comm

share)
Stock option expens 93
Re-issuance of 18,754 shares un

dividend reinvestment ple (39
Re-issuance of 10,873 shares un

Employee Stock Purchase P (49

Purchase of 26,350 shares for treas

BALANCE - December 31, 200 $ 1,37¢ $26,16(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

88
84

(1,855)
$14,19¢ $ (1,919

413

23t
(565)

$ (269
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(in thousands)

2006 2005 2004
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Interest receive $ 27,40¢ $ 23,49( $17,97!
Fees and commission receiv 10,12( 9,83¢ 8,26¢
Proceeds from sale of loans held for re: 2,614 2,47¢ 2,55¢
Originations of loans held for res: (2,604 (1,957%) (2,454
Interest paic (11,329 (8,247 (5,10€)
Cash paid to employees and suppl (15,742 (14,18¢) (13,299
Income taxes pai (2,289 (1,799 (1,772)
Net cash provided by operating activit 8,17¢ 9,61F 6,16(
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Available for sale securitie
Purchase (13,33) (23,229 (97,34))
Proceeds from sal¢ 2,11z 7,07C 17,23t
Proceeds from maturitie 33,25¢ 24,61: 27,66¢
Held to maturity securitie:
Purchase (2,139 (1,997) (3,999
Proceeds from maturitie 2,161 82C 3,79¢
Cash paid for bar-owned life insuranc — (1,700 (264)
Additions to properties and equipme (1,406 (1,239 (2,497
Increase in loans, net of repayme (29,685 (41,35¢) (28,140
Proceeds from barowned life insuranc — 665 —
Cash paid on ea-out agreement (57) (420) —
Acquisitions (497 (133 (12,53)
Net cash used in investing activiti (9,58)) (36,89) (96,07¢)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from borrowin 2,51 23,48¢ 53,84t
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debes — 11,33(
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (2,857) (9,607 (7,007%)
Repayment of shc-term borrowings (18,387 (12,32)) (2,350
Increase in deposi 18,94 34,88( 35,60:
Dividends paic (1,85%) (1,769 (1,659
Fractional shares paid in cash on stock divide — (13 (16)
Purchase of treasury sto (565) (460) (744)
Re-issuance of treasury sto 56( 587 527
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activi (1,647 34,79 89,53:
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (3,047 7,511 (385)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of yea 15,63¢ 8,12¢ 8,50¢
End of yeal $ 12,59: $ 15,63¢ $ 8,12¢
(Continued)
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004
(in thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDEDBOPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Deferred (benefit) tax expen
Provision for loan and lease los:
Proceeds from sale of loans held for re:
Originations of loans held for res:
Net gain on sales of assi
Premiums on loans so
Stock options expen:
Changes in assets and liabilities affecting camlv:{
Other asset
Other liabilities

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTMENTS AND
FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition of insurance agencie
Fair value of
Assets acquired, n-cash
Liabilities assume:
Securities issue

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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2006

2005

$ 4,921 $ 4,81¢
1,81« 1,901
(299) (102)
1,12¢ 76¢
2,614 2,47¢
(2,609 (1,957)
(140) (107)
(10) (18)

93 18z
(697) (125)
1,347 1,77¢
$ 8,17¢ $ 9,61F
$ — $ —

(Concluded)

2004

$ 861

72
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EVANS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006, 2005 AND 2004

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES

Organization and General- Evans Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) was organiasé New York business corporation and incorpdrateler
the laws of the State of New York on October 2&8Lfbr the purpose of becoming a bank holding camp&hrough August 2004, the
Company was registered with the Federal ReservedBama bank holding company under the Bank Hol@iompany Act of 1956, as
amended. In August 2004, the Company filed for, @ad approved as, a Financial Holding Company utideBank Holding Company Act.
Subsequent to this change, the Company reorgait&zedrporate structure by creating a mid-tier ijrolwned subsidiary, Evans National
Financial Services, Inc., which was formed by dd#nd in-kind of all of the assets and liabilitefsSENB Insurance Agency, Inc. from Evans
National Bank. During 2005, the Company furthergamized by the Bank contributing as a divider-kind to ENB Insurance Agency, Inc.
(“ENBI"), all the assets and liabilities of ENB Assiates Inc. (“ENB”). The Company currently conduits business through its two
subsidiaries: Evans National Bank (the “Bank”)adionally chartered bank, and its subsidiaries,n&Jdational Leasing, Inc. (“ENL") and
Evans National Holding Corp. (“ENHC”); and Evanstidaal Financial Services, Inc. (“ENFS”) and itdsidiary, ENBI. Unless the context
otherwise requires, the term “Company” refers tafs/Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries. The Compangucts its business through its
subsidiaries. It does not engage in any other anbat business.

Regulatory Requirements— The Company is subject to the rules, regulatiand,reporting requirements of various regulataglies,
including the Federal Reserve Board (“FRB”), thel€&@l Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), th#i€® of the Comptroller of the
Currency (“OCC"), and the Securities and Exchange@ission (“SEC”).

Principles of Consolidation— The consolidated financial statements includeattewunts of the Company, the Bank, ENBI and their
subsidiaries. All material inter-company accoumtd &ansactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting Estimates— The preparation of financial statements in camfty with U.S. generally accepted accounting ppes requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfibettthe reported amounts of assets and liakslidied disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeamsl the reported amounts of income and expensegjdhe reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Securities— Securities which the Bank has the positive ingamt ability to hold to maturity are classifiedresdd to maturity and are stated at
cost, adjusted for discounts and premiums thatesm@gnized in interest income over the period &dérlier of the call date or maturity using
the level yield method. These securities repredeht issuances of local municipalities in the Bamnkarket area for which market prices are
not readily available. The amortized cost of theusiéies approximates market value. Managemenbgerélly evaluates the financial condition
of the municipalities for impairment.

Securities classified as available for sale aredtat fair value with unrealized gains and logseduded from earnings and reported, net of
deferred income taxes, in accumulated other conemstie income (loss), a component of stockholdegaity. Gains and losses on sales of
securities are computed using the specific idexatifon method.

Securities which have experienced an other-thampdeany decline in fair value are written down toeav cost basis with the amount of the
write-down included in earnings as a realized I0$& new cost basis is not changed for subsegeeateries in fair value. Factors which
management considers in determining whether aniimpat in value of an investment is other than terapy include our intent and ability to
hold securities until fair values recover to anmati cost, the issuer’s financial performance aradt tegkm prospects, the financial condition and
prospects for the issuer’s geographic region addstry, and recoveries in fair value subsequetiiedalance sheet date.

The Bank does not engage in securities tradingities.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities- The Company follows the Statement of Financiatdmting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgifgtivities,” as amended. SFAS No. 133 establislee®anting and reporting standards for
derivative instruments and for hedging activitibjch require that an entity recognize all derives as either assets or liabilities on a balance
sheet and measure those instruments at fair v@hemges in the fair value of derivatives must lmegaized in earnings when they occur,
unless the derivative qualifies as a hedge. Ifravdive qualifies as a hedge, a company can ébegse hedge accounting to eliminate or ret
income statement volatility that would arise frogporting changes in a derivative’s fair value ioome.

Loans —The Bank grants mortgage, commercial and consumaasito customers. A substantial portion of the lpartfolio is represented by
mortgage loans throughout Erie, Chautauqua andaxéagpunties. The ability of the Bank’s debtorfidoor their contracts is dependent upon
numerous factors, including the real estate anég&reconomic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and abilityld for the foreseeable future, or until matudtypay-off, generally are reported at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances adjustedliarge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, anddafigrred fees or costs on those loans at the
time they were originated. Interest income is aedran the unpaid principal balance. Loan origimafees, net of certain direct origination
costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjusthé related loan yield using the interest mdthbaccounting.

The Bank considers a loan to be impaired when,cbasecurrent information and events, it is probdbé it will be unable to collect principal
or interest due according to the contractual tesfitee loan. Loan impairment is measured basedemptesent value of expected cash flows
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rateasra practical expedient, at the loan’s obseevatarket price or the fair value of the collateral
if the loan is collateral dependent.

Payments received on impaired loans are appliethstghe recorded investment in the loan. For lagthsr than those that the Bank expects
repayment through liquidation of the collateral ,emtthe remaining recorded investment in the impdian is less than or equal to the present
value of the expected cash flows, income is reabatea cash basis.

The accrual of interest on commercial loans andgages is discontinued at the time the loan is@@& dielinquent, unless the credit is well
secured and in process of collection. In all caeesis are placed on non-accrual status and ajecsub charge-off at an earlier date if
collection of principal or interest is considerezlititful.

All interest due but not collected for loans thia placed on noaccrual status or charged off is reversed agaitstast income. The interest
these loans is accounted for on the cash-basigstirecovery method, until it again qualifies foraccrual basis. Loans are returned to accrual
status when all principal and interest amountsreaitiially due are brought current, the adverseaigistances which resulted in the delinquent
payment status are resolved, and payments are imadé@nely manner for a period of time suffici@éatreasonably assure their future
dependability.

Leases- The Bank’s leasing operations consists pringypafiithe leasing of various types of small ticketrenercial equipment. The Company
follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standa¥ds 13, “Accounting for Leasedbdr all of its direct financing leases. The netéstment il
direct financing leases is the sum of all minim@ade payments and estimated residual values,dessned income. All of the Bank’s leases
are classified as direct financing leases.

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses The allowance for loan losses represents the atmhiarged against the Basléarnings to establist
reserve or allowance sufficient to absorb prob&dde losses based on the Bank’s management’s digaluad the loan portfolio. Factors
considered by the Bank’s management in establighi@@llowance include: the collectibility of indiwal loans, current loan concentrations,
charge-off history, delinquent loan percentaggsyirirom regulatory agencies and general econoomditions.

On a quarterly basis, management of the Bank niee&view and determine the adequacy of the alle@dar loan losses. In making this
determination, the Bank’s management analyzesltimeate collectibility of the loans in its portfaliby considering feedback provided by
internal loan staff, an independent loan reviewcfiom and information provided by examinations parfed by regulatory agencies.

The analysis of the allowance for loan losses mmused of three components: specific credit allonageneral portfolio allocation and a
subjectively determined allocation. The specifiedit allocation includes a detailed review of tharl in accordance with SFAS No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loaafid No. 118, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairmefa Loan — Income Recognition
and Disclosures,and allocation is made based on this analysis.gEmeral portfolio allocation consists of an assijreserve percentage ba
on the credit rating of each loan.
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The subjective portion of the allowance for loassies reflects management’s evaluation of varionditons, and involves a higher degree of
uncertainty because this component of the allow#noet identified with specific problem creditsortfolio segments. The conditions
evaluated in connection with this element incluge following: industry and regional conditions, se@ing of the loan portfolio and changes in
the composition of and growth in the loan portfptite strength and duration of the business cgslisting general economic and business
conditions in the lending areas, credit qualityéi® in non-accruing loans, historical loan charfjesxperience, and the results of Bank
regulatory examinations.

Foreclosed Real Estate- Foreclosed real estate is initially recordedhatlbwer of book or fair value (net of costs ofpdisal) at the date of
foreclosure. Costs relating to development and awgment of property are capitalized, whereas qe$asing to the holding of property are
expensed. Assessments are periodically performeddnagement, and an allowance for losses is esttelliby a charge to operations if the
carrying value of a property exceeds fair valugeElmsed real estate is classified as other assdtse Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets— Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase pwer the fair value of the identifiable netetss
acquired in connection with certain company acgjoiss. The Company accounts for goodwill and othtangible assets in accordance with
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assktghich revised the accounting for purchased igthle assets, and in general, requires
that goodwill not be amortized, but rather thdtdttested for impairment at least annually. Otleguaed intangible assets with finite lives are
required to be amortized over their estimated liemngible assets are amortized over estimatefliliéves ranging from five to ten years. 1
Company periodically assesses whether events ogelsan circumstances indicate that the carryinguants of intangible assets may be
impaired.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance— The Bank has purchased insurance on the liv€owofpany directors and certain members of Bank’$B EN
and ENB’s management. The policies accumulate assgts to meet future liabilities, including theyment of employee benefits, such as
retirement benefits. Increases in the cash surraradee are recorded as other income in the cotesteld statements of income.

Properties and Equipment— Properties and equipment are stated at cosatessnulated depreciation. Depreciation is compugiadg the
straightline method over the estimated useful lives ofabgets, which range from 3 to 39 years. Impairdoeses on properties and equipn
are realized if the carrying amount is not recobkrdrom its undiscounted cash flows and exceedfait value.

Loan Servicing— The Bank, in its normal course of business, selttain residential mortgages which it originatetite FNMA. The Compar
maintains servicing rights on the loans that itssiel FNMA and earns a fee thereon. At DecembefB8@6 and 2005, the Company had
approximately $28.7 million and $28.8 million, resfively, in unpaid principal balances of loang fhaervices for FNMA. For the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company2didnillion and $2.5 million, respectively, in limto FNMA. The Company has a
related asset of approximately $0.2 million for #eevicing portfolio rights as of December 31, 200Bere were no loans held for sale at
December 31, 2006 or 2005.

Income Taxes- Income taxes are accounted for under the asdéiadnility method under SFAS No. 109, “Accountifay Income Taxes.”
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflecterhiarently enacted income tax rates applicabkaeéqperiods in which the deferred tax assets or
liabilities are expected to be realized or setthesichanges in tax laws or rates are enacted, reeféax assets and liabilities are adjusted
through income tax expense.

Net Income Per Share- Net income per common share is based on the teeiglverage number of shares outstanding durirty yesar,
retroactively adjusted for stock splits and stokd#nds. Dilutive earnings per common share iseam increasing the weighted-average
number of shares of common stock by the numbeharfes of common stock that would be issued assuthengxercise of stock options. Such
adjustments to weighted-average number of sharesrimon stock outstanding are made only when sdigistenents are expected to dilute
earnings per common share. Basic and diluted egsar share are the same for December 31, 20080824d The Company’s potential
dilutive securities included 1,730, 1,316 and 1,884dres of common stock for the years ended DeaeBih@006, 2005 and 2004, respectiv

All share and per share information presentedaitedtafter giving effect to stock dividends. Pasdrdfommon shares that would have the effect
of increasing diluted earnings per share are censttto be anti-dilutive. In accordance with SFAS W28, “Earnings Per Share,” these shares
were not included in calculating diluted earnings ghare. As of December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2064 were 59 thousand, 59 thousand,

27 thousand shares, respectively, that are naided in calculating diluted earnings per share segheir effect was anti-dilutive.
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Comprehensive Income- Comprehensive income includes both net incomeo#tmel comprehensive income, including the change i
unrealized gains and losses on securities avaifabkale, and the change in additional minimurhility related to pension costs, net of tax.

Employee Benefits- The Bank maintains a non-contributory, qualifidefined benefit pension plan (“Pension Plan”) twters substantially
all employees who meet certain age and servicarergents. The actuarially determined pension béirethe form of a life annuity is based
on the employee’s combined years of service, agecampensation. The Barkpolicy is to fund the minimum amount requiredgmwernmen
regulations.

The Bank maintains a defined contribution 401 (l@nphnd accrues contributions due under this plaaased by employees. In addition, the
Bank maintains a non-qualified Supplemental ExeeuRetirement Plan for certain members of seniaragament, a non-qualified Deferred
Compensation Plan for directors and certain memiiemsanagement, and a non-qualified Executive IticerRetirement Plan for certain
members of management, as described more fullyobe N1 to these “Notes to Consolidated Financiale®tents.”

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk- In the ordinary course of business, the Bankemdared into off-balance sheet financial
arrangements consisting of commitments to exteeditand standby letters of credit. Such finanicistruments are recorded in the financial
statements when the transactions are executed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents- For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash ast eguivalents include cash due from banks anddetlends
sold. Generally, federal funds sold are purchasedtie-day periods.

Cash due from banks includes reserve balanceshth&ank is required to maintain with Federal Res@&anks. The required reserves are
based upon deposits outstanding, and were apprtedin®8.8 million and $3.3 million at December 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Reclassifications— Certain reclassifications have been made to @& 2nd 2004 financial statements to conform with2006 presentation.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other &stretirement Benefits —As of December 31, 2006, the company adopted SFAS
No. 158,“Employer’s Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensicarsd Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS 158adoordance with this
standard, the Company recorded the funded stateaabf of its defined benefit pension and postreinat plans as an asset or liability on its
Consolidated Balance Sheet with a correspondirgegffiet of taxes, recorded in Accumulated Othen@ehensive Income (Loss) Within
Stockholders’ Equity, resulting in an after-tax dexse in equity of $0.7 million. See Note 11 to tédoto the Consolidated Financial
Statements.”

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108- In September 2006, the SEC staff issued StafbAonting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effecfs
Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatata in Current Year Financial Statements” (SAB)183B 108 was issued in order to
eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding hpublic companies quantify financial statement taitgsnents. There are two widely
recognized methods for quantifying the effectsimdficial statement misstatements: the “roll-overd &ron curtain” methods. The roll-over
method, the method the Company historically usecljges primarily on the impact of a misstatemertherincome statement, including the
reversing effect of prior year misstatements. Tha turtain method focuses primarily on the effefatorrecting for the accumulated
misstatement as of the balance sheet date, edentiaecting the balance sheet with less emphasithe reversing effects of prior year errors
on the income statements. In SAB 108, the SEC stfiblished an approach that requires quantificatf financial statement misstatements
based on the effects of the misstatements undartbetroll-over and iron curtain methods. This feavork is referred to as the “dual
approach.” SAB 108 permits companies to initialhply its provisions either by restating prior firtéed statements as if the dual approach had
always been used or recording the cumulative effeutitially applying the dual approach as an atjpent to the balance sheet as of the first
day of the fiscal year with an offsetting adjustinestorded to opening retained earnings. Use oftineulative effect transition method is not
permitted for otherwise immaterial misstatemengd thay be identified by a company and requires suamaterial misstatements to be
recorded in current period earnings.

The Company adopted SAB 108 as of January 1, 200@@mpleted its analysis of uncorrected misstatgsnender the “dual approach,”
concluding that certain adjustments were matendeu the iron curtain method, that were previogglgmed to be immaterial under the
rollover method. The Company sells loans to FNMA egtains the rights to service the loans. The Gomhad previously not recorded an
asset for the servicing rights it retains for maggs sold to
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FNMA totaling approximately $164 thousand. The Camphas certain operating leases with rent esoalatauses. The Company historically
has recorded rent expense based on statement aantstather than recognizing total rent expemskeuthe agreements on a straight-line
basis over the terms. The corresponding liabikiyognized to properly record the lease liabilityaostraight line basis was $139 thousand.
Lastly, the Company has historically had an unsugpaax reserve of $30 thousand which was reveisedf January 1, 2006, the Company
has increased retained earnings by approximatétt$lusand, increased other liabilities by appratety $139 thousand and increased other
assets by approximately $182 thousand, net offfarts, to address these items.

Stock-based Compensation Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptetiSSNo. 123 (revised 2004), “Share- Based PayméBEAS
No. 123F"), an amendment of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting ftock-Based CompensatiorPtior to that date, the Company recognized exf
for stock-based compensation using the fair valethod of accounting described in SFAS No. 123. IStiased compensation expense is
recognized over the vesting period of the stocledagant based on the estimated grant date valie agtock-based compensation that is
expected to vest. Information on the determinatibtihe estimated value of stock-based awards wusedltulate stock-based compensation
expense is included in Note 12 to “Notes to Comlstéid Financial Statements.”

FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes— In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, “AccountfogUncertainty in Income Taxes,” to set
out a consistent framework for tax preparers totasketermine the appropriate level of tax resetgesaintain for uncertain tax positions. This
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 uses adtep approach wherein a tax benefit is recognizagosition is more likely than not to be
sustained. The amount of the benefit is then mealstarbe the highest tax benefit that is greaten 80 percent likely to be realized. FIN 48
also sets out disclosure requirements to enhaansgarency of an entity’s tax reserves. The Compalhpe required to adopt this
interpretation as of January 1, 2007. The Compapg@s that the effect of adopting FIN 48 will malve a material effect.

Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157} In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). This
standard defines fair value, establishes a comsismework for measuring fair value and expandsldsure requirements about fair value
measurements. In addition, SFAS 157 precludessbefiblock discounts and supersedes the guidareE'F 02-3, which prohibited the
recognition of day-1 gains on certain derivatiagdgs when determining the fair value of instrumeotstraded in an active market. With the
adoption of this standard, these changes will Beated as a cumulative effect adjustment to thenaopg balance of retained earnings. The
standard also requires the Company to reflectwits credit standing when measuring the fair valudeiit it has issued that is carried at fair
value, including derivatives, prospectively frone tttate of adoption.

SFAS 157 is effective for the Company’s fiscal ybaginning January 1, 2008, with earlier adoptiemptted for the Company’s fiscal year
beginning January 1, 2007. The Company is currenthfuating the potential impact of adopting thénslard.

Fair Value Option (SFAS 159) On February 15, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS N8, ‘Tthe Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). Under this Stamd, the Company may elect to report financialrimsents and certain other items at fair
value on a contract-by-contract basis with chargeslue reported in earnings. This election isvncable. SFAS 159 provides an opportunity
to mitigate volatility in reported earnings that®sused by measuring hedged assets and liabihitsvere previously required to use a diffe
accounting method than the related hedging costraben the complex provisions of SFAS 133 hedgewtting are not met.

SFAS 159 is effective for years beginning after Blober 15, 2007. Early adoption within 120 daysheflbeginning of a compars/2007 fisce
year is permissible, provided the company has abisgued interim financial statements for 2007 laasl adopted SFAS 157. The Compar
currently evaluating the potential impact of adogtthis standard.

Split-Dollar Life Insurance - At its September 2006 meeting, the Emerging IsJlask Force (“EITF”) reached a final consensugsene 06-
04, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation and Ragsement Benefit Aspects of Endorsement Split-Bollife Insurance Arrangements.”
The consensus stipulates that an agreement by ploysnto share a portion of the proceeds of aitifairance policy with an employee during
the postretirement period is a postretirement beagfingement required to be accounted for un&&SSNo. 106 or Accounting Principles
Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 12, “Omnibus Opinion — @8.” The consensus concludes that the purchassmiftadollar life insurance policy
does not constitute a settlement under SFAS Noah@d6therefore, a liability for the postretiremebtigation must be recognized under SFAS
No. 106 if the benefit is offered under an arrangetthat constitutes a plan or under APB No. 1Ri not part of a plan. Issue-04 is

effective for annual or interim reporting periodsginning after December 15, 2007. The provisionissiie 06-04 should be applied through
either a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained
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earnings as of the beginning of the year of adoptioretrospective application. The Company ha®esanent split-dollar life insurance
policies covering certain directors and employees.

Also at its September 2006 meeting, the EITF redehitnal consensus on Issue 06-05, “AccountingPiarchases of Life Insurance —
Determining the Amount That Could Be Realized ircévlance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4."élbonsensus concludes that in
determining the amount that could be realized uadensurance contract accounted for under FASBiffieal Bulletin No. 85-4, “Accounting
for purchases of Life Insurance,” the policyholdbould (1) consider any additional amounts incluidettie contractual terms of the policy;

(2) assume the surrender value on an individualHif individual-life policy basis; and (3) not dismt the cash surrender value component of
the amount that could be realized when contracasdfictions on the ability to surrender a poligysé Issue 06-05 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The consensissire 06-05 should be adopted through either ¢€hjpage in accounting principle through
a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnagysf the beginning of the year of adoption org2hange in accounting principle through
retrospective application to all prior periods.Bé¢cember 31, 2006, the Company had bank owneth$ifeance policies with a carrying value
of $10.1 million. The Company is currently evalagtihe potential impact of adoption of the provis®f Issue 06-04 and Bulletin No. 85-4.

2. SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities and their apprexénfair value at December 31 were as follows:

2006
(in thousands
Unrealized
Amortized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for Sale:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 31,597 $ — $ (70€) $ 30,89
States and political subdivisio 37,59: 89t (49) 38,43t
Total debt securitie $ 69,18¢ $ 89t $ (75%) $ 69,32¢
Mortgage-backed securitie:
FNMA 31,08« 2 (918) 30,16¢
FHLMC 8,68¢ 15 (25€) 8,44¢
GNMA 1,08t — (42) 1,04«
CMO’s 21,517 — (88¢) 20,62¢
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 62,37¢ 17 (2,109 60,28¢
FRB and FHLB Stocl 3,901 — — 3,901
Total $135,46! $ 91z $ (2,85%) $133,51¢
Held to Maturity:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ — $ — $ 35
States and political subdivisio 4,17¢ — — 4,17¢
Total $ 4,211 $ — $  — $ 4,211
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2005
(in thousands
Unrealized
Amortized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for Sale:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 37,65¢ $ — $ (1,05)) $ 36,60
States and political subdivisio 41,14 1,36¢ (44) 42,46
Total debt securitie $ 78,79¢ $ 1,36¢ $(1,09Y) $ 79,06:
Mortgage-backed securities
FNMA 36,60: 21 (1,059 35,56¢
FHLMC 11,02t 8 (286€) 10,747
GNMA 1,37¢ — (49) 1,33¢
CMO's 25,51t — (1,006 24,50¢
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 74,52( 28 (2,390 72,15¢
FRB and FHLB Stoc! 4,38¢ — — 4,38¢
Total $157,70( $ 1,39¢ $ (3,485) $155,61(
Held to Maturity:
Debt securities
U.S. government agenci $ 35 $ — $ — $ 35
States and political subdivisio 4,307 — — 4,307
Total $ 4,34 $ — $ — $ 4,34

Available for sale securities with a total fair walof $115.1 million at December 31, 2006 were géetlas collateral to secure public deposits
and for other purposes required or permitted by law

The scheduled maturities of debt and mortgage-fihskeurities at December 31, 2006 are summariZesvbAll maturity amounts are
contractual maturities. Actual maturities may diffie®m contractual maturities because certain isshave the right to call or prepay
obligations with or without call premiums.

Available for Held to Maturity
Sale Securities Securities
Amortized Fair Amortizec Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
(in thousands (in thousands
Due in one year or le: $ 10,63! $ 10,53¢ $ 1,85t $ 1,85t
Due after year one through five ye 33,37¢ 32,84 961 961
Due after five years through ten ye 34,34« 34,59¢ 57€ 57€
Due after ten yeal 53,21¢ 51,64 81¢ 81¢
Total $131,56: $129,61¢ $ 4,211 $ 4,217
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Realized gains and losses from $2.1 million, $7illon and $17.2 million gross sales on securifimsthe years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively, are summarized asAsll

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
Gross gain: $ 14C $ 11: $ 344
Gross losse — (6 (99
Net gain $ 14C $ 107 $  24f

Management has assessed the securities availaldaléoin an unrealized loss position at Decemthef805 and 2004 and determined the
decline in fair value below amortized cost to bmperary. In making this determination, managemensiered the period of time the
securities were in a loss position, the percentigpiine in comparison to the securities amortizest,¢he financial condition of the issuer
(primarily government or government-sponsored g@miges) and the Company’s ability and intent tadhtblese securities until their fair value
recovers to their amortized cost. Management bedi¢lie decline in fair value is primarily relatechtarket interest rate fluctuations and not to
the credit deterioration of the individual issuer.

Information regarding unrealized losses within @@mpany’s available for sale securities is sumnearizelow. The securities are all US
government-guaranteed agency securities or fullyred municipal securities. All unrealized losses@nsidered temporary and related to
market interest rate fluctuations.

2006
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in thousands (in thousands (in thousands
Debt securitie:
U.S. government agenci $ 5,927 $ (89 $20,96¢ $ (622 $26,89: $ (706
States and political subdivisio 13E — 5,732 (49 5,86 (49)
Total debt securitie $ 6,06z $ (89 $26,69¢ $ (67)) $32,75¢ $ (755
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $ 1,99¢ $ (4) $27,66: $ (919 $29,65¢ $ (919
FHLMC 332 (4) 7,32¢ (252) 7,65¢ (25€)
GNMA — — 1,04 (41) 1,044 (47)
CMO'’'s — — 20,62: (88¢) 20,62: (888)
Total mortgag-backed securitie $ 2,32¢ $ (8) $56,65: $ (2,095 $58,98( $ (2,107
Total temporarily impaired Securiti $ 8,39 $ 92) $83,34¢ $ (2,76¢€ $91,73¢ $ (2,85¢)
2005
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Description of Securities Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(in thousands (in thousands (in thousands
Debt securitie:
U.S. government agenci $10,89: $ (109 $25,71: $ (949 $ 36,60« $ (1,05))
States and political subdivisio 6,721 (49 — — 6,721 (44
Total debt securitie $17,61: $ (149 $25,71: $ (949 $ 43,32¢ $ (1,095
Mortgage-backed securitie
FNMA $13,14¢ $ (340 $21,18¢ $ (719 $ 34,33: $ (1,059
FHLMC 111 Q) 9,30% (285) 9,41¢ (28€)
GNMA — — 1,33¢ (44) 1,33¢ (44)
CMO'’'s 19¢€ 3 24,30¢ (1,009 24,50¢ (1,006
Total mortgag-backed securitie $13,45: $ (349 $56,13" $ (2,04¢) $ 69,58t¢ $ (2,390
Total temporarily impaired Securiti $31,06¢ $ (49) $81,84¢ $ (2999 $112,91: $ (3,489
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3. LOANS AND LEASES, NET
Major categories of loans and leases at Decemhe2(®b and 2005 are summarized as follows:

2006 2005
(in thousands
Mortgage loans on real esta

Residential -4 family $ 57,70: $ 48,58(
Commercial and mu-family 123,70: 123,72
Constructior 11,84¢ 9,27(
Second mortgage 8,62¢ 6,454
Home equity lines of cred 18,14 21,08
Total mortgage loans on real est 220,02: 209,11:
Direct financing lease 31,74: 16,94
Commercial loan 29,58¢ 29,92(
Consumer loan 3,101 2,745
Other 3,997 642
Net deferred loan and lease origination ¢ 654 654
289,10¢ 260,02:

Allowance for loan and lease loss (3,739 (3,21))
Loans and leases, r $285,36° $256,81(

Other loans include $0.2 million and $0.2 millianDeecember 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, ofdregyn deposit accounts classified as
loans.

Changes in the allowance for loan and lease |dssele years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 ardl 2@0as follows:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands

Balance, beginning of ye $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢ $ 2,53¢
Provision for loan and lease los: 1,12¢ 76¢ 48t
Addition of allowance from acquisitic — — 13C
Recoveries 19¢ 11¢ 6C
Loans and leases charged (798 (675 (215
Balance, end of ye: $ 3,73¢ $ 3,211 $ 2,99¢

Non-accrual loans, for which an allowance for loan &nment was not required under SFAS No. 11 counting by Creditors for Impairme

of a Loan” due to the adequacy of related collateahues, totaled approximately $0.6 million and&fnillion at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The average recorded investmentasettioans during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approgiyndi.5 million; $1.6 million and

$0.3 million, respectively. If such loans had bé@ean accruing status, the Bank would have recoedigiitional interest income of
approximately $83 thousand; $128 thousand and&38sand in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Aatterest recognized on consolidated
statements of income on non-accrual loans wasl#gisand, $140 thousand and $68 thousand in 2006, &td 2004, respectively.

The Bank had no loan commitments to borrowers maccrual status at December 31, 2006.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank hadmer toans which were impaired as defined by SFASINA4.
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The following lists the components of the net irtagnt in direct financing leases as of December 31:

Direct financing lease payments receive
Estimated residual value of leased as
Unearned incom

Net investment in direct financing leas

At December 31, 2006, minimum future lease paymenke received are as follows:

Year Ending December &
2007
200¢
200¢
201(
2011

Thereafte

As of December 31, 2005, there were $24.8 millioioans pledged to FHLB.

4. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

Properties and equipment at December 31 were lasvil

Land

Buildings and improvemen
Equipment

Construction in progres

Less accumulated depreciati

Properties and equipment, 1

Depreciation expense totaled $879 thousand in 2R8®4 thousand in 2005 and $730 thousand in 2004.

5. OTHER ASSETS
Other assets at December 31, were as follows:

Net deferred tax ass
Accrued interest receivab
Prepaid expense¢

Other

Total
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2006 2005
(in thousands
$39,19( $20,78t

31¢€ 19¢
(7,766 (4,039
$31,74: $16,94¢
$13,03(
11,56
8,18(
4,712
1,70¢€
$39,19(
2006 2005
(in thousands
$ 26¢ $ 26¢
9,204 8,71«
7,26( 6,31
3 3
16,73¢ 15,29¢
7,992) (7,149
$ 8,74 $ 8,15]
2006 2005
(in thousands
$ 3,17¢ $ 2,50¢
2,052 2,04«
53¢ 40t
1,25¢ 1,08i
$ 7,021 $ 6,04
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6. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 1@@odwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and disde goodwill separate from other

intangible assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

The Company evaluates the carrying amount of gdbflwipotential impairment on at least an annuadib.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for tivelve-month period ended December 31, 2006 an8,280operating segment, are as

follows:

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Goodwill acquired during the peric

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Balance as of January 1, 2C
Goodwill acquired during the peric

Balance as of December 31, 2(

Information regarding the Company’s other intangiaaésets at December 31 follows:

Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands
$ 1,53¢ $ 8,101 $ 9,63¢
364 — 364
$ 1,902 $ 8,101 $10,00:
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands
$ 1,45: $ 7,76¢ $9,21¢
85 33¢ 42(
$ 1,53¢ $ 8,101 $9,63¢

Gross
Carrying Accumulated
2006 Amount Amortization Net
(in thousands
Non-compete agreemer $ 63¢ $ (509 $ 134
Insurance expiratior 3,39- (1,22¢) 2,164
Total $ 4,03( $ (1,739 $2,29¢
Gross
Carrying Accumulated
2005 Amount Amortization Net
(in thousands
Non-compete agreemer $ 604 $ (382) $ 222
Intangible asset related to pension | 42¢ — 42¢
Insurance expiratior 2,860 (790) 2,071
Total $ 3,90( $ (1,179 $2,72¢
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N/A
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Amortization expense related to intangibles forythars ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004$86R:thousand; $515 thousand and
$385 thousand, respectively. Estimated amortizagigrense for each of the five succeeding fiscals/isaas follows:

Year Ending
December 3: Amount
(in thousands

2007 $56¢
2008 47¢
2009 30z
2010 28t
2011 22t

7. DEPOSITS

Time deposits, with minimum denominations of $106usand each, totaled $80.2 million and $64.9 onilat December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturitiegmd tleposits are as follows:

(in thousand:

2007 $ 122,16
2008 21,11¢
2009 5,79:
2010 53¢
2011 6,42t
2012 6

$ 156,04°

8. BORROWED FUNDS AND JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

Borrowed funds mainly consisted of various advaricms the Federal Home Loan Bank with interestsasmging from 2.84% to 5.33%. The
FHLB advances are collateralized by certain qual@assets of $49.3 million at December 31, 200& maturities of other borrowed funds
are as follows:

(in thousand:

2007 $ 27,50¢
2008 66¢
2009 8,057
2010 —
2011 —
Thereafte 13,00(
Total $ 49,22¢

Short-term borrowings outstanding at December BO6f $24.8 million consisted of an overnight lofecredit with the Federal Home Loan
Bank. The Bank has the ability to borrow additiohedds with the Federal Home Loan Bank based omtadable securities collateral of the
Bank, and to purchase federal funds through orteeoBank’s correspondent banks.
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The amounts and interest rates of short-term bongswvere as follows:

Federal Fund Other Shor-Term
Purchase Borrowings Total
(dollars in thousand:

At December 31, 200

Amount Outstandin 24,75: — 24,75:

Weightec-average interest ra 5.3%% — 5.3%
For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 43,17¢ —

Daily average amount outstandi 16,71¢ — 16,71¢

Weightec-average interest ra 5.05% — 5.05%
At December 31, 200

Amount outstandin 37,13¢ — 37,13¢

Weightec-average interest ra 4.1% — 4.1%
For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 37,13t 4,00(

Daily average amount outstandi 8,28 647 8,934

Weightec-average interest ra 3.8% 2.4% 3.7%%
At December 31, 200

Amount outstandin 21,10( 4,00( 25,10(

Weightec-average interest ra 2.4€% 2.4% 2.4€%
For the year ended December 31, 2

Highest amount at a mor-end 21,10( 4,00(

Daily average amount outstandi 2,24: 1,027 3,27(

Weightec-average interest ra 1.28% 2.2(% 1%

On October 1, 2004, Evans Capital Trust |, a stayubusiness trust wholly-owned by the Company f{ffrest”), issued $11.0 million in
aggregate principal amount of floating rate prefércapital securities due November 23, 2034 (thapit@l Securities”) classified on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheets as Juniar@iubted Debentures. The distribution rate onGhpital Securities of the Trust adjust
quarterly based on changes in the three-month Lohaterbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and was 8.02%®a&cember 31, 2006.

The Capital Securities have a distribution rateI&OR plus 2.65%, and the distribution dates arbriary 23, May 23, August 23 and
November 23

The common securities of the Trust (the “Commorugges”) are wholly-owned by the Company and de only class of each Trust’s
securities possessing general voting powers. Tip#al&ecurities represent preferred undividedregss in the assets of the corresponding
Trust. Under the Federal Reserve Board’s currektivased capital guidelines, the Capital Securitiesncludable in the Company’s Tier 1
(Core) capital.

The proceeds from the issuances of the Capitalriesuand Common Securities were used by the Taugtirchase $11,330 thousand
aggregate liquidation amount of floating rate jurdabordinated deferrable interest debentures {3 Bubordinated Debentures”) of the
Company, due October 1, 2037, comprised of $11lmif capital securities and $330 thousand ahown securities. The $330 thousand of
common securities represent the initial capitatigbation of the Company to the Trust, which, ircadance with the provision of FIN 46R
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” hast been consolidated.

The Junior Subordinated Debentures represent teaseets of the Trust, and payments under therd8nbordinated Debentures are the sole
source of cash flow for the Trust. The interest yable on the Junior Subordinated Debenture88Wass at December 31, 2006.

Holders of the Capital Securities receive preféatctumulative cash distributions on each distiitnuidate at the stated distribution rate, unless
the Company exercises its right to extend the paymkinterest on the Junior Subordinated Debestioeup to twenty quarterly periods, in
which case payment of distributions on the resped@iapital Securities
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will be deferred for comparable periods. Duringeattended interest period, in accordance with texendefined in the indenture relating to the
Capital Securities, the Company may not pay divildeor distributions on, or repurchase, redeem quiae any shares of its capital stock. The
agreements governing the Capital Securities, iragggegate, provide a full, irrevocable and uncomaial guarantee by the Company of the
payment of distributions on, the redemption of, ang liquidation distribution with respect to thafital Securities. The obligations under s
guarantee and the Capital Securities are suboedarat junior in right of payment to all senior ibtedness of the Company.

The Capital Securities will remain outstanding Lttt Junior Subordinated Debentures are repaitbdurity, are redeemed prior to maturity
are distributed in liquidation to the Trust. Thep@al Securities are mandatorily redeemable in whbut not in part, upon repayment at the
stated maturity dates of the Junior SubordinateoeD®ires or the earlier redemption of the Junidro&dinated Debentures in whole upon the
occurrence of one or more events (“Events”) sahfor the indentures relating to the Capital Sdi®sj and in whole or in part at any time after
the stated optional redemption date of Novembef@89, contemporaneously with the optional redeompdif the related Junior Subordinated
Debentures in whole or in part. The Junior Subatdid Debentures are redeemable prior to theirdstatgurity dates at the Company'’s option:
(i) on or after the stated optional redemption gaite whole at any time or in part from time to ¢inor (ii) in whole, but not in part, at any time
within 90 days following the occurrence and durihg continuation of one or more of the Events,d@alecase subject to possible regulatory
approval. The redemption price of the Capital Siéiegrand the related Junior Subordinated Debestupen early redemption would be at the
liquidation amount plus accumulated but unpaidrithigtions.

9. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The Bank enters into agreements with depositoselido the depositors securities owned by the Barntkrepurchase the identical security,
generally within one day. No physical movementhef $ecurities is involved. The depositor is infodntlee securities are held in safekeepin
the Bank on behalf of the depositor.

10. COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME

The following tables display the components of ott@mprehensive (loss) income:

2006
Before-tax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized losses on investment securi

Unrealized holding losses during per| $ 284 $ (112 $ 17z
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlirenet income 14C (56) 84
Net unrealized gain (los 144 (56) 88
Decrease in additional minimum pension liabi 14C (56) 84
Net other comprehensive income (lo $ 284 $ (11Z $ 17z
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2005
Before-tax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized losses on investment securil

Unrealized holding losses during per $ (2,962) $ 1,152 $ (1,810
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlimenet income 107 (43 64
Net unrealized los (3,069) 1,19t (1,879
Increase in additional minimum pension liabil (127 51 (76)
Net other comprehensive lo $ (3,196 $ 1,24¢ $ (1,950
2004
Beforetax Income
Amount Taxes Net

(in thousands
Unrealized losses on investment securi

Unrealized holding losses during per| $ (1,919 $ 74E $ (1,177
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains redlimenet income 24k ___ (99 147
Net unrealized los (2,169 . 84c _ (1,320
Increase in additional minimum pension liabil (57 22 ___ (39
Net other comprehensive lg $ (2,220 $ 86t ﬂﬁ)

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLA NS

The Bank has two defined benefit pension plans“@ens”). On December 31, 2006, the Bank adopfe8SS158, which requires that it
recognize the overfunded or underfunded statuseoPtans as an asset or liability on the Decembge?@6 balance sheet. Subsequent che

in the funded status will be recognized throughreottomprehensive income in the year in which theguo SFAS 158 also requires that,
beginning in 2008, assumptions used to measurBdh&’s annual pension and retiree medical expeseketermined as of the balance sheet
date, and all plan assets and liabilities be reploas of that date. In accordance with SFAS 158 pear amounts have not been adjusted.

The following illustrates the incremental effectagfplying SFAS 158, for the Plans, on individuaklitems on the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006:

Before After
application of application of
(in thousands SFAS 15¢ Adjustment SFAS 15¢
Intangible Asset $ 2,671 $(379) $ 2,29¢
Other Asset: 6,50¢ 512 7,021
Total Assets 473,75! 13¢ 473,89:
Other Liabilities 8,24¢ 841 9,08¢
Total Liabilities 433,51( 841 434,35:
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net o (1,215 (702 (2,917
Total stockholder equity 40,24* (702) 39,54
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $473,75! $ 13¢ $473,89:
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Employees’ Pension Plar- The Bank has a defined benefit pension plan doyeubstantially all employees. The plan providesefits that
are based on the employees’ compensation and gesesvice. The Bank uses an actuarial method afrinng prior service cost and
unrecognized net gains or losses which result fiotual experience and assumptions being differemt those that are projected. The
amortization method the Bank is using recognizestiior service cost and net gains or losses dweatverage remaining service period of

active employees which exceeds the required anatidiz

Selected Financial Information for the Bank’s Eny@es’ Pension Plan is as follows:

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Assumption chang

Actuarial gain

Benefits paic

Benefit obligations at end of ye

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y
Actual return on plan asse

Employer contribution

Benefits paic

Fair value of plan assets at end of y

Funded statu
Unrecognized net actuarial lo
Unrecognized prior service cc

Net amount recognize

Amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shemtsists of
Accrued benefit liabilitie:

Amount recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehenkigs consist o

Net actuarial los
Prior service cos
Net transition asst

Net amount recognized in equ— pre-tax
Net amount recognized on Consolidated Balance S
Accumulated benefit obligation at year €
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2006

2005

(in thousands

$ 3,44«
32t
202
(155)
252
__#

4,02¢

}’03
a1
=

2,47¢
30¢
401
18

5

3,00

—~

(444
44c¢
14

¢

[E=

E
0 N
~—
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The Plan’s assets are primarily invested in ecaity fixed income mutual funds. Valuations of thagten Plan as shown above were
conducted as of September 30, 2006 and 2005. Asemepised by the Bank in the determination of RenBlan information consisted of the
following:

2006 2005 2004
Weightec-average discount ra 5.75% 5.5(% 6.0(%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.7%% 4.7% 4.7%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 7.5(% 7.5(% 7.5(%
The components of net periodic benefit cost coedisf the following:

2006 2005 2004

(in thousands

Service cos $ 32t $ 29 $ 217
Interest cos 20z 17¢ 15¢
Expected return on plan ass (234 (199 (169)
Net amortization and deferr 12 (13 (12
Net periodic benefit co: $ 30E $ 25¢ $ 191

The estimated amounts to be amortized from accusuilather comprehensive loss into net periodic itn2007 for amortization of prior
service costs, transition asset, and actuariaMdsbe $15 thousand, $1 thousand and $29 thoysasgectively.

The expected long-term rate of return on Pensian Bésets assumption was determined based oridasteturns earned by equity and fixed
income securities, adjusted to reflect future reexpectations based on plan targeted asset aioc&iquity and fixed income securities were
assumed to earn returns in the ranges of 5.0%.5%d.4nd 4.5% to 7.0%, respectively, including ajkterm inflation rate estimated at 3.0%.
When these overall return expectations are appdi¢kde Pension Plan’s targeted allocation, the ebgoerate of return is determined to be
7.50%, which is approximately the mid-point of ta@mge of expected return. The weighted average akkseation of the Pension Plan at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, the Pension Plan negasuot date, was as follows:

2006 2005
Asset category
Equity mutual fund: 63.6% 57.1%
Fixed income security mutual fun 36.4% 42.%%
100.(% 100.(%

The Company’s targeted long-term asset allocatioaverage will approximate 60%-70% with equity ngara and 30%-40% with fixed
income managers. This allocation is consistent tighCompanys goal of diversifying the Pension Plan assetsdeioto preserve capital wh
achieving investment results that will contributethie proper funding of pension obligations anchdasv requirements. The Company’s
management regularly reviews the Pension Planisahasset allocation and periodically rebalancesitestments to the targeted allocation
when considered appropriate. The Company’s manageedieves that 7.50% is a reasonable long-tetenafreturn on the Pension Plan’s
Qualified Plan assets. The Company’s managemehtaevitinue to evaluate its actuarial assumptiomduiding the expected rate of return, at
least annually, and will adjust as necessary. Tém@ny’s required minimum contribution to the Pendplan for the 2007 plan year is
approximately $264 thousand.
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The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectbéeé {maid:

(in thousands

2001 $ 84
200¢ 84
200¢ 10C
201C 111
2011 14C
Years 201-201¢ 1,25¢

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plar- The Bank also maintains a non-qualified suppleaiexxecutive retirement plan (the “SERP”)
covering certain members of the Company’s seniagragament. The SERP was amended during 2003 toderevibenefit based on a
percentage of final average earnings, as opposth tiixed benefit that the superceded plan pravifde. The obligations related to the SERP
are indirectly funded by various life insurance ttanots naming the Bank as beneficiary. The Bankafesindirectly funded the SERP, as well
as other benefits provided to other employees tirdank-owned life insurance which was purchasdeeioruary 2003. The Bank uses an
actuarial method of amortizing unrecognized nehgair losses which result from actual experieneckamsumptions being different than those
that are projected. The amortization method thekBsiising recognizes the net gains or losses theeaverage remaining service period of
active employees, which exceeds the required anatidin.
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Selected financial information for the SERP isa@®fvs:

2006

2005

(in thousands

Change in benefit obligatiol

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 2,83(
Service cos 117
Interest cos 151
Actuarial (loss)/gair 77
Benefits paic (93
Benefit obligations at end of ye 2,82¢

Change in plan asse
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \
Actual return on plan asse

Contributions to the pla 93
Benefits paic 9

b
b

Fair value of plan assets at end of y

Funded statu (2,82¢)
Unrecognized actuarial lo: —
Unrecognized prior service cc

Net amount recognize (2,82%)
Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tSfwwsists of

Accrued benefit liability (2,82¢)
Intangible asse N/A
Amount recognized in Accumulated other Comprehenkigs consist o

Additional minimum liability N/A
Net actuarial los 434
Prior service cos 37<
Net amount recognized in equ- pre-tax 807
Net amount recognized on Consolidated Balance S (2,02))
Accumulated benefit obligation at year € $ 2,43i

$ 2,507
104
14¢
16¢
(99

2,83(

93
9

(2,830
63¢
42¢

¢

1,768

5
~—

(2,376)
42¢

184
N/A
N/A

184
1,768
2,37

:

»

Valuations of the SERP liability, as shown aboverevwconducted as of December 31, 2006 and 2005n#ggns used by the Bank in both

years in the determination of SERP information &xted of the following

2006 2005 2004
Weightec-average discount ra 5.75% 5.5(% 6.0(%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass N/A N/A N/A
Salary scalt 5.00% 5.0(% 5.0(%

67




Table of Contents

The components of net periodic benefit cost coedisf the following:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
Service cos $ 117 $ 104 $ 94
Interest cos 151 14¢ 141
Net amortization and deferr 82 78 89
Net periodic benefit co: $ 35C $ 33C $ 324

The estimated amounts to be amortized from accusuitather comprehensive loss into net periodic fieo@st in 2007 for prior service costs
and actuarial loss will be $56 thousand and $18ghnd, respectively.

The following benefit payments, which reflect exigecfuture service, as appropriate, are expectbéeé {maid:

(in thousands

2007 $ 177
200¢ 20t
200¢ 20¢
201C 20t
2011 27¢
2012-201¢ 1,552

Other Compensation Plans

The Company also maintains a ngualified deferred compensation plan for certanectors. Expenses under this plan were approxim&ts
thousand in 2006, $82 thousand in 2005 and $71sdmaliin 2004. The estimated present value of thefti@bligation included in other
liabilities was $0.9 million at December 31, 200@1&005. This obligation is indirectly funded bfelinsurance contracts naming the Bank as
beneficiary. The increase in cash surrender valirciuded in other non-interest income on the @bidated Statements of Income.

Effective April 1, 2003, the Company implementedcen-qualified deferred compensation plan wherebtasedirectors and certain officers
may defer a portion of their base pre-tax compémsafdditionally, effective April 1, 2003, the Cgrany implemented a non-qualified
executive incentive retirement plan, whereby thenBany will defer on behalf of certain officers atfpan of their base compensation, as well
as an incentive award based upon Company perforenantil retirement or termination of service, ®dbjto certain vesting arrangements.
Expenses under these plans were approximatelytf@&and in 2006, $69 thousand in 2005 and $38 #mali;m 2004. The benefit obligation,
included in other liabilities in the Company’s Colidated Balance Sheets, was $796 thousand andt668and at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Many of the benefit plans are indirectly fundedBank-owned life insurance contracts with a totajragate cash surrender value of
approximately $10.1 million and $9.6 million at ecber 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Increaseash surrender value are included in
“Other Non-Interest Income” financial statementlion the Company’s Consolidated Statements of lec&ndorsement split-dollar life
insurance benefits have also been provided totdireand certain officers of the Bank and its sdilbsies.

The Bank also has a defined contribution retirenaeat thrift 401(k) Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) for iksnployees who meet certain length of
service and age requirements. The provisions of@i€k) Plan allow eligible employees to contribatportion of their annual salary, up to the
IRS statutory limit, with a matching contributiog the Bank equal to 1% of the employees’ base cosgten plus 25% of the employees’
contribution up to 4% of their annual salary. TrenB can also make discretionary contributions é0401(k) Plan. The Company’s expense
under this plan was approximately $84 thousand,tB@Gsand and $71 thousand for the years endedhibere31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment Plan @#IP") which provides each holder of record of @@mpany’s common stock the
opportunity to reinvest automatically the cashdivids they receive on shares of the Company’s constoek. Stockholders who do not wish
to participate in the DRIP continue to receive adisfidends, as declared, in the usual manner. Ctenghare Investor Services LLC (the
“Agent”) is the administrator of the DRIP. Shares
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purchased under the DRIP are held in safekeepiripégent until the stockholder terminates hisfpeaticipation in the DRIP. The Agent
also acts as transfer agent and registrar for trepany’s common stock.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

At December 31, 2006, the Company had two stockdasmpensation plans, which are described belo®004, the FASB issued SFAS

No. 123 (revised 2004“Share Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS M23(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounfing
Stock Issued to Employees,” and amends SFAS Nd'S2&tement of Cash Flows.” Generally, the fainabpproach in SFAS No. 123(R) is
similar to the fair value approach described in SF¥o. 123 which the Company previously applied. Teenpany has always used the Black-
Scholes-Merton formula to estimate the fair valfistock options granted to employees. The Compaopted SFAS No. 123(R), using the
modified-prospective method, beginning January0D62 Based on the terms of its equity compensaians, the adoption of SFAS No. 123
(R) did not require the Company to record a cunngatffect of adjustment. The compensation costgdthagainst income for those plans was
$93 thousand, $112 thousand and $87 thousand @&, 2005 and 2004, respectively, included in “Sataand Employee Benefits” in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income. Altlsbption expense is amortized on a straightle@sover the expected vesting term. In
addition, expense for director options was recagphio reflect $0, $71 thousand and $78 thousa20@®, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as a
part of “Other” expense in the Company’s Consobkda$Statements of Income. There was a tax benefihéodirectorsbptions of $28 thousai
and $31 thousand for 2005 and 2004, respectivélg.ret compensation cost recorded for the diréatptions was $43 thousand and $47
thousand for 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Fixed Stock Option Plan

Under the Company’s 1999 Employee Stock Optionlaomdy-Term Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Optilam’®, the Company may grant
options to officers, directors and key employeesifnto 289,406 shares of common stock (as adjdstestock dividends). Under the Option
Plan, the exercise price of each option is notetéelss than 100% of the market price of the Comgastgck on the date of grant and an
option’s maximum term is ten years. The Company normsdlyes shares out of its treasury for any optioescesed. The options have vest
schedules from 1 1/2 years through 9 years. At Bes 31, 2006, there were a total of 203,490 stearasable for grant under the Option
Plan. All share and per share amounts within tbie have been adjusted retroactively to refleceffect of stock dividends, including the
number and exercise price of shares subject tompitider the terms of the Option Plan.

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optinaipg model with the following weighted-
average assumptions used for grants in 2005 andl 288pectively; dividend yield of 2.89% and 2.7&%pected volatility (based on historical
data) of 20.06% and 21.84%; risk-free interest oi#.24% and 3.66%; and expected life of 6.53 &b&. The weighted average fair value of
options granted during the year were $4.63 peresims2005 and $5.13 per share in 2004. The Compsed historical volatility calculated
using daily closing prices for its common stock roperiods that match the expected term of the ogimnted to estimate the expected
volatility for the grants made in 2004 and 2005e Tisk-free interest rate assumption was based UWpBnTreasury yields appropriate for the
expected term of the Company’s stock options bapea the date of grant. The expected term of thekstptions granted was based upon the
options expected vesting schedule and historicalaise patterns. The expected dividend yield wasdbaipon the Company’s recent history of
paying dividends, and the expectation of payingddinds in the foreseeable future. No options weaatgd in 2006. Future compensation cost
expected to be expensed over the weighted aveeaggiming contractual term for remaining outstandipgions is $107 thousand.

Stock options activity for 2006 was as follows:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Average contractua Intrinsic
Options Exercise Prict Term (years Value
Balance, December 31, 20 88,577 $21.32
Grantec — —
Exercisec — —
Expired — —
Forfeited (6,520 20.9¢
Balance, December 31, 20 82,057 21.3¢ 7.55 $5,92¢
Exercisable, December 31, 20 42,77¢ $21.6( 7.32 $1,13¢
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During fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, the foltmnactivity occurred under the Company’s plans:

(in thousands 2006 2005 2004
Total intrinsic value of stock options exercis $ — $ — $2
Total fair value of stock awards vest $25¢ $16C $74

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On February 18, 2003, the Board of Directors of@loenpany adopted the Evans Bancorp, Inc. Employeek$urchase Plan (the “Purchase
Plan™). As of December 31, 2006, there were 78&8¥es of common stock available to issue to Itstime employees, nearly all of whom
eligible to participate. Under the terms of thedhaise Plan, employees can choose each year tapdawel 5% of their annual base earnings
withheld to purchase the Company’s common stock. Company grants options on January 1 and Julyeadf year during the term of the
Purchase Plan. The purchase price of the stock%s & the lower of its price on the grant datehar éxercise date. During fiscal 2006,
approximately 68% of eligible employees participkitethe Purchase Plan. Under the Purchase PluGdampany issued 10,873 and 11,312
shares to employees in 2006 and 2005, respecti@elpnpensation cost is recognized for the fair valuthe employees’ purchase rights, which
was estimated using the Black-Scholes model witHdHowing assumptions for 2006, 2005 and 200dpeetively: dividend yield of 3.08%,
2.79% and 2.70%; expected life of six months; etgrbeolatility of 20.84%, 22.84% and 25.90%; riske interest rates of 4.73%, 3.04% and
1.36%. The weighed average fair value of thosehase rights granted in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was3$66282 and $6.84 per share,
respectively. The compensation cost that has blearged against income for the Purchase Plan wagh®&3and, $70 thousand and $63
thousand for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

13. INCOME TAXES
The components of the provision for income taxeseves follows:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
Income taxes currently payat $ 2,13¢ $ 1,86:¢ $ 1,45(
Deferred tax benef (297) (102) (59
Net provision $ 1,84: $ 1,761 $ 1,39¢
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The Company’s provision for income taxes diffeanfrthe amounts computed by applying the Federahigctax statutory rates to income
before income taxes. A reconciliation of the diéfieces is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Amount Percen Amount Percen Amount Percen
(Dollars in thousands

Tax provision at statutory ra $ 2,301 34% $ 2,237 34% $ 2,00¢ 34%
Decrease in taxes resulting fro

Tax-exempt incomi (602) 9 (722) (12) (735 (12

Tax-exempt insurance procee — — (32 Q) — —
State taxes, net of federal ben 162 3 184 3 157 3
Other items, ne (18 (1) 94 2 (39 (€))]
Provision for income taxe $ 1,84: 27% $ 1,761 27% $ 1,39¢ 24%

At December 31, 2006 and 2005 the components afg¢hdeferred tax asset were as follows:

2006 2005
(in thousands

Deferred tax asset

Pension premium $ 1,43 $ 81z
Allowance for loan losse 1,330 1,132
Net unrealized losses on securil 75¢ 814
Deferred compensatic 644 524
Stock options grante 83 85
Leases 67 —
Gross deferred tax assi $ 4,321 $ 3,367
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 65¢ $ 44€
Prepaid expense 42C 412
Mortgage servicing ass 66 —
Gross deferred tax liabilitie $ 1,14¢ $ 85¢
Net deferred tax ass $ 3,17¢ $ 2,50¢

The net deferred tax asset at December 31, 200@@0&lis included in “other assets” in the accomnypanConsolidated Balance Sheets.

In assessing the realizability of the deferreddssets, management considers whether it is may kikan not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @térealization of deferred tax assets is depengmnt the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which those temporary diffees become deductible. Management considers tieelsied reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, availability of operating loss carryatks, projected future taxable income and tax prenstrategies in making this assessment.
Based upon the level of historical taxable incothe,opportunity for net operating loss carry-baeks] projections for future taxable income
over the periods which deferred tax assets aredtibtle; management believes it is more likely thabthe Company will generate sufficient
taxable income to realize the benefits of thesaidigtle differences at December 31, 2006.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank has entered into loan transactions wittaitedirectors, significant shareholders and théfitiates (related parties) in the ordinary
course of its business. The aggregate amount n§lasuch related parties on December 31, 2006&.&smillion and $4.9 million at 2005.
During 2006, there were $3.1 million of advanced aew loans to such related parties, and repaynaemtsinted to $3.5 million. Terms of
these loans have prevailing market pricing thatld/dne offered to a similar customer base.
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements do not refi@ious commitments and contingent liabilitiesietharise in the normal course of
business and which involve elements of credit risterest rate risk and liquidity risk. These cormeénts and contingent liabilities are
commitments to extend credit and standby lettexgedit. A summary of the Bank’s commitments andticgent liabilities at December 31,
2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005
(in thousands
Commitments to extend cre! $ 65,55¢ $66,47¢
Standby letters of crec 2,51¢ 2,00¢
Total $68,07: $68,47¢

Commitments to extend credit and standby lettexgedit all include exposure to some credit losthinevent of non-performance of the
customer. The Bank’s credit policies and procedtsesredit commitments and financial guaranteeste same as those for extensions of
credit that are recorded on the Consolidated Bal&@iteets. Because these instruments have fixeditpatates, and because they may expire
without being drawn upon, they do not necessaeipresent cash requirements to the Bank. The Bamkdtancurred any losses on its
commitments during the past three years.

The Company has entered into contracts with théndigss, which contracts include indemnificationuslas. Examples of such contracts include
contracts with third party service providers, bnskand dealers, correspondent banks, purchasegsidéntial mortgages. Additionally, the
Company has bylaws, policies and agreements unkiehvit indemnifies its officers and directors frdiability for certain events or
occurrences while the directors or officers areyere, serving at the Company’s request in suchgaitips. The Company indemnifies its
officers and directors to the fullest extent alloMzy law. The maximum potential amount of futurgrpants that the Company could be
required to make under these indemnification piows is unlimited, but would be affected by allenednt defenses to such claims, as well as
directors’ and officersfiability insurance maintained by the Company. Da¢he nature of these indemnification provisidhis not possible t
quantify the aggregate exposure to the Companytimgfrom them.

The Company leases certain offices, land and ecgripnnder long-term operating leases. The aggregaienum annual rental commitments
under these leases total approximately $478 thabisa2007; $468 thousand in 2008; $439 thousar2Dd®; $357 thousand in 2010; $352
thousand in 2011; and $4.2 million thereafter. Tdmgal expense under operating leases containthe iGompanys Consolidated Statements
Income included $528 thousand, $499 thousand a2@ Bwusand in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

16. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT

All of the Bank’s loans, commitments and standhtels of credit have been granted to customerseérBank’s market area. Investments in
state and municipal securities also involve govemntal entities within the Bank’market area, which is Western New York. The cotragions
of credit by type of loan are set forth in Noté'l3pans, Net.” The distribution of commitments taexd credit approximates the distribution of
loans outstanding. Standby letters of credit weamigd primarily to commercial borrowers. The Basxka matter of policy, does not extend
credit to any single borrower or group in exces&5%o of capital.

17. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is comprised of two primary businegssats: banking and insurance agency activities.réportable segments are separately
managed and their performance is evaluated basadtancome. All sources of segment specific reesmand expenses attributed to
managemens definition of net income. Revenues from transadibetween the two segments are not significdrg.accounting policies of t
segments are the same as those described in Note 1.
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The following table sets forth information regamlithese segments for the years ended Decembe®@a, 2005 and 2004.

Net interest income (expens
Provision for loan and lease los:

Net interest income (expense) after provision danl losse

Non-interest incom:
Insurance services and fe
Net gain on sales of securiti
Nor-interest expens

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income

Net interest income (expens
Provision for loan and lease los:

Net interest income (expense) after provision éaml losse

Non-interest income
Insurance services and fe
Net gain on sales of securiti
Non-interest expens

Income before income tax
Income taxe:

Net income

2006
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total

(in thousands
$15,32! $ (474) 14,84’
1,12¢ — 1,12¢
14,19 474 13,71¢
4,167 — 4,167
— 6,46¢€ 6,46¢
14C — 14C
13,15¢ 4.57¢ 17,72¢
5,34¢ 1,41¢ 6,764
1,27¢ 567 1,84:
$ 4,07( $ 851 $ 4,921

2005
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total

(in thousands
$14,77¢ $ (399 14,37;
76¢ — 76¢
14,007 (399) 13,60¢
3,892 — 3,892
— 6,37 6,371
107 — 107
12,78¢ 4,62( 17,40¢
5,222 1,35¢ 6,58(
1,21¢ 54¢ 1,761
$ 4,004 $ 81E $ 4,81¢
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2004
Banking Insurance Agenc)
Activities Activities Total
(in thousands

Net interest income (expens $12,69: $ (95) 12,597
Provision for loan and lease los: 48E — 48t
Net interest income (expense) after provision fedi losse: 12,20% (95) 12,11
Non-interest income 3,28( — 3,28(
Insurance services and fe — 5,05: 5,052
Net gain on sales of securiti 23¢ — 23¢
Non-interest expens 10,821 3,952 14,77¢
Income before income tax 4,89¢ 1,00¢ 5,90¢
Income taxe: 1,00( 39€ 1,39¢
Net income $ 3,89¢ $ 61C $ 4,50¢

December 31, 20C December 31, 20C
(in thousands

Identifiable Assets, Nel

Banking activities $ 461,48t $ 456,03¢
Insurance agency activitit 12,40¢ 12,51(
Consolidated Total Asse $ 473,89: $ 468,54¢

18. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicistruments for which it is practicable to
estimate that value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents~or these short-term instruments, the carryinguarhis a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Interest Bearing Deposits at Other Bar- The carrying amount of Interest Bearing Deposit®thier Banks approximates fair value due to 1
short-term nature.

Securities- For securities, fair value equals quoted markieepif available. If a quoted market price is aotilable, fair value is estimated
using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans Receivabl- The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimatgdilscounting the future cash flows using the aurrates at which similar
loans would be made to borrowers with similar drealings and for the same remaining maturities phéhe appropriate portion of the
allowance for loan losses. For variable rate lo#mescarrying amount is a reasonable estimateiofddue.

Deposits— The fair value of demand deposits, NOW accowitsi-vest and regular savings accounts is the ampayable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair value of time depositesimated using the rates currently offered forodép of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowed Fund«— The fair value of the short-term portion of otherrowed funds approximates its carrying valuee Tdir value of the long-
term portion of other borrowed funds is estimatsthg a discounted cash flow analysis based on timep@ny’s current incremental borrowing
rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements.
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Junior Subordinated Debentur— The carrying amount of Junior Subordinated Delresstis a reasonable estimate of fair value duleetdact
that they bear a floating interest rate that adjosta quarterly basis.

Commitments to extend credit and standby lettecseanfit— As described in Note 15 “Contingent LiabilitiesdaCommitments,” the Company
was a party to financial instruments with off-balarsheet risk at December 31, 2006 and 2005. $uahcial instruments consist of
commitments to extend permanent financing andrietiecredit. If the options are exercised by thespective borrowers, these financial
instruments will become interest-earning assete@fCompany. If the options expire, the Companginstany fees paid by the counterparty in
order to obtain the commitment or guarantee. Thevédue of commitments is estimated based upos éeerently charged to enter into similar
agreements, taking into account the remaining terfntise agreements and the present creditworthiofetbe counterparties. For fixed-rate
commitments, the fair value estimation takes irdosideration an interest rate risk factor. The ¥aiue of guarantees and letters of credit is
based on fees currently charged for similar agredsndhe fair value of these off-balance sheetstabDecember 31, 2006 and 2005
approximates the recorded amounts of the relates] fehich are not considered material.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the estimated &ires of the company’s financial instruments werééows:

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(in thousands (in thousands
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivale $ 12,59: $ 12,59: $ 15,63t $ 15,63t
Securities $137,73( $137,73( $159,95: $159,95:
Loans and leases, r $285,36° $281,52( $256,81( $252,28(
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $355,74¢ $356,57t $336,80¢ $337,25(
Borrowed funds and securities sold under agreentemepurchas $ 58,18: $ 57,09: $ 76,90: $ 75,31
Junior Subordinated Debentul $ 11,33( $ 11,33( $ 11,33( $ 11,33(

19. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to the dividend restrictiseitsforth by the FRB and the OCC. Under suchiotistins, the Company may not, without
the prior approval of the FRB and the OCC, dedttivelends in excess of the sum of the current weaarnings (as defined in FRB regulatic
plus the retained earnings (as defined in FRB egguis) from the prior two years.

Quantitative measures established by regulatiemsuire capital adequacy require the Company totaiaiminimum amounts and ratios (set
forth in the table that follows) of total and Tietapital (as defined in FRB regulations) to riskighted assets (as defined in FRB regulations),
and of Tier | capital (as defined in FRB regulaipto average assets (as defined in FRB regulatidtenagement believes as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, that the Company and the Bank rheapital adequacy requirements to which it is eabj

The most recent notification from its regulatortegarized the Company and the Bank as well capédlunder the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized as eagtitalized, the Company and the Bank must maintahimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based and Tier | leverage ratios as set forthdrtable. There are no conditions or events sirgerthtification that management believes have
changed the Company’s or Bank’s category rating.
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The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital amoandsratios were as follows:

Total Risl-Based Capital (t

Risk Weighted Asset:
Tier | Capital (to Risk
Weighted Assets
Tier | Capital (to Averag
Assets)

Total Risl-Based Capital (t

Risk Weighted Asset:

Tier | Capital (to Risk
Weighted Assets

Tier | Capital (to Average

Assets)

2006

(dollars in thousand:

Minimum for Capital

Minimum to be Well
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

Company Bank Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$44,22¢ 14.C%  $41,57¢ 13.2%  $25,34: 8.0%  $31,67¢ 10.(%
$40,48¢ 12.8%  $37,84% 12.(% $12,67: 4.0%  $19,00¢ 6.C%
$40,48¢ 8.9%  $37,84: 8.4%  $18,69: 4.0%  $23,36¢ 5.C%
2005
(dollars in thousand:
Minimum to be Well
Capitalized Under
Minimum for Capital Prompt Corrective
Company Bank Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$40,43] 13.7%  $39,05¢ 13.5%  $23,66: 8.0%  $29,57¢ 10.(%
$37,22¢ 12.€%  $35,85¢ 12.2%  $11,83( 4.0%  $17,74¢ 6.C%
$37,22¢ 8.3%  $35,85¢ 8.C% $17,96: 4.0%  $22,45¢ 5.C%

20. PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Parent company (Evans Bancorp, Inc.) only condefisadcial information is as follows:

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

Cash
Other equity securitie

Investment in subsidiarie

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Junior subordinated debentu

STOCKHOLDER? EQUITY

Total Stockholder Equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity
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December 31,

2006 2005
(in thousands

84 $ 48

33C 33C
50,45¢ 47,82¢
$50,87¢ $48,20¢
$11,33( $11,33(
$39,54! $36,87¢
$50,87¢ $48,20¢
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Dividends from subsidiarie
Expense:

Income before equity in undistributed earningsulfsidiaries

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidial

Net income

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl by operating activitie:

Change in other equity securiti
Undistributed earnings of subsidiar

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing Activities:
Investment in subsidiarie

Net cash used by investing activit
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from borrowing

Cash dividends paid, n
Purchase of Treasury sto

Net cash (used in) provided by financial activii
Net increase (decrease) in ci
Cash beginning of yei

Cash ending of ye:
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December 31

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands
$ 3,60( $ 2,94( $ 2,89¢
(1,149 (829 (43¢€)
2,45\ 2,115 2,462
2,46¢ 2,702 2,045
$ 4,921 $ 4,81¢ $ 4,50¢
Year Ended
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands

$ 4,921 $ 4,81¢ $ 4,50¢
— — (330)
(2,46%) (2,71Y) (2,069
2,45¢ 2,10¢ 2,11¢
— — (11,000
— — (11,000
= — 11,33(
(1,855 (1,76 (1,659
(569 (460 (749
(2,420) (2,229 8,927
36 (120) 43
48 16€ 12t
$ 84 $ 48 $ 16¢
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21. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA — UNAUDITED

(in thousands, except per share date 4t Quarter 3rd Quarter 2 nd Quarter 1stQuarter

2006
Interest incomt $ 6,98: $ 6,82¢ $ 6,51¢ $ 6,21«
Interest expens 3,13¢ 3,10( 2,88¢ 2,57(
Net interest incom 3,84t 3,72¢ 3,63( 3,64¢
Net income 1,162 1,287 1,071 1,40¢
Earnings per share ba: 0.4 0.47% 0.3¢ 0.5z
Earnings per share dilutt 0.4z 0.47 0.3¢ 0.52

2005
Interest incomt $ 6,04¢ $ 5,96¢ $ 5,69¢ $ 5,23t
Interest expens 2,43¢ 2,19/ 2,09¢ 1,837
Net interest incom 3,607 3,77¢ 3,591 3,39¢
Net income 1,12¢ 1,25¢ 1,17¢ 1,262
Earnings per share ba: 0.41 0.4¢€ 0.44 0.4¢
Earnings per share dilutt 0.41 0.4¢€ 0.44 0.4¢

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES
Not applicable

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s principal executive officer and pifral financial officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of the design and operation of theagamy'’s disclosure controls and procedures (asi@efin Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluatinCompany’s principal executive and principaéfigial officers concluded that the
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2006 (the end of the period coveretthiyReport) have been designed and
are functioning effectively to provide reasonatdsurance that the information required to be diszidoy the Company in reports filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, e summarized and reported within the time gergpecified in the SEC’s rules and
forms.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

No changes in the Compé’s internal control over financial reporting wedentified in the fiscal quarter ended December2BD6 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenglly affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@mancial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable
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PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecdipions, “Information Regarding Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers” and “S&ttl6(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complidnaed to the discussion of director
nominees by shareholders and the Audit Committeleiutine caption “Board of Director Committees” lire tCompany’s definitive proxy
statement relating to its 2007 annual meeting afeimolders to be held on April 26, 2007 (the “Pr&stement”).

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undec#éipions, “Compensation of Directors,”
Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committeerlacks and Insider Participation” and “CompermatCommittee Reporth the Proxy
Statement.

The material incorporated herein by reference ¢ontlaterial under the caption, “Compensation ConemiRepot” in the Proxy Statement shall
be deemed furnished, and not filed, in this ReporForm 10-K and shall not be deemed incorporayecterence into any filing under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Seesriikxchange Act of 1934, as amended, as a reghiisdiirnishing, except to the extent that
the Company specifically incorporates it by refern

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecéipions, “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” and “Security Ownership of Certain Exéicial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Stamme

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undecdipions, “Information Regarding Directors,
Director Nominees and Executive Officers — Indepantiand “Transactions with Related Persons” inRhaexy Statement.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this item is incorpted herein by reference to the material undec#iption, “Independent Auditorsfi the Prox:
Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as a part of fRéport on Form 10-K:

1. Financial statements: S“Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemebtatz” in Part Il, Item 8 of this Report on Form-K.

2. All other financial statement schedules are ardittecause they are not applicable or the reqirifedmation is included in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thenetaded in Part I, Item 8. of this Report on Foig-K.
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3. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorated by reference to Exhibit 3a of the Comy's Registration Stateme
on Form &4 (Registration No. &-25321) as filed on November 7, 198

3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Company'’s Certifiicaf Incorporation (incorporated by reference xiBit 3.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997 lagl fon May 14, 1997

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by referencExbibit 3.2.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q for tiecél quarter ended
September 30, 2006, as filed on November 7, 2

4.1 Evans Bancorp Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incatgubby reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the CompamRégistration
Statement on Form-8 (Registration No. 3:-106655 as filed on June 30, 20C

4.2 Evans Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option and Long-Tkreentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Ext88.1 of the
Compan’s Registration Statement on Forl-8 (Registration No. 3123679 as filed on March 30, 200

4.3 Evans Bancorp, Inc. Dividend Reinvestment Plararasnded (incorporated by reference to the Compd®gigstration
Statement on Form-3D (Registration No. 3:-123678 as filed on March 30, 200

4.4 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 1@s€xhe fiscal
guarter ended March 31, 1997 as filed on May 187

4.5 Indenture between the Company, as Issuer, and Wit Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of Ocfigl#004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of tr@mrany’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endedt&aper 30, 2004 as filed
on November 4, 2004

10.1* Employment Agreement between Evans National BaakRinhard M. Craig (incorporated by reference thiBi 10.1 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.2* Employment Agreement between Evans National BaakJames Tilley (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.3* Employment Agreement between Evans National Baakvdilliam R. Glass (incorporated by reference tdiik 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.4* Specimen 1984 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199C

10.5* Specimen 1989 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199C

10.6* Summary of Provisions of Director Deferred CompéinsaAgreements (incorporated by reference to Exhib.7 of the
Compan’s Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199(

10.7 Investment Service Agreement betwee' Keefe Shaw & Co., Inc. and ENB Associates Inc.diporated by reference
Exhibit 10.1 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2000 lasl fon May 8, 2000

10.8* Employment Agreement between ENB Insurance Agelmcy,and Robert Miller (incorporated by referengeéekhibit 10.1 of
the Compan’s current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

10.9* Employment Agreement among Evans Bancorp, Inc.n&Wational Bank and David J. Nasca dated as oéDber 1, 200!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to th@panys Current Report on Forn-K filed December 7, 2006

10.10* Evans National Bank Executive Life Insurance Plandrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to tleenpanys Form 1-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 as fileillarch 18, 2004)

10.11* Evans National Bank Supplemental Executive RetirdrRéan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1dd the Compar’'s
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003led fin March 18, 2004

10.12* Evans National Bank Deferred Compensation Pla®fficers and Directors (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.12 to the

Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003led in March 18, 2004

80






Table of Contents

Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

10.13 Agreement of Sale and Purchase of Assets amonglBdiBance Agency, Inc., Ulrich & Company, Inc., idir Developmen
Company, LLC and David L. Ulrich dated as of Octobg2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl16f the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.14* Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement ParticipeAgreement incorporated by reference to ExHibitl5 of the
Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004ijled &6n March 28, 2005

10.15* Form of Deferred Compensation Participatory Agreetnnecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 & @ompany’s Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004jled 6n March 28, 2005

10.16* Form of Executive Life Insurance Split-Dollar Endement Participatory Agreement incorporated byregige to Exhibit 10.17
of the Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004jled 6n March 28, 2005

10.17 Form of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt 8cdue 2034 (incorporated by reference to Exhllfit3 of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.18 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Exzaqsital Trust I, dated as of October 1, 2004 (ipooated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.19 Guarantee Agreement of the Company, dated as ab®ctl, 2004 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBib of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.20 Purchase Agreement among the Company, Evans Capitstl |, and NBC Capital Markets Group, Inc., deés of October 1
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6hef Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter en8eptember 30, 2004 as
filed on November 4, 2004

10.21 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Evans Nhltieasing, Inc., Evans Bancorp, Inc., M&C Leasing.,Gnc., APCOT
NY Corp., John Gallo, and for certain limited pusps, Brian Gallo, dated as of December 31, 20@b(jporated by referent
to Exhibit 10.22 of the Compa’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iles March 28, 2005}

10.22 Summary of compensation arrangements for NameduixedOfficers and Directors (incorporated by refege to Exhibit 10.1
of the Companr’s Form 10Q for the fiscal quarter ended March BD62 as filed on May 12, 200¢

211 Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 10.21 of the Compé's Form 1i-K for the fiscal year ende
December 31, 2004, as filed March 28, 201

23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting I's Consent from KPMG LLP (filed herewitt

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutt@o Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer andiftipal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC SectiB350 Chapter 63 of Titl

18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant tio8&36 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatony ptaarrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this Annual Repor
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgrsd, thereunto duly authorized:

EVANS BANCORP, INC.

By: /s/ James Tilley
James Tilley,
Chief Executive Officer
Date: March 26, 200

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsdted:

Signature Title Date
/sl James Tille Chief Executive Officer/Directc

(Principal Executive Officer an
James Tilley Principal Financial Officer) March 26, 2007
/s/ David J. Nasc President/Directo March 26, 2007
David J. Nasci
/s/ Phillip Brothmar Chairman of the Board/Direct: March 26, 2007

Phillip Brothman

/sl Thomas H. Waring, J Vice Chairman of the Board/Direct March 26, 200:
Thomas H. Waring, J

/s/ James E. Biddle, . Director March 26, 200"
James E. Biddle, J

/s/ William F. Barreti Director March 26, 200"
William F. Barrett

/s/ LaVerne G. Hal Director March 26, 200"
LaVerne G. Hal

/s/ Kenneth C. Kirs Director March 26, 200"
Kenneth C. Kirs

/s/ Mary Catherine Militellc Director March 26, 200:
Mary Catherine Militellc

/s/ Robert G. Miller, Jr Director March 26, 200"
Robert G. Miller, Jr

/s/ John R. (Brien Director March 26, 200"
John R. CBrien

/s/ David M. Taylot Director March 26, 2007
David M. Taylor

/s/ Nancy W. Wart Director March 26, 200°
Nancy W. Ware
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorated by reference to Exhibit 3a of the Comy’ s Registration Stateme
on Form &4 (Registration No. &-25321) as filed on November 7, 198

3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment to the Compi’s Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated byerefnce to Exhibit 3.3 of tF
Compan’s Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997 lagl fon May 14, 1997

3.2 Bylaws of the Company (incorporated by referencExbibit 3.2.1 of the Company’s Form 10-Q for tiecél quarter ended
September 20, 3006, as filed on November 7, 2

4.1 Evans Bancorp Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incatgubby reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the CompamRégistration
Statement on Form-8 (Registration No. 3:-106655 as filed on June 30, 20C

4.2 Evans Bancorp, Inc. 1999 Stock Option and Long-Tkreentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Ext88.1 of the
Compan’s Registration Statement on Forl-8 (Registration No. 3123679 as filed on March 30, 200

4.3 Evans Bancorp, Inc. Dividend Reinvestment Plararasnded (incorporated by reference to the Compd®gigstration
Statement on Form-3D (Registration No. 3:-123678 as filed on March 30, 200

4.4 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s Form 1@s€xhe fiscal
guarter ended March 31, 1997 as filed on May 187

4.5 Indenture between the Company, as Issuer, and Wik Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of Ocfigl2004
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of tr@mr@any’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter endedt&aper 30, 2004 as filed
on November 4, 2004

10.1* Employment Agreement between Evans National BankRinhard M. Craig (incorporated by reference tdiBit 10.1 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.2* Employment Agreement between Evans National BaakJames Tilley (incorporated by reference to ExHibi2 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.3* Employment Agreement between Evans National Baakvdilliam R. Glass (incorporated by reference tdiik 10.3 of the
Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997lad tin March 30, 1998

10.4* Specimen 1984 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199C

10.5* Specimen 1989 Director Deferred Compensation Agezertincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6haf Company’s
Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199C

10.6* Summary of Provisions of Director Deferred CompéinsaAgreements (incorporated by reference to Exhib.7 of the
Compan’s Form 10 (Registration No-18539) as filed on April 30, 199(

10.7 Investment Service Agreement between O’Keefe Shawog& Inc. and ENB Associates Inc. (incorporateddfgrence to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2000 lasl fon May 8, 2000

10.8* Employment Agreement between ENB Insurance Agelmcy,and Robert Miller (incorporated by referengeéekhibit 10.1 of
the Compan’s current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

10.9* Employment Agreement among Evans Bancorp, Inc.n&Wational Bank and David J. Nasca dated as oéDber 1, 200!
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to th@vpanys Current Report on Forn-K filed December 7, 2006

10.10* Evans National Bank Executive Life Insurance Plandrporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to tleenpanys Form 1-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 as fileslarch 18, 2004)

10.11* Evans National Bank Supplemental Executive RetirdrRéan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1dd the Compar’'s
Form 1(-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003led fin March 18, 2004

10.12* Evans National Bank Deferred Compensation Pla®fficers and Directors (incorporated by refererc&xhibit 10.12 to th
Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003led in March 18, 2004
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Descriptior

10.13 Agreement of Sale and Purchase of Assets amonglBdiBance Agency, Inc., Ulrich & Company, Inc., idir Developmen
Company, LLC and David L. Ulrich dated as of Octobg2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl16f the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.14* Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement ParticipeAgreement incorporated by reference to ExHibitl5 of the
Compan’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004ijled &6n March 28, 2005

10.15* Form of Deferred Compensation Participatory Agreetnnecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 & @ompany’s Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004jled 6n March 28, 2005

10.16* Form of Executive Life Insurance Split-Dollar Endement Participatory Agreement incorporated byregige to Exhibit 10.17
of the Compan’s Form 1K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004jled 6n March 28, 2005

10.17 Form of Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Debt 8cdue 2034 (incorporated by reference to Exhllfit3 of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.18 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of Exzaqsital Trust I, dated as of October 1, 2004 (ipooated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Compar's Form 1-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.19 Guarantee Agreement of the Company, dated as ab®ctl, 2004 (incorporated by reference to ExHiBib of the Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 280#4exl on November 4, 2004

10.20 Purchase Agreement among the Company, Evans Capitstl |, and NBC Capital Markets Group, Inc., deés of October 1
2004 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6hef Company’s Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter en8eptember 30, 2004 as
filed on November 4, 2004

10.21 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Evans Nhltieasing, Inc., Evans Bancorp, Inc., M&C Leasing.,Gnc., APCOT
NY Corp., John Gallo, and for certain limited pusps, Brian Gallo, dated as of December 31, 20@b(jporated by referent
to Exhibit 10.22 of the Compa’s Form 1-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004iles March 28, 2005}

10.22 Summary of compensation arrangements for NameduixedOfficers and Directors (incorporated by refege to Exhibit 10.1
of the Companr’s Form 10Q for the fiscal quarter ended March BD62 as filed on May 12, 200¢

211 Subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated by refeeeo Exhibit 10.21 of the Compé's Form 1i-K for the fiscal year ende
December 31, 2004, as filed March 28, 201

23.1 Independent Registered Public Accounting I's Consent from KPMG LLP (filed herewitt

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursutt@o Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursutato Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adoptedipatgo section 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer andiftipal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 USC SectiB350 Chapter 63 of Titl

18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant tio8&36 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith

*  Indicates a management contract or compensatony ptaarrangement
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Evans Bancorp, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrRbgistration Statements (No. 333-106655 and N8-128679) on Form S-8 and (No. 333-
123678 and No. 333-34347) on Form S-3D of Evan<B@m Inc. of our report dated March 22, 2007, wébpect to the consolidated balance
sheets of Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiarie$§ Becember 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related &dated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each ofytears in the three-year period ended Decembe2®g, and all related financial statement
schedules, which report appears in the Decembe2@5 Annual Report on Form 10-K of Evans Bancbrp,

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrstegements, Evans Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiadepted Securities and Exchange
Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108pnsidering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemeviien Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statemerds of January 1, 2006 and Statement of Financiebéating Standards No. 15Bmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretiremeanhfas of December 31, 2006.

/sl KPMG LLP
Buffalo, New York
March 22, 2007
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification

I, James Tilley, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fvans Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or eméitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and jpiwres, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervis
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissalisclosure controls and procedures and preddntthis report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change inreigistrant’s internal control over financial repogtthat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comiwger financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and materia¢aknesses in the design or operation of internatalbover financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2007

/s/ James Tille)

James Tilley

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification
I, James Tilley, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fvans Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make

the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) alngre responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls andguhores, or caused such disclosure controls aneéguoes to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etin which this report is being prepared,;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigts disclosure controls and procedures and predén this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant’s internal control over financial refiog that occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anltlve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and matenietaknesses in the design or operation of intemrtrol over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfsability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdlves management or other employees who hawgnéisant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 26, 2007

/sl James Tilley

James Tilley

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE AND FINANCIAL  OFFICERS
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, James Tilley, the Chief Executive Officer of EBgaBancorp, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C:tlea 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, timany knowledge: (1) the Annual Report of Eva&orp, Inc. on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 fully comphigth the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d)apglicable, of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and (2) the information contained iclsénnual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, limzaterial respects, the financial

condition and results of operations of Evans Bamchrc.

Date: March 26, 2007

By /s/James Tille

Name James Tilley

Title: President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer




